EDGAROnline

PFSWEB INC

FORM 10-K405

(Annual Report (Regulation S-K, item 405))

Filed 06/29/01 for the Period Ending 03/31/01

Address

Telephone
CIK
Symbol
SIC Code
Industry
Sector
Fiscal Year

505 MILLENNIUM DRIVE

ALLEN, TX 75013

972-881-2900

0001095315

PFSW

7389 - Business Services, Not Elsewhere Classified
Software & Programming

Technology

12/31

Powere d By ED‘GA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2014, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

PFSWEB INC

FORM 10-K405

(Annual Report (Regulation S-K, item 405))

Filed 6/29/2001 For Period Ending 3/31/2001

Address 500 NORTH CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY
PLANO, Texas 75074
Telephone 972-881-2900
CIK 0001095315
Industry Business Services
Sector Services
Fiscal Year 12/31
e oo ecgaroning com EDGAR Customer Senice. 303.852-6665

Corporate Sales: 212-457-8200



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2001

COMMISS ON FILE NUMBER 000-28275

PFSweb, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

DELAWARE 75-2837058
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Number)
incorporation or organization)
500 NORTH CENTRAL EXPRESSWAY, PLANO, TEXAS 75074
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area c®g¢2:881-2900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: NONE

Securities registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act:
COMMON STOCK, PAR VALUE $.001 PER SHARE

Indicate by a check mark whether the registranhék)filed all reports required to be filed by &attl3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsfiech shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past@g@s. Yes [X] No []

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delingufdars pursuant to

Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained heraimj will not be contained, to the best of regigtsaknowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by referendeart 111 of this Form 10-K or any amendment tasthbrm 10-K. Yes [X] No []

The aggregate market value of the voting stock hgldon-affiliates of the registrant as of June2@)1 (based on the closing price as
reported by the National Association of Securibeslers Automated Quotation System) was $18,453,874

As of June 15, 2001, there were 17,970,429 sharssamding of the registrant's Common Stock, $jifxlvalue.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE



The information required by Part Ill of this AnnlRéport, to the extent not set forth herein, i®iporated herein by reference from the
registrant's definitive proxy statement relatinghte annual meeting of stockholders to be heldil? which definitive proxy statement shall
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgithin 120 days after the end of the fiscal yieawhich this Annual Report relates.




INDEX

PAGE
PART 1
ltem 1. BUSINESS....cccccvviiiiiiiieiiics e 3
Item 2. Properties.....ccccocvvvveveevenees e 26
Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings......ccccoovveeeeneee e 26
Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Securi ty Holders......... 26
PART Il
Iltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related
Stockholder Matters.................... 27
Iltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data..... . .27
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of F inancial Condition
and Results of Operations............... e 29
Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure a bout Market Risk... 38
Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Da | 7= SO 39
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Account ants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure............... e 62
PART IlI
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the R egistrant.......... 62
Item 11. Executive Compensation............cceee.. e 62
Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management.......ccccoovvvvvcicceees e 62
Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transac tions.............. 62
PART IV
Iltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules a nd Reports on Form
8K s 63
SIGNATURES. ... 67

Unless otherwise indicated, all references to "P&i§W'the Company,” "we," "us" and "our" refer teHweb, Inc., a Delaware corporation,
and its subsidiaries. All references to "Daisytefer to Daisytek International Corporation, a Dedee corporation, and its subsidiaries.
Reference in this Report to the Company's fiscat yeeans the 12 months period ending on March 3udi year.

The Company has elected to change its fiscal yahdate from March 31 to December 31.

2



PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

PFSweb serves as the "brand behind the brand'bfopanies seeking to increase their supply chaicieficies. As a business process
outsourcer, offering proven, fast and secure infuature solutions for manufacturers, distributensl retailers, we are able to provide our
clients with seamless and transparent solutiossipport their business strategies. Utilizing ochtelogy and infrastructure expertise, we
enable our clients to develop and deploy new prtsdaicd new business strategies rapidly througtsolutions. Our clients engage us as both
a consultant to assist them in the design of anlessisolution, as well as the virtual and physidahstructure needed to build and operate
solution.

We help our clients define new ways to do businEash client has unique specifications that reduigély customized solutions. Clients t
to us to help address such business issues asmarstatisfaction, production capacity requiremevggsdor integration, supply chain
compression, and international expansion, amongreti®Our clients are seeking solutions that witiisle them substantial supply chain and
channel marketing efficiencies, while simultaneguskating a world-class customer service expeeenc

Our technology and business infrastructure aretatiégy changeable and reliable. This flexibilitioals us to custom design solutions to fit
the business requirements of our client's strase@er revenue is primarily earned from service fefgarged to process individual business
transactions through our technology and infrastmgctapabilities, on our client's behalf. Thesdr®rss transactions may include the
answering of a phone call or an e-mail, the prangssf an electronic credit card authorization, tbeeipt and storage of our client's
inventory, the shipping of products to our clieststomer, the management of a complex set ofreld@ctdata transactions designed to keep
our client's suppliers and customers accountingrdscin balance, or the processing of a returnetigue.

Our capabilities are quite expansive. In an onggjnest to offer the most necessary and resourpeddlcts to our clients, we are continually
developing capabilities to meet the most pressimgjrness issues in the marketplace. Our businesstolg is to focus on "Leading the
Evolution of Outsourcing(sm)." As our tagline sugtge we will continue to evolve our service offggrto meet the needs of the marketplace
and the demands of the unique client requiremestav® most successful when we develop a new cégabienable a client to pursue a n
initiative and we are then able to leverage that eeolutionary development across other clientgrospects as it becomes "best practice” in
the marketplace. Our team of experts designs aitdshdiverse solutions for Fortune 1000, Global @@dd brand name clients around a
flexible core of technology and physical infrasture that includes:

- Technology collaboration provided by our suitesoftware products, called the Entente Suite(SMJt &re e-commerce and collaboration
tools that enable buyers and suppliers to fullpmate their business transactions within their Bupipain. Entente supports industry stanc
collaboration techniques including XML based pratiscsuch as Biztalk and RosettaNet, real-time appbn interfaces, text file exchanges
via secured FTP, and traditional EDI,

- Managed web hosting and web development, inctudieb site design, creation, integration and ongaiaintenance, support and
enhancement of web site;

- Order management including order processing faagnsource of entry, back order processing andadudtder processing, tracking and
tracing, and credit management, all with multiplerency and language options;

- Customer Relationship Management (CRM), includire-enabled customer contact services via woddsctall centers utilizing voice, e-
mail, and Internet chat communications that arly fntegrated with real-time systems and historitatia archives to provide complete
customer lifecycle management;



- International fulfillment and distribution sergs, including warehouse management, inventory neanegt, product warehousing, order
picking and packing, kitting and light assemblgnsportation management and returns or reversgtikgyadministration;

- Information management, including real-time datarfaces, data exchange services and data mining;
- Billing and collection services, including secarline credit card processing, fraud protection, inirgy, credit management and collecti

- Professional consulting services, including astiiative team of experts that tailor solutiong&gh client and consistently seek out ways to
increase efficiencies and produce benefits forctieat.

We are headquartered in Plano, Texas where ountixe@nd administrative offices are located ad a®lour primary technology hosting ¢
development laboratories. We operate world-clabseaters from our U.S. facilities located in Réaiexas, and Memphis, Tennessee, and
from our international facilities located in ToronOntario and Liege, Belgium. We have approxinyatele million square feet of highly
automated warehouse and distribution capabilitptied across our facilities in Memphis, Tennessegyrito, Ontario and Liege, Belgium.
Since our inception we have provided, and in masges continue to provide, solutions to clients #inatpositioned as market leaders in a
range of industries, including technology manufdoty clothing, retailing, high security collect#s, consumer goods, pharmaceuticals,
housewares and consumer electronics, among others.

Prior to December 1999, we were a wholly-owned slidny of Daisytek International Corporation ("Dyiisk"), one of the world's largest
wholesale distributors of computer supplies, officeducts, and film and tape media. Our busine#saas formed in 1991 to leverage
Daisytek's core competencies in customer serviderananagement, product fulfillment and distribatiFrom 1996 to 1999, the operations
of our business unit were primarily focused in sal/Baisytek subsidiaries operating collectivelyPamrity Fulfillment Services, Inc.
("PFS"). In June 1999, Daisytek created a separatdly owned subsidiary named PFSweb, Inc., a Dataveorporation, to become a holc
company for PFS in contemplation of an initial palgiffering (the "Offering") of PFSweb. In Decemi#999, we sold 3,565,000 shares of
common stock in the Offering and Daisytek contréfolito us all the assets, liabilities and equity posing PFS. PFSweb and Daisytek
completed their separation on July 6, 2000 thraagho rata distribution to Daisytek's common staittlrs of all of the shares of our
common stock which Daisytek then held (which i®&sown as a "spin-off").

Upon completion of the Offering, we entered intouanber of agreements with Daisytek relating tolmsiness and our proposed spin-off
from Daisytek. See "Spin-off of PFSweb from Daigytdn May 2001, certain of these agreements wem@inated as part of a transaction in
which we sold to Daisytek certain assets useddmige transaction management services to Daisyelpart of this sale transaction, we also
entered into a short term transition services agese with Daisytek.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Businesses today operate in an environment of taplthological advancements, increasing compet#timhcontinuous pressure to improve
operating efficiency. In response to these devebagn) several significant trends have emergedekample:

- Manufacturers are looking to restructure thepy chains to maximize efficiency and reduce costsoth business-to-business and
business-to-consumer markets and to create a sapaig that is able to support the multiple unigeeds of each of their initiatives,
including traditional and electronic commerce.

- Retailers and other direct marketers are incnggisieir emphasis on developing closer customatiogiships and analyzing all forms of
customer contact through CRM tools.

- Companies in a variety of industries are usingourtcing as a method to address one or more bsdinestions that are not within their ci
business competencies.



SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT TREND

As companies continue to focus on improving thesibesses and financial ratios, significant effartd investments are being contemplated
and made in order to define ways to maximize suphgin efficiency. Off balance sheet inventory fio@ag, vendor managed inventory,
supply chain visibility software solutions, diswifion channel skipping, direct to consumer e-cono@eales initiatives, and complex
upstream supply chain collaborative technologypaoelucts that manufacturers seek to help them eelgeeater supply chain efficiency and
return on capital. AMR Research predicts that thepB/ Chain Management Market, which we believéudes the type of products
described above, will increase from $6.7 billior2D01 to nearly $21.1 billion in 2005.

A key business challenge facing many manufactaedsretailers as they evaluate their supply chificiency is in determining how the tre
for consumers to shop via the Internet in an edaitrcommerce fashion will effect their traditiomammerce business model. While many
leading industry experts, like Forrester Resedralie tempered their e-commerce growth trend estsrddwnward over the past year, we
believe that companies will still need to contiriaestrategically plan for the impact that e-comneegind other new technology advancements
will have on their traditional commerce businesglais and their existing technology and infrastrtetapabilities. Forrester Research
predicts that within three years, online commerderaach $6.8 trillion for both business-to-busiseand business-to-consumer transactions.
While the majority of online transactions currentlycur in the United States and North Americahed¢oming years we believe that certain
Asian and European nations will experience sigaiftagrowth in e-commerce transactions as well.

Manufacturers, as buyers of materials, are als@&img new business practices and policies on shgiplier partners in order to shift the
normal supply chain costs and risk associated witentory ownership away from their own balanceettieThrough techniques like Vendor
Managed Inventory ("VMI") or Consigned InventoryoBrams ("CIP"), manufacturers are asking their 8app as a part of the supplier
selection process, to provide capabilities wheeentlanufacturer need not own, or even possess,totyaprior to the exact moment that unit
of inventory is required as a raw material compormeror shipping to a customer. In order to becassful for all parties, business models
such as these often require a sophisticated ciolieof technological capabilities that allow fomaplete integration and collaboration of the
information technology environments of both the érugnd supplier. For example, in order for an in@gnunit to arrive at the precise
required moment in the manufacturing facility sitiecessary for the materials requirement procure(l&dRP") systems of the manufacturer
to integrate with the CRM systems of the suppléhen hundreds of supplier partners are involvad,glocess can become quite complex
and technologically challenging. Buyers and supglége seeking solutions that utilize XML basedageols like Biztalk, RosettaNet and
other traditional EDI standards in order to insameopen systems platform that promotes easier odoipy integration in these collaborative
solutions.

CRM TREND

There is a growing trend among companies in thédwide marketplace to focus on strengthening tiitémgible assets. Intangible assets
be broadly defined as including those assets kktata company's brand, intellectual property, kegwledge based personnel and detailed
knowledge about its customers. CRM is the technajueidespread data collection and relational datse management of detailed
information about an individual customer's habitd desires and utilizing it in such a manner tirautaneously protects the privacy of the
individual, enhances the customer's experience thvélcompany and maximizes the lifetime businefisevaf that customer to the company.
Through the analysis of customer behavior, compacaa tailor their businesses to meet the neetteafustomer and therefore increase
revenues and improve customer service.



To succeed in CRM, companies need an array of déjesito support their business. Maintaining ad@ustomer service staff is only the
beginning. In order to retain and satisfy theirtongers and tailor their business to their cliené2ds, businesses must be able to:

- Capture and record all customer contacts;

- Document abandonment points and view resultaiofi @ustomer interaction;

- Offer a completely integrated view of all custaraetivity;

- Develop an operating and technology infrastriethat can be expanded as volumes increase;

- Offer value-added services through all custoroech-points;

- Utilize the information gathered to profile custers for tailored marketing communications;

- Utilize information gathered to adjust offeringscustomer demand and desire;

- Compile information on individual customers tdieipate most likely up-sell and cross-sell prodgict

- Compile information on the profitability of martkeg to each customer versus their overall profitigtas a customer;
- Apply customer information to increase overalleeue generated;

- Address supply chain management and reconfigurdiised on overall customer information compisedi
- Protect the privacy rights and other desireiefdonsumer.

Based on the need for companies to harness CRMitpeds, analysts expect that CRM solutions devetopmwill be one of the major grow
areas in the economy over the next several yedi& Research predicts the CRM market will increas$37.8 billion in 2005, up from
$14.1 billion in 2001.

OUTSOURCING TREND

In response to growing competitive pressures actthtglogical innovations, we believe many comparbeth large and small, are focusing
their critical resources on the core competendi¢eir business and utilizing business processaarting to accelerate their business pla
a cost-effective manner and to perform non-coréness functions. Outsourcing provides many key fienéncluding the ability to:

- Capitalize on skills, expertise and technolodyastructure that would otherwise be unavailablexgensive given the scale of the business;
- Reduce capital and personnel investments andecbfixed investments to variable costs;

- Increase flexibility to meet changing businessditions and demand for products and services;

- Enhance customer satisfaction and gain competittvantage;

- Improve operating performance and efficiency; and

- Rapidly enter new business markets or geograquieias.

As a result, the market for outsourcing serviceséwperienced significant growth. Internationald@brporation expects that worldwide
spending on outsourcing services will grow to mitwan $151 billion in 2003.

Typically, outsourcing service providers are foaisa a single function, such as information tecbgg) call center management, credit card
processing, warehousing or package delivery. Tddsg creates several challenges for companiesnga&ioutsource more than one of these
functions, including the need to manage multiplesourcing service providers, share information vsithvice providers and integrate that
information



into their internal systems. Additionally, the deliy of these multiple services must be transparetite customer and enable the client to
maintain brand recognition and customer loyalty.

Furthermore, traditional commerce outsourcers r@guiently providers of domestic only services veiisternational solutions. As a result,
companies requiring global solutions must estaldditional relationships with multiple geograpbigsourcing parties.

Another vital point for major brand name comparsiesking to outsource, is the protection of theankc When looking for an outsourcing
partner to provide infrastructure solutions, braathe companies must find a company that is woddschnd can ensure the same quality
performance and superior experience that theioowsts expect from their brands. Working with arsoutcing partner requires finding a
partner that can maintain the consistency of theind image, which is one of the most valuablenigitle assets that recognized brand name
companies possess.

THE PFSWEB SOLUTION
PFSweb serves as the "brand behind the brand’bfapanies seeking to increase the efficienciesl afsplects of their supply chain.

Our value proposition is to become an extensioouofclients' businesses by delivering a superipeggnce to increase and enhance sale
market growth, customer satisfaction and customtention. We act as both a virtual and a physidahstructure for our clients' businesses,
which helps them enhance their traditional commeperations and meet the operational challengesiatsd with the deployment of their
strategic initiatives. Our integrated solutionstdaalients to introduce new products and busipesgrams, and focus on their core business,
products and services without making substantisdstments in fixed assets, information technolggesns, facilities and ongoing person
We offer complete, tailored solutions based arcaicdre infrastructure. Our infrastructure is seasilgintegrated with our clients' systems
thereby making us transparent to our clients' eusts. Our solutions enable our clients to quickig afficiently implement traditional and e-
commerce business initiatives. By utilizing oungegs, our clients are able to:

Quickly Capitalize on Market Opportunities. Ourig@ns empower clients to rapidly implement theipgly chain and @emmerce strategit
and take advantage of opportunities without lengtbggration and implementation efforts. These timhs allow our clients to deliver
consistent quality of service as transaction volsigi®w and to handle daily and seasonal peak peridttough our international locations
and capabilities, our clients can use the broadhrefithe Internet and e-commerce to sell theidpots almost anywhere in the world.

Improve the Customer Experience. We enable ountsli® provide their customers with a positive Ingyéxperience thereby maintaining ¢
promoting brand loyalty. Through our use of advahntezhnology, we can respond directly to customeuiries by e-mail, voice or data
communication and assist them with on-line ordeand product information. We offer our clients sofld class" level of service, including
24-hour, seven-day-a-week Web-enabled customerseavece centers and exceptional order accuracy.

Minimize Investment and Improve Operating Efficigzsc We provide our clients with access to a widayeof services and tailored solutions
that cover a broad spectrum of supply chain infaastire issues, eliminating their need to expendagament time and resources to
coordinate these services from different providBssultilizing our services, our clients can cap#alon our economies of scale and expertise
to grow their business without incurring the sub#d fixed costs necessary to create and mairitein own transaction management
infrastructure. Our clients also have the flextiitio purchase any or all of our offered servicesoading to their transaction volume and
existing transaction management infrastructurédhabthey do not have to invest scarce capital ressuas their business grows.

Access a Sophisticated Technology Infrastructure.pidvide our clients with ready access to a stiphied technology infrastructure
through our Entente Suite, which is designed terfate seamlessly with their systems. We providechents with vital product and custon
information which can be



immediately available to them on their own systéomsise in data mining, analyzing sales and mangetiends, monitoring inventory levels
and performing other management functions.

THE PFSWEB STRATEGY

Our objective is to grow by being an internatiopadvider of integrated business process outsoumadhgtions. As this evolution of our
business model continues, we remain focused toddlefollowing fundamentals:

Focus on quality performance for our existing diseBy providing superior operating results, wedwad we can expand relationships with
existing clients to serve additional product categgand business segments and to provide addisemaces. Our objective is to integrate
ourselves to the point that we become our cligrtgsical infrastructure. Based upon our clients'dse we will continue to introduce new
services and products. We also intend to continmeommitment to invest in state-of-the-art tecloggl equipment and systems to provide
new, high-quality, innovative solutions to our ¢ixig clients and to attract new clients.

Engaging clients with founded business strategiesfimancial stability. We intend to expand our ibess by targeting major brand name
companies with proven and founded business mokatsate seeking to adjust their supply chain sgsate introduce new products or
business programs into their existing businessb@lieve these companies will be the leaders irettidving marketplace, and this focus will
provide us with opportunities to grow along withr @lients' strategic initiatives. We also seekxpand our business within large brand name
retailers seeking to consolidate web and traditioparations or attempting to increase their efficies in their traditional business model
through our streamlined processes.

Hiring, retaining and training high quality proféssals. Our team and their experience are crutéahents in the expansion of our business
because of the uniqueness of analyzing each indiviclient's business case. Hiring and retainiggh lgjuality individuals who can design
expert business solutions for our prospective tdievill allow PFSweb to continue to extend its exise, knowledge, and strategy to potential
clients.

Inventing new technology and operational capabdit\WWe intend to aggressively expand our markenpiall by inventing new technology
and operational capabilities that will clearly diféntiate PFSweb from its competitors. We beliénat tompanies are looking for new
efficiencies that they can utilize to reduce castd save time. Based upon our clients' and praspedtents' needs we will continue to evo
and develop solutions that can produce the mostiymshanges within their organizations.

Controlling overhead costs while focusing on redgaur own excess infrastructure. We intend toiooletour focus on controlling overhead
costs in order to maintain our strong financialifies. Our objective is to seek new business tmebsurrent excess capacity and to reduce
our overhead costs as a percent of revenue. Thithegbuccessful execution of this strategy, itisabjective to create a strong springboard
towards achieving sustainable profitability.

To execute these strategies we may, among othgsthtontinue to incur significant operating andketing expenses, invest in additional
technology infrastructure and continue to maintartain excess capacity. The successful balantea#xecution of these strategies over the
next year, we believe, should result in the fororatf a solid strategic and financial foundationPé-Sweb and provide PFSweb a sustair
and profitable business model for the future. Fenthvith this foundation firmly in place, we carethexpand our overall growth more rapic

See "Risk Factors" for a complete discussion éffiastors related to our ability to achieve ouremhives and fulfill our business strategies.
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PFSWEB SERVICES

We offer a comprehensive and integrated set oflegsiinfrastructure solutions that are tailoreduoclients' specific needs to enable them to
quickly and efficiently implement their supply chatrategies. Our services include:

Technology Collaboration. Specifically for e-commeinitiatives, PFSweb has created the Entente@M), which alludes to the level of
electronic cooperation that is possible when westrat solutions with our clients using this teclugy, and enables everything from order
processing and inventory reporting to total e-commmelesign and implementation. The Entente Suitgpeises three key components --
EntenteDirect(SM), EntenteMessage(SM) and EntenbBid).

EntenteDirect provides customers with a real-tinser-friendly interface between their system an8w&b order processing and related
functions. Using real-time or batch processes, fiatdessage is a file delivery solution for clieasing warehousing and distribution
facilities. EntenteWeb is a one-stop shop for thiire e-commerce process, particularly for compamiggh unusual needs or specific requests
that can't be met by the typical e-commerce devetoy packages. EntenteWeb is particularly focuseshaible global commerce strategies
with its extensive currency and language functiyal

The Entente Suite operates in an open systemsoanvént and features the use of industry-standard Yéviabling customized e-commerce
solutions with minimal changes to a client's or BRP systems, speeding the implementation proéekktionally, by using XML, the
Entente Suite offers companies a more robust eleictinformation transfer option than text file F6PEDI.

Managed Web Hosting and Web Development. We offéghly available and secure managed web hostihgiso that encompasses
complete creation and maintenance of client wedssf®perating with an in-house creative staff, us@mize commerce enabled client sites
to their exact specifications and requirementswik all major brand name companies, consistendiiwthe brand image is vital; therefore,
our design engineers create sites that seamledslyrate and mirror the exact brand image of dentd. Operating on IBM enterprise syst
and utilizing our state of the art Entente Suithtelogy, we can maintain a robust hosting enviremimvhere client sites reside and maintain
and update all necessary infrastructure.

Specifically through the EntenteWeb package, dieain build an e-commerce initiative with relatwlw investment and in a time efficient
manner. EntenteWeb is a complete front-to-backmergerce solution which incorporates components rapfyjom the look of the user
interface to specific business purchasing, wareihguend shipping needs, enabling companies to edfirxact terms what they need their e-
commerce site to do.

Order Management. Our order management solutiandd® clients with interfaces that allow for reah information retrieval, including
information on product orders, shipment, delivengd @austomer history. These solutions are seamlé@gsigrated with our Web-enabled
customer care centers, allowing for the processfragders through shopping cart, phone, fax, nealail, Web chat, and other order receipt
methods. As the information backbone for our tetadply chain solution, order management servicedeaused on a stand alone basis or in
conjunction with our other business infrastructofferings, including customer contact, billing dstdibution services. In addition, for the
business-tdausiness market, our technology platform providearéety of order receipt methods that facilitatenenerce within various stac
of the supply chain. Our systems provide the ahiitit both our clients' and their customers tokrde status of orders at any time. Our
services are transparent to our clients' custoaresare seamlessly integrated with our clientstiratl systems platforms and Web sites. By
synchronizing these activities, we can captureosgtide critical customer information, including:

- Statistical measurements critical to creatingiality customer experience, containing real-timgeoistatus, order exceptions, back order
tracking, soft/hard allocation of product basediorning of online purchase and business rules, dtie bf customer inquiries to purchases,
average order sizes and order response time;



- Business-tdsusiness supply chain management information atiticevaluating inventory positioning, for the pase of reducing invento
turns, product flow through and end-consumer demand

- Reverse logistics information including customesponse and rationale for the return or rotatfoproduct;
- Detailed marketing information about what wasisahd to whom it was sold, by location and prefeegand
- Web traffic reporting showing the number of \ag(thits") received, areas visited, and productsiaformation requested.

Customer Relationship Management. We offer a comalpleustomized CRM solution for clients. Our CRMwtion encompasses a full-scale
customer contact management service offering, dsawe fully integrated customer analysis progrAthcustomer contacts are captured and
customer purchases are documented. $adle reporting on all customer transactions idl@ve for evaluation purposes. Through each of
customer touch-points, information can be analyasd processed for future use in business evaluatidrsupply chain planning.

An important feature of evolving commerce remahes ability for the customer to speak with a livstoumer service representative. Our
customer care services utilize features that iategroice, e-mail, data and Internet chat commutioica to respond to and handle customer
inquiries. Our customer care representatives angargyus questions, acting as virtual represergatof our client's organization, regarding
order status, shipping, billing, returns and prddoformation as well as a variety of other quassioOur Web-enabled customer care
technology identifies each customer contact autmalfit and routes it to the available customer camesentative who is specially certified
in the client's business and products. Our webledatustomer care centers are designed so thaustomer care representatives are capable
of handling many different clients and productsishared environment, thereby creating economygalé denefits for our clients as well as
highly customized dedicated support models thatigeothe ultimate customer experience and bramdaeiement. Our advanced technology
also enables our representatives to up-sell, @esnd inform customers of other products andssapportunities. The Web-enabled
customer care center is fully integrated into taeadnanagement and order processing system, afjdwlinvisibility into customer history

and customer trends. Through this fully integratgstem we are able to provide a complete CRM smiuti

International Fulfillment and Distribution Servicesn integral part of our business process outdngrsolutions is the warehousing and
distribution of inventory owned by our clients. \igrrently have approximately one million square fefavarehouse space domestically and
internationally to store and process our cliemgentory. We receive client inventory in our distrion centers, verify shipment accuracy,
unpack, inspect for damage and generally stockdts the same day. On behalf of our clients, wik, piack and ship their customer orders
and can provide customized packaging, inserts amuiqtional literature for distribution with customarders. Based upon our clients' needs,
we are able to take advantage of a variety of $h¢pand delivery options, including next day seevim addition, an increasingly important
function that we provide for our clients is revessgply chain management. We offer a wide arrgyroéluct return services for our clients,
including issuing return authorizations, receippafduct, crediting credit card accounts, and digpm of returned product.

Our distribution facilities contain computerizedtstg equipment, powered material handling equipmseanning and bar-coding systems
and automated conveyors, in-line scales and diggaderas to photograph shipment contents for automecuracy checking. Our
international distribution complexes include sevadvanced technology enhancements, such as ragjoency technology in product
receiving processing to ensure accuracy, an autzhpEckage routing system and a "pick to light“epkgss order picking system. Our
advanced distribution systems provide us with #y@ability to currently warehouse an extensive nunalbstock keeping units (SKUSs) for ¢
clients ranging from high-end laser printers tonseic compacts. Our facilities are flexibly configd to process business-to-business and
single pick business-to-consumer orders from theeseentral location.
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During the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2001 waechoused, managed and fulfilled approximatelpi$ibn (on an annualized basis) in
client merchandise and transactions. This doesapoesent our revenue, but rather the revenuerafli@nts for whom we provided e-
business infrastructure solutions. See "ManagemBmcussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations."

While the majority of our clients maintain owneysiof their own inventory, we have worked with thjpdrty companies to finance client
inventory as well. PFSweb has years of experiemckealing with the issues related to inventory awhip. We support various client third-
party consigned, vendor consigned and third-pamgniced inventory management programs. It is cuatgtim this arrangement for PFSweb
to manage the entire customer relationship. ThraCigh we utilize technology resources to time #@enishment purchase of inventory with
the simultaneous sale of product to the end udemt&rfaces are done electronically and all pssas regarding the financial transactions are
automated, creating significant supply chain ackges.

PFSweb is experienced in the complex legal, ac@ogiaind governmental control issues that can belésiin the successful implementation
of an off balance sheet inventory program. Our Kedge and experience help clients achieve sup@indbenefits while reducing inventory
carrying costs.

Information Management. We have the ability to caminate with and transfer information to and froar olients through a wide variety of
technologies, including real-time data interfadis transferring and electronic data interchar@ar systems are designed to capture, store
and electronically forward to our clients criticaformation regarding customer inquiries and ordpreduct shipments, inventory levels,
product returns and other information. We mainfaimour clients detailed product master files tbat be seamlessly integrated with their
Web sites. Our systems are capable of providingchemts with customer and order information foe uis analyzing sales and marketing
trends and introducing new products. We also aftestomized reports or data analyses based upoifisgtient needs to assist them in their
budgeting and business decision process.

Billing and Collections Services. We offer securedit and collections services for both businesbtsiness and business-to-consumer
business. We act as virtual and physical finano@hagement department for all potential client seed

Specifically, for business-to-consumer clients,offer secure, redime credit card processing for orders made vikeatWeb site or throuc
our customer contact center. Additionally, we drkedo calculate sales tax, if applicable, for nuoos taxing authorities and on a variety of
products. Using third-party leading-edge fraud @ctibn services and risk management systems, wassame the highest level of security
and the lowest level of risk for client transacton

For business-to-business clients, we offer fullsgeraccounts receivable management and collectipabilities, including the ability to
generate customized computer-generated invoicegriclients' names. We assist clients in reducowpants receivable and days sales
outstanding, while minimizing costs associated withintaining an in-house collections staff. In diddi, we are able to offer electronic credit
services in the format of EDI X12 and XML commuriioas direct from our clients to their vendors, gligrs and retailers.

Professional Consulting Services. As part of tlilereed solution for our clients, we offer a fullaie of experts designated specifically to focus
on our clients’ businesses. They play a consuftaitile in which they provide evaluation, analysid e&ecommendations for the client's
business. This team creates customized soluticthsl@vises plans to be implemented in order to aswefficiencies and produce benefits for
the client.

Comprised of industry experts from top-tier conisgltfirms and industry market leaders, the PFSwelntof professional consultants
provides client service focus and logistics andrittistion expertise. They have built solutions Fartune 1000 and Global 2000 market
leaders in a wide range of industries, includingaapl, technology products, telecommunicationsiaiis, housewares, high-value
collectibles, sporting goods, pharmaceuticals avetisl more. Focusing on the evolving infrastruetueeds of major corporations and their
business initiatives, our team has a solid trackne providing consulting services in the areasupply chain management, distribution and
fulfillment, technology interfacing, logistics aldstomer support.
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CLIENTS AND MARKETING

Our target clients include brand name manufactdoerigng to quickly and efficiently implement busis initiatives or introduce new
products or programs, without the burden of modiydr expanding their order processing and distidbunfrastructure. We also target
retailers seeking to expand their sales throughcteamnels. Our services are available for a mdkitof industries and company types,
including such clients as:

International Business Machines ("IBM") (multiplezidions supplying printer and media supplies imesal geographic areas), Adaptec
(computer accessories), a U.S. Federal GovernmemitalAvaya Communication (formerly the Networkt&rprise Division of Lucent
Technology), Dell, (a computer manufacturer), Enfiemanufacturer of BASF branded data media an@ausual products), Lancome (a
cosmetics division of L'Oreal International), Xergxinters and printer supplies), Thomson multinagéRCA branded televisions and
consumer electronics), Mary Kay Cosmetics (cosmgtieharmacia/Upjohn (pharmaceuticals), NokiaUS#.¢oell phone accessories), and
Hewlett-Packard (printers and computer networkiggigment).

We target clients through a direct sales forcesaimarketing, trade shows and industry conferenade journal advertising, and our Web
site. We also pursue strategic marketing alliang#s consultants and other professional firms tnegate referrals and customer leads.

Our direct sales force is comprised of dedicatéesgarofessionals whose compensation is tied to ditdity to expand our relationships with
existing clients and attract new clients. We alspley highly trained implementation and account agers whose responsibilities include
oversight and supervision of client projects andnta@ing high levels of client satisfaction.

TECHNOLOGY

We maintain advanced management information systamdave automated key business functions usidmpereal-time systems. These
systems enable us to provide our clients infornmationcerning sales, inventory levels, customer gamand other operations that are
essential for our clients to efficiently managertledectronic commerce and supply chain businesgrnams. Our systems are designed to ¢
rapidly in order to handle the transaction progegsiemands of our clients.

We employ technology from a selected group of pastnmany of which are also our clients. For examnpke deploy IBM e-servers and
network printers in appropriate models to run Wigb feinctions as well as order management andidigion functions. We utilize Avaya
Communication for telephone switch and call centanagement functions. We also employ Avaya Comnatioic for our Web-enabled
customer care center to interact with customerseiee, e-mail or chat. Avaya Communication teclgglalso allows us to share Web pages
between customers and our service representatesave the ability to transmit and receive vodsa and video simultaneously on a sil
network connection to a customer to more effecyiwelrve that customer for our client. Clients'iagt in using this technology stems from
ability to allow shoppers to consult with known exjg in a way that the customer chooses prior tolfasing. Our sophisticated computer-
telephony integration has been accomplished by eunthsystems software from IBM and Avaya Commutiaratogether with our own
application development. We use AT&T for our prevahnterprise network and long distance carrierudéeJ.D. Edwards as the software
provider for the primary ERP applications that vge in our operational areas and financial areasu$®eRapistan/Demag for our warehouse
management, automated conveyor and "pick-to-lijht’entory retrieval) systems and Symbol Technasefielxon for our warehouse radio
frequency applications.

Today's business models do not often support thiesfand speed that eBusiness demands, accordingetent study by Forrester Research.
Many internal infrastructures are not sufficienstgport the explosive growth in e-business, e-etatlices, supply chain compression,
distribution channel realignment and the correspundemand for real-time information necessarysfoategic decision-making and product
fulfillment.
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To address this need, we have created the Enteitevéhich is a comprehensive software solutiorthwupporting services and hardware,
that enables companies with little or no e-commaerfrastructure to speed their time to market amdimmze resource investment and risk,
and allows all companies involved to improve thiecefncy of their supply chain. The Entente Sugedmprised of three distinct offerings --
EntenteDirect, EntenteMessage and EntenteWeb ehwdain stand alone or be combined for a fully cugted e-commerce solution
depending on the level of direct involvement a campwants to maintain in their e-commerce initiativ

The components of the Entente Suite provide the pfeform infrastructure that allows us to crezdenplete e-commerce solutions with our
customers. Using the various components of therfemt8uite, we can assist our clients in easilygirsing their Web sites or ERP systems to
our systems for real-time transaction processirtgawit regard for their hardware platform or opemgsystem. This high-level of systems
integration allows our clients to automatically gees orders, customer data and other e-commeareniation. We can also track information
sent to us by the client as it moves through ostesys in the same manner a carrier would traclckaog throughout the delivery process.
Our systems enable us to track, at a detailed,lefermation received, transmission timing, ansoes or special processing required and
information sent back to the client. The transatland management information contained withingystems is made available to the client
quickly and easily through the Entente Suite.

The Entente Suite operates in an open systemsoanvént and features the use of industry-standardl XMssaging in a common message
broker that supports all Entente Suite componéeuditionally, the support of XML messaging in alient and vendor interfaces enables the
creation of customized @@mmerce and fulfillment solutions with minimal clgees to our client's and our client's vendors' ludfike systems
speeding the implementation process. Additionaheativity support is provided for most system ifaees using X.12 and EDIFACT EDI,
native Java and Windows interfaces, and standatdilies via FTP. Our dual system architecture ffeomplete redundancy and high-
availability hardware and software that virtuallin@nates any risk of site failure or disruptioninformation flow to or from our clients e-
commerce site or back office systems. This uniqabitecture also provides a very scaleable e-mpl&ket platform that can easily support
high-volume requirements including seasonal vamieti Additionally, because data and informatiomvfidhrough a direct, centralized,
connection to our client's system, rather than rsg¥anslation points, the Entente Suite offersimam efficiency and real-time information
delivery, reducing opportunities for error.

The Entente Suite serves as a transparent inteidamé back-office productivity suite which is astomized JD Edwards order management
and fulfillment application that runs on IBM e-Sers. It is also designed to integrate with marlateltechnologies offered by major
marketplace software companies.

To enhance our service offerings, we have investadivanced telecommunications, computer telephelegtronic mail and messaging,
automated fax technology, barcode scanning, wisgksshnology, fiber optic network communicationd antomated inventory management
systems. We have also developed and utilize teleuamtations technology that provides for automatistomer call recognition and
customer profile recall for inbound customer sesviepresentatives.

The primary responsibility of our systems develophieam of information technology professionaldiiected at implementing custom
solutions for new clients and maintaining existatignt relationships. Our development team can ptsduce proprietary systems
infrastructure to expand our capabilities in circtamces where we cannot purchase standard solftiomncommercial providers. We also
utilize temporary resources when needed for additicapacity.

Our information technology operations and infrastiige are built on the premise of reliability amdlability. We maintain diesel generators
and uninterruptible power supply equipment to pdlevtonstant availability to computer rooms, cafitees and warehouses. Multiple Internet
service providers and redundant Web servers prdeide high degree of availability to Web sitesttimerface with our systems. Capacity
planning and upgrading is performed regularly tovalfor quick implementation of new clients and avtme-consuming infrastructure
upgrades that could slow growth rates. We also hadisaster recovery plan
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for our information systems and maintain a "hat'sitnder contract with a major provider. Conseqyemte can offer very aggressive service
level agreements to our clients that exceed ingussémndards.

COMPETITION

Many companies offer, on an individual basis, onmore of the same services we do, and we face etiiop from many different sources
depending upon the type and range of services steghby a potential client. Our competitors inclueéetical outsourcers, which are
companies that offer a single function, such alscesiters, public warehouses or credit card praresand many of these companies have
greater capabilities than we do for the functioeytprovide. We also compete against transportabigistics providers who offer product
management functions as an ancillary service tio fhignary transportation services. In many insegour competition is the in-house
operations of our potential clients themselves. ifHeouse operations departments of potential tdieften believe that they can perform the
same services we do, while others are reluctantiteource business functions which involve direttemer contact. We cannot be certain
that we will be able to compete successfully agdhesse or other competitors in the future.

Although many of our competitors can offer one arenof our services, we believe our primary contpretiadvantage is our ability to offer a
wide array of services that cover a broad spectfiescommerce transaction management functions, inojudider processing and shipme
credit card payment and customer service, theryrating any need for our clients to coordindtede services from different providers.
We believe we are unique in offering our cliengghgsical infrastructure for their virtual businésshandle all of their order processing,
customer care service, billing, information managetand product warehousing and distribution needs.

We also compete on the basis of certain additifawdbrs, including:
- operating performance and reliability;

- ease of implementation and integration; and

- price.

We believe that we presently compete favorably weégpect to each of these factors. However, thé&eh&or our services is becoming more
competitive and still evolving, and we may not béeao compete successfully against current angdutompetitors.

EMPLOYEES

As of March 31, 2001, we had 575 full-time employe@ed 14 part-time employees, of which 507 weratkxtin the United States. We are
not a party to any collective bargaining agreemeartd we have never suffered an interruption ofrfass as a result of a labor dispute. We
consider our relationship with our employees tgbed.

Our success in recruiting, hiring and training &argimbers of skilled employees and obtaining lawgabers of hourly employees during p
periods for distribution and call center operatieneritical to our ability to provide high qualitiistribution and support services. Call center
representatives and distribution personnel recieigdback on their performance on a regular basisaappropriate, are recognized for
superior performance or given additional traini@gnerally, our clients provide specific productrtiag for our customer service
representatives and, in certain instances, orch#nt personnel to provide specific technical supplo maintain good employee relations
and to minimize employee turnover, we offer compatipay, hire primarily full-time employees whaeagligible to receive a full range of
employee benefits, and provide employees with clgsible career paths.

REGULATION

Our business may be affected by current and figavernmental regulation. For example, the Intefizet Freedom Act bars state and local
governments from imposing taxes on Internet acoe#isat would

14



subject buyers and sellers of electronic commerdaxation in multiple states. This act is in effd@ough October 2001. If legislation to
extend this act or similar legislation is not eeagctinternet access and sales across the Intemyebensubject to additional taxation by state
and local governments, thereby discouraging pueshaser the Internet and adversely affecting theketdor our services.

SPIN-OFF OF PFSWEB FROM DAISYTEK
History

The PFSweb business unit was formed in 1991 absidsary of Daisytek named "Working Capital of Arioa" whose purpose was to
provide inventory management, direct shipping td-esers, and accounts receivable collections foryBeliscustomers and other third part
Until 1996, this business unit was comprised ofrafiens both at Working Capital of America and ati€ytek. As the business gradually
developed, this business unit recognized an oppitytto expand its business and capitalize on Delsy strengths in customer service, order
management, product fulfillment and distributiondarovide these services on an outsourcing b@sise 1996, the operations of this
business unit have been primarily focused in PFSvieb was formed in 1999 to be a holding company kS and to facilitate the Offering
and spin-off from Daisytek. In December 1999, wmpteted the Offering and entered into various agergs with Daisytek relating to the
spin-off. Under these agreements, the spin-off ezalitioned upon, among other things, the recdiptrling by the Internal Revenue
Service ("IRS") that, among certain other tax congaces of the transaction, the spin-off qualifya aax-free distribution for U.S. federal
income tax purposes and not result in the recanitf taxable gain or loss for U.S. federal incdmepurposes to Daisytek or its
shareholders (the "IRS Ruling™). On June 8, 20(disiek received the IRS Ruling and the Daisytedrbmf directors approved the spin-off
and authorized the distribution of 14,305,000 shafePFSweb common stock to the holders of Daisgtekmon stock. The distribution was
made at the close of business on July 6, 2000 teyfe&k stockholders of record as of June 19, 2000.

PFSweb's Relationship With Daisytek

At the time of the Offering, PFSweb and Daisyteteesd into various agreements providing for theasgion of their respective business
operations. These agreements govern various intmthongoing relationships between the compamekjding the transaction management
services that PFSweb provides for Daisytek, thesftmnal services that Daisytek provides to PFSeaumd a tax indemnification and
allocation agreement which governs the allocatiotax liabilities and sets forth provisions wittspect to other tax matters.

All of the agreements between PFSweb and Daisytrk wade in the context of a parent-subsidiantiogiship and were negotiated in the
overall context of the spin-off. Although we gerigréelieve that the terms of these agreementgsamsistent with fair market values, there
can be no assurance that the prices charged eadh company under these agreements are not liglwver than the prices that may be
charged by, or to, unaffiliated third parties fon#ar services.

Master Separation Agreement

The Master Separation Agreement sets forth theeagzats between PFSweb and Daisytek with respéieetprincipal corporate transactions
required to effect the transfers of assets andhgsisons of liabilities necessary to separate th8W&b business unit from Daisytek and cel
other agreements governing this relationship thtrea

Transfer of Assets and Liabilities. Following comidbn of the Offering, Daisytek transferred to PEE®vall of the fixed assets in Daisytek's
Memphis distribution facility as well as certairsats associated with providing information techggleervices and the stock of several
subsidiaries of Daisytek representing the busingssations of PFSweb, and PFSweb transferred eyl approximately $5 million in ca
and assumed approximately $0.3 million of capgakk obligations, as well as the operating leakgadions related to these assets. PFSweb
also repaid to Daisytek, from the net proceedfiefQffering, the aggregate
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sum of approximately $27 million, representing thistanding balance of PFSweb's intercompany payalDaisytek.

Indemnification. PFSweb agreed to indemnify Daikygainst any losses, claims, damages or lialsildigsing from the liabilities transferred
to PFSweb and the conduct of the PFSweb busintsstia¢ completion of the Offering. Daisytek agréedetain, and indemnify PFSweb
against, any losses, claims, damages or liabiltiessng from the conduct of the PFSweb business iy the completion of the Offering.

Initial Public Offering and Distribution Agreement

General. PFSweb and Daisytek entered into an lIifitialic Offering and Distribution Agreement whigbverns their respective rights and
duties with respect to the Offering and the spify-#afid sets forth certain covenants to which thélybg bound for various periods following
the Offering and the spin-off.

Preservation of the Tax-free Status of the Spiné#isytek has received a private letter rulingrfrilie Internal Revenue Service to the effect
that the spin-off qualify as a tax-free distributionder Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Codeaisytek and its stockholders. In
connection with obtaining such ruling, certain esgantations and warranties were made regardinytekjPFSweb and their respective
businesses. PFSweb has also agreed to certainasusehat are intended to preserve the tax-fréesstd the spin-off. These covenants
include:

Certain Acquisition Transactions. Until two yeafteathe completion of the spin-off, PFSweb hasadrnot to enter into or permit any
transaction or series of transactions that woudltén a person or persons acquiring or havingitie to acquire shares of its capital stock
that would comprise 50% or more of either the valfiall outstanding shares of its capital stockhertotal combined voting power of its
outstanding voting stock.

Continuation of Active Trade or Business. Until tyears after the completion of the spin-off, PFSWwab agreed to continue to conduct its
active trade or business (within the meaning oti8e&55 of the Code) as it was conducted immeljigeor to the completion of the spin-
off. During such time, PFSweb has agreed not to:

- liquidate, dispose of or otherwise discontinue ¢bnduct of any substantial portion of its acthnegle or business; or

- dispose of any business or assets that woulcegats be operated in a manner inconsistent inraaterial respect with the business
purposes for the spin-off as described in the smpT@tions made in connection with Daisytek's regioe the IRS Ruling.

Continuity of Business. Until two years after thmmpletion of the spin-off, PFSweb has agreed thaiili not voluntarily dissolve or
liquidate; and, except in the ordinary course dfibesss, neither it nor any of its direct or indiregbsidiaries will sell, transfer, or otherwise
dispose of or agree to dispose of assets (inclualiygshares of capital stock of its subsidiarika},tin the aggregate, constitute more than
60% of its assets.

Intracompany Debt. Until two years after the cortipleof the spin-off, PFSweb will not be able tosbany indebtedness to Daisytek, other
than payables arising in the ordinary course ofrtass.

These covenants will not prohibit PFSweb from impdeéting or complying with any transaction permittgdan IRS ruling or a tax opinion.

Other Covenants Regarding Tax Treatment of thesketions. Daisytek intends the transfer of asgetdiabilities from Daisytek to PFSweb
as provided by the master separation agreementiatribution”) to qualify as a reorganization endbection 368(a)(1)(D) of the Code (a
"D Reorganization"). Until two years after the cdatjon of the spin-off, PFSweb has agreed notlte,tar permit any of our subsidiaries to
take, any actions or enter into any transactiogeoies of transactions that would be reasonabéito jeopardize the tax-free status of the
spin-off or the qualification of the Contribution as aR2organization, including any action or transacttmat would be reasonably likely to
inconsistent with any representation
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made in connection with Daisytek's request forlR@ Ruling. PFSweb has also agreed to take anpmah$ actions necessary for the
Contribution and the spin-off to qualify as a D Rgmization.

Cooperation on Tax Matters. PFSweb and Daisytek lagveed to various procedures with respect ttatheelated covenants described
above, and PFSweb is required to notify Daisytékdesires to take any action prohibited by themeenants. Upon such notification, if
Daisytek determines that such action might jeoparttie tax-free status of the spin-off or the digaliion of the Contribution as a D
Reorganization, Daisytek will either use all comaiglty reasonable efforts to obtain a private lettding from the IRS or a tax opinion that
would permit PFSweb to take the desired actiorrovige all reasonable cooperation to PFSweb in eotion with PFSweb obtaining such
IRS ruling or tax opinion. In either case, Daisyhals agreed to bear the reasonable costs and esp&nsbtaining the IRS ruling or tax
opinion, unless it is determined that PFSweb's gseg action will jeopardize the tax-free statuthefspin-off or the qualification of the
Contribution as a D Reorganization, in which ev@RSweb will be responsible for such costs and esgmn

Indemnification for Tax Liabilities. PFSweb has geally agreed to indemnify Daisytek and its afféisagainst any and all tax-related losses
incurred by Daisytek in connection with any progbtax assessment or tax controversy with respetietgpin-off or the Contribution to the
extent caused by any breach by it of any of itseggntations, warranties or covenants. If PFSwabesathe spin-off to not qualify as a tax-
free distribution, Daisytek would incur federal @amse tax (which currently would be imposed at a 38%) and possibly state income taxes
on the gain inherent in the shares distributedciviarould be based upon the market value of theeshafrPFSweb at the time of the spin-off.
This indemnification does not apply to actions thatsytek permits PFSweb to take as a result @terchination under the tax-related
covenants as described above. Similarly, Daisyéskagreed to indemnify PFSweb and its affiliatesres any and all tax-related losses
incurred by it in connection with any proposed &asessment or tax controversy with respect togimed§f or the Contribution to the extent
caused by any breach by Daisytek of any of itsesgmtations, warranties or covenants.

Other Indemnification. PFSweb has generally agteeddemnify Daisytek and its affiliates againdtlilbilities arising out of any material
untrue statements and omissions in PFSweb's priospaed the registration statement of which it et and in any and all registration
statements, information statements and/or othemrdeats filed with the SEC in connection with thespff or otherwise. However,
PFSweb's indemnification of Daisytek does not applynformation relating to Daisytek. Daisytek tegeed to indemnify PFSweb for this
information.

Expenses. In general, PFSweb agreed to pay subfiiaall costs and expenses relating to the Ofiggrincluding the underwriting discounts
and commissions, and Daisytek agreed to pay sufztamll costs and expenses relating to the sgfn-

Tax Matters

Daisytek and PFSweb have entered into a tax inderation and allocation agreement to govern thecallion of tax liabilities and to set fo
agreements with respect to certain other tax nsatter

Under the Code, PFSweb ceased to be a member Dhikgtek consolidated group upon the completiothefspin-off.

Daisytek generally will pay all taxes attributabdePFSweb and its subsidiaries for tax periodsootigns thereof ending on or before the
effective date of the Offering, except to the ektarany accruals thereof on the books and recof¢d-Sweb or its subsidiaries for such taxes
under generally accepted accounting principlesr&dfeer, for tax periods or portions thereof dunmvigich PFSweb was a member of the
Daisytek consolidated, combined or unitary groupSW®eb was apportioned its share of the group'sniecax liability based on its taxable
income determined separately from Daisytek's taxatdome, and PFSweb paid its calculated taxestsyiek, which will then file a
consolidated, combined or unitary return with tpprapriate tax authorities. There may be certal. Gtate or local jurisdictions in which
PFSweb will file separate income tax returns, mohbined or consolidated with Daisytek, for suchpgaxiods. In that
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circumstance, PFSweb would file a tax return wlith appropriate tax authorities, and pay all taxesctly to the tax authority. PFSweb will
be compensated for tax benefits generated by d@réeéx deconsolidation and used by the Daisytekaidated group. PFSweb will prepare
and file all tax returns, and pay all income tasges with respect to all tax returns required tdilee by it for all tax periods after it ceased to
be a member of the Daisytek consolidated, combimeathitary group.

Daisytek is responsible for most U.S. tax adjustsmeslated to PFSweb for all periods or portioresebf ending on or before the effective
date of the Offering. In addition, PFSweb and Dikyhave agreed to cooperate in any tax audiigation or appeals that involve, directly or
indirectly, periods prior to the time that PFSwelaged to be a member of the Daisytek consolidataggPFSweb and Daisytek have agreed
to indemnify each other for tax liabilities resaffifrom the failure to cooperate in such auditigydtion or appeals, and for any tax liability
resulting from the failure to maintain adequateords.

Notwithstanding the tax allocation agreement, fbpariods in which Daisytek owned 80% or more &Sweb's capital stock, PFSweb will
included in Daisytek's consolidated group for fadl@xcome tax purposes. If Daisytek or other memsloéithe consolidated group fail to me
any federal income tax payments, PFSweb will Hadidor the shortfall since each member of a cadatéd group is liable for the group's
entire tax obligation.

Under the tax indemnification and allocation agreatnDaisytek has agreed to indemnify PFSweb agaimstaxes resulting from the failure
of the spin-off to qualify for tax-free treatmenkcept that PFSweb will be liable for, and will @mnify Daisytek against, any taxes resulting
from the failure of the spin-off to qualify for tefree treatment if it is the result of PFSweb engggdn a "Prohibited Action" or the occurrer
of a "Disqualifying Event." Neither PFSweb nor Ddék have the option to rescind the spin-off ia liability results.

A "Prohibited Action" is defined as:
- if PFSweb takes any action which is inconsisteith the tax treatment of the spin-off as contertgalan the IRS Ruling; or

- if, prior to the spin-off, PFSweb issued sharkstock or took any other action that would regulit not being controlled by Daisytek within
the meaning of Section 368(c) of the Code.

A "Disqualifying Event" includes any event involgrthe direct or indirect acquisition of the shase®FSweb's capital stock after the spffi-
which has the effect of disqualifying the spin-isim tax-free treatment, whether or not the evenheé result of our direct action or within
PFSweb's control.

Transaction Management Services Agreement

PFSweb and Daisytek entered into a transaction geanent services agreement which sets forth thedrdion management services that
PFSweb provides for Daisytek. Under this agreenterweb provided a wide range of transaction manageservices, including
information management, order fulfillment and dimition, product warehousing, inbound call centaviges, product return administration
and other services.

As described in "Sale of Assets to Daisytek," @ffecMay 2001, Daisytek and PFSweb terminated ridwesaction management services
agreement. This termination did not affect the taxisarrangements with IBM. See "Historical Finaid¢Presentation."

As part of the restructuring of PFSweb's arrangaseith IBM, PFSweb has also entered into traneaathanagement agreements with
Daisytek to provide transaction management servares worldwide basis, in connection with Daisygekistribution of various IBM
products. Under these agreements, PFSweb receingsesfees based upon a variable percent of Delsygross profit arising from its IBM
product sales. These agreements are coterminons®®Bweb's IBM agreements which, have scheduleida¢iom dates through September
2001, although IBM may terminate these agreemedrdnyatime. Daisytek has indicated that it doesini@nd to continue distributing IBM
product under these agreements
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after their scheduled expiration date. We are atireliscussing with IBM the continuation of them@angements and have received a lett
intent from IBM to extend such agreements with R&t3wo years subject to obtaining satisfactoryafining. There can be no assurance that
these discussions will be successful or that aangements with IBM will continue or, if they comtie, any of the terms thereof. It is poss
that new arrangements with IBM may involve cash eotments by the Company, new third party financiamgpint venture with a new mas
distributor or direct ownership by the Companyha tBM products. We believe that through one oséhfinancing arrangements, we will be
able to continue to earn revenues in the futurecated with selling or providing services relatedBM product.

Transition Services Agreement

Upon completion of the Offering, Daisytek and PFBwatered into a transition services agreementebtitis agreement, Daisytek provided
PFSweb with various services relating to employeagql and benefits, use of facilities, and othéménistrative services. Daisytek provided
PFSweb with these services until the completiothefspin-off (the "Transition Period"), except thaith respect to any particular service,
PFSweb may, upon notice to Daisytek, either terteittze Transition Period as of an earlier datextered the Transition Period for up to one
year from the completion of the Offerir

The agreement required PFSweb to use all commigrogglisonable efforts to obtain these transitionises from a source other than Dais)
prior to the conclusion of the Transition Peridgdhbwever, PFSweb cannot obtain any transitiomiserfrom a source other than Daisytek
and the transition service was necessary for PFSwebntinue to operate its business, then, PFSmabrequire Daisytek to continue to
provide the transition service for an additionalige not to exceed six months.

Generally, PFSweb paid Daisytek for these tramsiiervices an amount equal to the cost historiedlgcated by Daisytek to PFSweb's
business, adjusted to reflect any changes in theeyacost or level of the services so provided®HSweb required Daisytek to provide it with
any transition service after the expiration of Tmansition Period, PFSweb paid Daisytek the fairkmavalue of these services.

Daisytek is no longer providing services to PFSweber this transition services agreement.
Substitute Stock Options

In connection with the completion of the spin-@fl, outstanding Daisytek stock options were repdaséh substitute stock options as
described below:

Options held by Daisytek employees who were transfieto PFSweb were replaced (at the option halédg’ction) with either options to
acquire shares of PFSweb common stock or optioasduire shares of both Daisytek common stock &&ieb common stock (which may
be exercised separately) (the "Unstapled Optioi®gjions held by Daisytek employees who remaingl @aisytek were replaced (at the
option holder's election) with either options tguaice shares of Daisytek common stock or Unstaflptions.

In general, the adjustments to the outstandingybalisoptions were established pursuant to a forrdatigned to ensure that: (1) the
aggregate "intrinsic value" (i.e. the differencévilmen the exercise price of the option and the etgrkice of the common stock underlying
option) of the substitute options did not exceadabgregate intrinsic value of the outstanding Yaaisstock option which was replaced by
such substitute option immediately prior to thenspiif, and (2) the ratio of the exercise price ale option to the market value of the
underlying stock immediately before and after thim®ff was preserved.

Substantially all of the other terms and conditioheach substitute stock option, including thestian times when, and the manner in which,
each option will be exercisable, the duration ef ¢ixercise period, the permitted method of exersisittiement and payment, the rules that
will apply in the event of the termination of emytoent of the employee, the events, if any, that giag rise to an employee's right to
accelerate the vesting or the time or exerciseetifeand the vesting provisions, are the same agtbbthe replaced Daisytek stock option,
except that option holders who are employed byaamepany will be permitted to
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exercise, and will be subject to all of the termd provisions of, options to acquire shares inaiteer company as if such holder was an
employee of such other company.

No adjustment or replacement was made to outstgriRliisweb stock options as a result of the-off.
Sale of Assets to Daisytek

In May 2001, we sold to Daisytek certain of ouredssised to provide transaction management semadeaisytek and its subsidiaries for a
purchase price of $11 million ($10 million of whigras paid at closing and $1 million is payable avsix month period subject to certain
potential offsets). As part of this transactionjdytek and PFSweb terminated the transaction manegieservices agreement described
above. As part of this transaction, we and Daisgtaiered into a six-month (subject to optional vesis) transition services agreement under
which we agreed to provide Daisytek with certaifoimation technology transition services for a nibnservice fee, subject to satisfactiol
certain performance criteria.
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RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and operatinglltesould be adversely affected by any of theofelhg factors, in which event the trading
price of our common stock could decline, and youlddose part or all of your investment. The rigkal uncertainties described below are
the only ones that we face. Additional risks andaustainties not presently known to us, or that weently think are immaterial, may also
impair our business operations.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
Our financial information for periods prior to f@c2001 may not be representative of our results separate company.

The financial information for periods prior to fal2001 included in this Form 10-K may not reflettat our results of operations, financial
position and cash flows would have been had we hesmparate, stand-alone entity during the pepoelsented or what our results of
operations, financial position and cash flows Wwélin the future. This is because:

- we made certain adjustments and allocations $daigytek did not account for us as, and we weteperated as, a single stand-alone
business for the periods presented; and

- the information does not reflect many significahiinges that occurred in our funding and opersitiana result of our new agreements with
IBM and our separation from Daisytek.

We cannot assure you that the adjustments andatibds we made in preparing our historical consdéd financial statements appropriately
reflect our operations during such periods as ifwad, in fact, operated as a stand-alone entityhatt the actual effect of our separation from
Daisytek would have been. Accordingly, we cannstuas you that our historical results of operatiaresindicative of our future operating or

financial performance.

Our revenue is dependent upon our clients' busimedproduct sales; all of our client agreemergseminable by the client at will.

Our revenue is primarily transaction based andflutituate with the volume of transactions or lesesales of the products by our clients for
which we provide transaction management servi€¢ege lare unable to retain existing clients or attreew clients or if we dedicate signific:
resources to clients whose business does not dersetiastantial transactions or whose products tgemerate substantial customer sales
business may be materially adversely affecteddtition, generally all of our agreements with olierits are terminable by the client at will.
Therefore, we cannot assure you that any of oantdiwill continue to use our services for any gaiof time.

In particular, after giving effect to the termiratiof our transaction management services agreemgnbaisytek, it is estimated that
approximately 21% of our revenue will be deriveahfirour existing arrangements with IBM and Daisytékder these arrangements,
Daisytek acts as a distributor of various IBM protdu These arrangements have various scheduledhapidates through September 2001
and are otherwise generally terminable at will. 99tk has indicated that it does not intend toicoetto distribute these products under tt
arrangements after their scheduled expiration dslfesare currently discussing with IBM the contitioa of these arrangements and have
received a letter of intent from IBM to extend sagreements with PFS for two years subject to oltgisatisfactory financing. There can be
no assurance that these discussions will be siotesshat our arrangements with IBM will continoe, if they continue, any of the terms
thereof. It is possible that new arrangements Wt may involve cash commitments by the Companyy ti@rd party financing, a joint
venture with a new master distributor or direct evahip by the Company of the IBM products. We helithat through one of these financ
arrangements, we will be able to continue to eamemues in the future associated with selling owipling services related to IBM product.
addition, for an interim period, it is estimateatti 3% of our revenue will be derived from a
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transition services agreement with Daisytek undaictvour fees are subject to potential offsetdgragifrom performance criteria and other
factors.

We anticipate incurring significant expenses inftihreseeable future, which may reduce our profiitgbi

In order to reach our business growth objectivesewpect to incur significant operating and marigxpenses, as well as capital
expenditures, during the next several years. |erai@ offset these expenses, we will need to gémsignificant additional revenue. If our
revenue grows more slowly than we anticipate ouif operating and marketing expenses exceed o@ctaons, we may not generate
sufficient revenue to be profitable or be ableustain or increase profitability on a quarterlyaorannual basis in the future.

Our systems may not accommodate significant gramvtur number of clients.

Our success depends on our ability to handle & langnber of transactions for many different cligntgarious product categories. We expect
that the volume of transactions will increase digantly as we expand our operations. If this oscadditional stress will be placed upon the
network hardware and software that manages ouatipes. We cannot assure you of our ability toogffitly manage a large number of
transactions. If we are not able to maintain arr@mpate level of operating performance, we mayeli®y a negative reputation and our
business would be materially adversely affected.

Because we must always have sufficient capacitymag enter into disadvantageous contracts.

We expect that the number of transactions and mtedbat we handle will continue to grow in theulet In order to ensure that we are ab
handle such additional transactions and produasnay be required to locate and obtain additiaaeilifies, including warehouse space, and
acquire additional systems and equipment. If waestanate the facilities and systems capacity weatequire, we may be obligated to pay
for more capacity than we actually use, resultmguir incurring costs without corresponding rever@enversely, if we underestimate our
capacity needs, we may be unable to provide thessacy services for our clients or may be requivesbtain additional capacity through
more expensive means. The occurrence of eithéresktsituations could significantly reduce our apeg margins and adversely affect our
business.

We face competition from many sources that coulceeskly affect our business.

Many companies offer, on an individual basis, onmore of the same services we do, and we face etiiop from many different sources
depending upon the type and range of services steghby a potential client. Our competitors inclueéetical outsourcers, which are
companies that offer a single function, such alscesiters, public warehouses or credit card praresand many of these companies have
greater capabilities than we do for the functiceytprovide. We also compete against transportabigistics providers who offer product
management functions as an ancillary service tio fhignary transportation services. In many insegour competition is the in-house
operations of our potential clients themselves. ifHeouse operations departments of potential tdieften believe that they can perform the
same services we do, while others are reluctantiteource business functions which involve direittemer contact. We cannot be certain
that we will be able to compete successfully agdhesse or other competitors in the future.

Our sales and implementation cycles are highlyaldei and may cause our operating results to valglwi

The sales cycle for our services is variable, ibfaranging between a few weeks to several mofitdm initial contact with the potential
client to the signing of a contract. Occasiona#lies require substantially more time. Delays incatiag client contracts may affect our
revenue and cause our operating results to varglyitiVe believe that a potential client's decigimpurchase our services is discretionary,
involves a significant commitment of its resourees is influenced by intense internal and extepniging and operating comparisons. To
successfully sell our services, we generally mdstate our potential clients regarding the uselsmfit of our services, which can require
significant time and resources. Consequently, #réod between initial contact and the purchaseuofservices is often long and subject to
delays associated with the
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lengthy approval and competitive evaluation proesdbat typically accompany significant operatiahedisions. Additionally, the time
required to implement our systems and integratevaclient can range from several weeks to many hsodelays in integrating new clients
may affect our revenue and cause our operatindtsaswary widely.

We are dependent on our key personnel, and wetodete and retain skilled personnel to sustainbusginess.

Our performance is highly dependent on the contirservices of our executive officers and other gessonnel, the loss of any of whom
could materially adversely affect our businessaddition, we need to attract and retain other Rigihilled technical and managerial persot
for whom there is intense competition. We cannetiesyou that we will be able to attract and reth@personnel necessary for the
continuing growth of our business. Our inabilityaitract and retain qualified technical and managpersonnel would materially adversely
affect our ability to maintain and grow our busisies

We are subject to risks associated with our int@nal operations.

A significant component of our business strategyp isontinue to operate and expand internation®g.currently operate a 150,000 square
foot distribution center in Liege, Belgium. We cahassure you that we will be successful in expamdéito additional international markets.

In addition to the uncertainty regarding our apitib generate revenue from foreign operations aparmed our international presence, there are
risks inherent in doing business internationathgluiding:

- changing regulatory requirements;

- legal uncertainty regarding foreign laws, tardéfsd other trade barriers;
- political instability;

- potentially adverse tax consequences;

- foreign currency fluctuations; and

- cultural differences.

Any one or more of these factors may materiallyemggly affect our business in a number of wayd) sisdncreased costs, operational
difficulties and reductions in revenue.

We are uncertain about our need for and the avkiijabf additional funds beyond the funds raisadhe Offering.

Our future capital needs are difficult to predidte may require additional capital in order to taklvantage of unanticipated opportunities,
including strategic alliances and acquisitionstoarespond to changing business conditions andtiai@ated competitive pressures.
Additionally, funds from operations may be lessthaticipated. Should these circumstances arisenayeneed to raise additional funds
either by borrowing money or issuing additional iggu/Ne cannot assure you that we will be ablesise such funds on favorable terms or at
all. We currently do not have any credit facilityplace under which we can borrow funds when nedfleg: are unable to obtain additional
funds, we may be unable to take advantage of ngertymities or take other actions that otherwisghthbe important to our business.

We may engage in future strategic alliances or ia@tepns that could dilute our existing stockholsletause us to incur significant expenses or
harm our business.

We may review strategic alliance or acquisition appnities that would complement our current bussner enhance our technological
capabilities. Integrating any newly acquired busges, technologies or services may be expensivéraaeconsuming. To finance any
acquisitions, it may be necessary for us to raightianal funds through public or private financid\dditional funds may not be available on
terms that are favorable to us and, in the casgoity financings, may result in dilution to ouositholders. In addition, we
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have limited ability to issue capital stock durihg two-year period following the spin-off. We magt be able to operate any acquired
businesses profitably or otherwise implement oongh strategy successfully. If we are unable tegnate any newly acquired entities or
technologies effectively, our operating resultsldauffer. Future acquisitions by us could alsaleis incremental expenses and the
incurrence of debt and contingent liabilities, oratization of expenses related to goodwill anceothtangibles, any of which could harm
operating results.

Our business could be adversely affected by amsste equipment failure, whether our own or of dignts.

Our operations are dependent upon our ability ¢deot our distribution facilities, customer servaanters, computer and telecommunications
equipment and software systems against damageadne$§. Damage or failures could result from fjewer loss, equipment malfunctions,
system failures, natural disasters and other caddtt®ugh we believe we have sufficient propenty dusiness interruption insurance, if our
business is interrupted either from accidents eiitttentional acts of others, our business coulchaeerially adversely affected. In addition
the event of widespread damage or failures atailities, our shorterm disaster recovery and contingency plans aswurémce coverage m
not be sufficient.

Our clients' businesses may also be harmed fronswstgm or equipment failures we experience. Iheliant, our relationship with these
clients may be adversely affected, we may losectiokants, our ability to attract new clients maydulversely affected and we could be
exposed to liability.

Interruptions could also result from the intentibaets of others, like "hackers." If our systems penetrated by computer hackers, or if
computer viruses infect our systems, our computeudd fail or proprietary information could be npgmopriated.

If our clients suffer similar interruptions in tha&perations, for any of the reasons discussedeabpfor others, our business could also be
adversely affected. Many of our clients' computettams interface with our own. If they suffer imtgations in their systems, the link to our
systems could be severed and sales of their predoald be slowed or stopped.

A breach of our e-commerce security measures aedldce demand for our services.

A requirement of the continued growth of e-commesdiie secure transmission of confidential infaioraover public networks. A party
who is able to circumvent our security measuresdcolisappropriate proprietary information or intgst our operations. Any compromise or
elimination of our security could reduce demanddor services.

We may be required to expend significant capital afther resources to protect against security besaor to address any problem they may
cause. Because our activities involve the storaget@nsmission of proprietary information, sucttialit card numbers, security breaches
could damage our reputation and expose us totiibigand possible liability. Our security measumesy not prevent security breaches, and
failure to prevent security breaches may disruptoperations.

RISKS RELATED TO DAISYTEK
For an interim period, we depend on Daisytek feigaificant portion of our revenue.

As part of the asset sale to Daisytek describeda@hee will be providing information technology tistion services for Daisytek under a six-
month agreement (with optional renewal periods)imuthis period, the fees generated under thisexgent are estimated to be
approximately 13% of our revenue. Our fees underafreement are subject to certain offsets arisfaetion of certain performance criteria.

We have potential liability to Daisytek for tax iminification obligations.

Under the terms of our tax indemnification and @diion agreement with Daisytek, we will indemnifgiBytek for any tax liability it suffers
arising out of our actions, or certain actions tdch we are a party that
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may exist, before or after the spin-off that woci#dise the spin-off to lose its qualification asafree distribution for federal income tax
purposes. These actions include any event involtfiegacquisition of the shares of our capital st@it&r the spin-off which has the effect of
disqualifying the spin-off from tax-free treatmewtiether or not the event is the result of ouraliegtion or within our control. If we cause
the spin-off to not qualify as a tax-free distriloat Daisytek would incur federal income tax (whairrently would be imposed at a 35%
rate), and possibly state income taxes on theigharent in the shares distributed, which wouldased upon the market value of the
PFSweb shares at the time of the spin-off. In tlentthat we are required to indemnify Daisytekaspect of this liability, it would have a
material adverse effect on our cash flow and bgsiogerations.

We have potential liability for Daisytek's tax ajations.

For all periods in which Daisytek owned 80% or mofeur capital stock, we are included in Daisydaionsolidated group for federal inco
tax purposes. If Daisytek or other members of thesolidated group fail to make any federal incomepayments, we would be liable for the
shortfall since each member of a consolidated gislipble for the group's entire tax obligation.

We have limited ability to issue common stock after spin-off.

In order for the spin-off to be tax-free to Daidytend Daisytek's stockholders, we agreed to celitaitations upon our issuance of capital
stock during the two-year period after the spin-sffch as issuing an additional amount of our ahpibck in a single transaction or series of
transactions related to the spin-off which, whembimed with the common stock issued in the offeracwuld cause a 50% or greater change
in the vote or value of our outstanding capitatktd hese restrictions may impede our ability tmptete transactions using our capital stock
or to attract qualified persons to become offiaerdirectors.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRY
If the trend toward outsourcing does not contirowg, business will be adversely affected.

Our business could be materially adversely affeiftéte trend toward outsourcing declines or regey®r if corporations bring previously
outsourced functions back in-house. Particulariyrdugeneral economic downturns, businesses mag lm-house previously outsourced
functions in order to avoid or delay layoffs.

Our market is subject to rapid technological chamge to compete we must continually enhance ouesysto comply with evolving
standards.

To remain competitive, we must continue to enhamzkimprove the responsiveness, functionality @adufres of our services and the
underlying network infrastructure. If we are unatlexdapt to changing market conditions, clienunements or emerging industry standa
our business could be adversely affected. Therlateand e-commerce are characterized by rapid ¢dmfical change, changes in user
requirements and preferences, frequent new pradhetservice introductions embodying new technobgied the emergence of new indu:
standards and practices that could render our tdoty and systems obsolete. Our success will dgpenhrt, on our ability to both

internally develop and license leading technologpesnhance our existing services and develop eewices. We must continue to address
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs otbents and respond to technological advances aratging industry standards and practices
on a cost-effective and timely basis. The develagtroé proprietary technology involves significaathnical and business risks. We may falil
to develop new technologies effectively or to adaptproprietary technology and systems to cliequirements or emerging industry
standards.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR STOCK
Our common stock is subject to possible delistiogifNasdag.

The closing price of our common stock on the Naddatijpnal Market on June 25, 2001 was $0.94. Irethent the price of our common
stock is below $1.00 for 30 consecutive tradingsjaye are subject to a
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delisting determination from Nasdag. In such evemstwould expect to list our common stock on theO®ulletin Board or another quotati
system or exchange on which our shares would gqudlife delisting of our common stock could haveaerial adverse effect on the market
price of, and the efficiency of the trading marf@t our common stock.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, ohaseholder rights plan and Delaware law make fiadift for a third party to acquire us,
despite the possible benefit to our stockholders.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation, diylaws, our shareholder rights plan and Delawanedould make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire us, even if doing so would be fiera to our stockholders. For example, our castife of incorporation provides for a
classified board of directors, meaning that onlgragimately one-third of our directors will be sabj to re-election at each annual
stockholder meeting. Our certificate of incorpasatalso permits our Board of Directors to issue anmore series of preferred stock which
may have rights and preferences superior to thbdea@ommon stock. The ability to issue prefestatk could have the effect délaying ot
preventing a third party from acquiring us. We haiso adopted a shareholder rights plan. Thesdgiwog could discourage takeover
attempts and could materially adversely affectptiee of our stock.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our PFSweb business is headquartered in a ceffficd tacility located in Plano, Texas, a Dalladbstb.

In the U.S., after giving effect to the sale ofeisdo Daisytek, we operate an approximately dightred thousand square foot central
distribution complex in Memphis, Tennessee. Thinplex is located approximately four miles from ¥Memphis International Airport,
where both Federal Express and United Parcel Seogerate large hub facilities.

We also operate a 150,000 square foot distributéter in Liege, Belgium, which has many of the satvanced distribution systems and
equipment as in our Memphis complex. We also mairgavarehouse and customer care center in Tor@atieada under a short-term
arrangement expiring in September 2001. We cuyrenxibect to relocate this facility to another lagatin Toronto. We operate customer
service centers in Memphis, Tennessee; Plano, T&easnto, Canada; and Liege, Belgium. Our callteetechnology permits the automatic
routing of calls to available customer service espntatives in several of our call centers.

All of our facilities are leased and the materégsdde agreements contain one or more renewal options
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is listed and trades on the NaStack Market under the symbol "PFSW." The follogvtable sets forth for the period
indicated the high and low sale price for the commstmck as reported by the Nasdag National Market:

Fiscal Year 2000
Third Quarter........ccoeeeeveveeiciiiiiiieees
Fourth Quarter...........cccccovveveeveneeen.n.
Fiscal Year 2001
First Quarter..........ocoovevvvveveeeeneenennn.
Second QUANEr......cccoevvvveeviiecieeeeeeee $5 $159/64
Third Quarter......cccoveeeeviiiieceiiieeees $211/16 $ 17/32
Fourth Quarter......ccccccovvvveeeevciieeeeeees $119/32 $ 21/32

......... $52 11/16 $315/8
......... $403/8 $12

......... $171/8 $37/8

As of June 15, 2001, there were approximately 7$@0deholders of which 111 were record holders®fcbmmon stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oea@umon stock and do not anticipate the paymenash dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future. We currently idtemretain all earnings to finance the furtherelegment of our business. The payment of
any future cash dividends will be at the discretidéoour Board of Directors and will depend upon cag other things, future earnings,
operations, capital requirements, the general &igdicondition of the Company and general busitesslitions. See "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &websults of Operations -- Liquidity and Capital Reses."

ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
HISTORICAL PRESENTATION

The selected consolidated historical statemenpefations data for each of the fiscal years endattM31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, and the
selected consolidated balance sheet data as 0h\N8ar2000 and 2001 have been derived from outedidbnsolidated financial statements,
and should be read in conjunction with those stategmand notes, which are included in this ForniK1The selected consolidated statement
of operations data for the fiscal years ended M&dcHL997 and 1998 and the selected consolidatadd®msheet data as of March 31, 1997,
1998 and 1999 have been derived from our auditeddiolated financial statements, and should be ireadnjunction with those statements,
which are not included in this Form 10-K. The fin&h information for periods prior to fiscal 200&rein may not necessarily reflect our
results of operations, financial position and cémlvs in the future or what our results of operasipfinancial position and cash flows would
have been had we been a separate, stand-alonedentiig the periods presented. The selected cinlaget] financial data should be read in
conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Asialyf Financial Condition and Results of Operaticend the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto which are includesvaksre in this Form 10-K.
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HISTORICAL SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues:
Product revenue............cccceeeeenne. 43 $45,804 $93,702 $55,778 $ -
Service fee revenue.. 34 3,539 7,547 30,829 48,258
Other revenue........cccccceeeeeeeeeenns -- -- -- - 2,097
Total revenues.................... 17,5 77 49,343 101,249 86,607 50,355
Costs of revenues:
Cost of product revenue................... 15,7 68 43,392 88,335 52,639 --
Cost of service fee revenue... 5 96 2,208 5,323 23,475 34,261
Cost of other revenue..................... -- -- -- - 2,470
Total costs of revenues........... 16,3 64 45,600 93,658 76,114 36,731
Gross profit.......ccccceeeveeeiinennn. 1,2 13 3,743 7,591 10,493 13,624
Percent of revenues.............ccccvueee 6 9% 7.6% 75% 121% 27.1%
Selling, general and administrative
EXPENSES. ...oiiiiieiiiieaiieeeieeaaeens 1,0 74 3,705 6,711 17,764 25,446
Income (loss) from operations............... 1 39 38 880 (7,271) (11,822)
Interest expense (income), net.............. 77 143 374 459  (1,091)
Income (loss) before income taxes........... 62 (105) 506 (7,730) (10,731)

Income tax expense (benefit) 38 (30) 214 (1,791) 25

Net income (10SS)........cccueenneee. 24 $ (75) $ 292 $(5,939) (10,756)

PER SHARE DATA:
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted(a)............ccc...... $ 0. 00 $(0.01) $(0.02) $(0.38) $ (0.60)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding:
Basic and diluted(a).............cc....... 14,3 05 14,305 14,305 15,479 17,879

(a) Prior to the Offering, which was consummatefisoal 2000, basic and diluted net income (logs)ghare was determined based on net
income

(loss) divided by the 14,305,000 shares outstandihgre were no potentially dilutive securitiesstanding prior to the Offering. For fiscal
2000 and 2001, outstanding options to purchase amsghares of PFSweb were anti-dilutive and have bgeluded from the weighted
average share computation.

AS OF MARCH 31,

1 997 1998 1999 2000 2001
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Working capital..........ccccoceiiieninen. $5 , 757 $1,344 $14,636 $27,974 $20,023
Total asSets......ccoovvveviieiiiieiiiene 15 ,614 20,911 69,057 60,405 58,737
Long-term obligations.............cccccuvveees 5 ,851 1,827 29,029 2,407 3,379
Shareholders' equity (deficit)................. (8) (155) 581 47,650 37,001
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our resoftoperations and financial condition should dedrin conjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes theretoajmgeelsewhere in this Form 10-K.

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

We have made forward-looking statements in thisdRegn Form 10-K. These statements are subjeésks and uncertainties, and there can
be no guarantee that these statements will protse torrect. Forward-looking statements includeagdions as to how we may perform in
the future. When we use words like "seek," "sttiVbelieve," "expect," "anticipate,” "predict,” "pential,” "continue," "will," "may," "could,"
"intend," "plan," "target" and "estimate" or simikexpressions, we are making forward-looking st&et®1 You should understand that the
following important factors, in addition to thoset $orth above or elsewhere in this Report on Fb01K could cause our results to differ
materially from those expressed in our forward-iogkstatements. These factors include:

- Our ability to retain and expand relationshipfhwexisting clients and attract new clients;
- our reliance on the fees generated by the tréiosagolume or product sales of our clients;
- our reliance on our clients' projections or tei®n volume or product sales;

- the impact of strategic alliances and acquis#jon

- trends in the market for our services;

- trends in e-commerce;

- whether we can continue and manage growth;

- changes in the trend toward outsourcing;

- increased competition;

- effects of changes in profit margins;

- the unknown effects of possible system failumed apid changes in technology;

- trends in government regulation both foreign dathestic;

- foreign currency risks and other risks of opergiin foreign countries;

- our dependency on key personnel,

- our ability to raise additional capital,

- the continued listing of our common stock on HESDAQ); and

- our relationship with and separation from Daikytsur former parent corporation.

We have based these statements on our currenttakpas about future events. Although we beliea the expectations reflected in our
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we dagusrantee you that these expectations actuallpeviachieved. In addition, some
forward-looking statements are based upon assungpéis to future events that may not prove to barate. Therefore, actual outcomes and
results may differ materially from what is expectedorecasted in such forward-looking statemews.undertake no obligation to update
publicly any forward-looking statement for any reaseven if new information becomes available tieoevents occur in the future. There
may be additional risks that we do not currentBwias material or that are not presently knowrevaluating these statements, you should
consider various factors, including the risks setifin the section entitled "Risk Factors" begimgnon page 21.
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OVERVIEW

We are an international outsourcing provider oégmated business process outsourcing solutiongjormarand name companies seeking to
maximize their supply chain efficiencies and toeext their e-commerce initiatives. We derive oueraies from a broad range of services,
including professional consulting, technology cotieation, order management, managed web hostingvabdlevelopment, customer
relationship management, billing and collectiorvirss, information management and internationdllffiulent and distribution services. We
offer our services as an integrated solution, wieighbles our clients to outsource their compldtasiructure needs to a single source and to
focus on their core competencies. Our distribuiervices are conducted at our warehouses and aohad-time inventory management and
customized picking, packing and shipping of ouertis' customer orders. We currently provide infeastire and distribution solutions to o
30 clients that operate in a range of vertical ratwkincluding technology manufacturing, computexdpcts, printers, cosmetics, fragile
goods, high security collectibles, pharmaceutidatsisewares, telecommunications and consumer atézsr among others.

Our service fee revenue is typically charged oeragnt of shipped revenue basis or a per-transeltsis, such as a per-minute basis for
Web-enabled customer contact center services aed-iem basis for fulfillment services. Additiorfaks are billed for other services. We
price our services based on a variety of factadutding the depth and complexity of the services/ged, the amount of capital expenditu

or systems customization required, the length afre@t and other factors. Many of our contractweitr clients involve third-party vendors
who provide additional services such as packageaigl The costs we are charged by these thirdypemdors for these services are passed
on to our clients (and, in many cases, our clientstomers) and are not reflected in our revenwexpense. Historically, our services have
also included purchasing and reselling client pobdlwentory. In these arrangements, our productnae was recognized at the time product
was shipped. During the quarter ended September9®®, our primary client agreement under whichpneyiously purchased and sold
inventory was restructured to provide transacti@magement services only on a service fee basis.

Our expenses are comprised of:
- prior to September 30, 1999, cost of product meree which consisted of the price of product sold aet freight costs;

- cost of service fee revenue, which consists milgnaf compensation and related expenses for oeb\nabled customer contact center
services, international fulfillment and distributiservices and professional consulting serviced otimer fixed and variable expenses directly
related to providing services under the terms eftfased contracts, including certain occupancyirgfodmation technology costs and
depreciation and amortization expenses; and selliegeral and administrative expenses, which copsimarily of compensation and related
expenses for sales and marketing staff, executiamagement and administrative personnel and otleghead costs, including certain
occupancy and information technology costs andeiggtion and amortization expenses. In additiontHe periods prior to fiscal 2001,
certain direct contract costs related to our IBMstaadistributor agreements have been reflecteglisg and administrative expenses.

HISTORICAL FINANCIAL PRESENTATION

We believe our historical financial statementstfa periods prior to fiscal 2001 may not provide@aningful comparison to our current and
future financial performance for the reasons describelow.

In 1996, we entered into an agreement with thetgrisupplies division of IBM. Under this agreememg, provided IBM with various
transaction management services, such as callrcgaméces and order fulfillment and distributi®ie also served as an IBM master
distributor of printer supply products. Under taster distributor arrangement, we purchased inéepisupply products from IBM and
resold them to IBM customers. Following our initireement with the printer supplies division, weeeed into several similar agreements
with other divisions of IBM, both in the U.S. andrBpe, and expanded our then existing agreemeimnsltawle more product lines.
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During the quarter ended September 30, 1999, wisyi2k and IBM entered into new agreements to aonfim our current business model.
Under these new agreements, Daisytek acts as tstemnatstributor of the IBM products and we willtimue to provide various transaction
management services. As part of this restructurregtransferred to Daisytek the IBM product inveptavhich we held as the master
distributor, together with our customer accounteieable and our accounts payable owing to IBMegpect of the product inventory. The
purpose of the restructuring was to separate ttetendistributor and transaction management redipiitiss between ourselves and Daisytek
so that each could focus on its core competencies.

As a result of the restructuring of the IBM agreeatseour historical financial statements for thequs prior to fiscal 2001 may not provide a
meaningful comparison to our current and futuraricial statements. This is because, as a mastabdisr under our prior agreements, we
recorded revenue as product revenue as we softfabect to IBM customers. Similarly, our gross jitrefas based upon the difference
between our revenue from product sales and theof@strchasing the product from IBM. Currently, hewer, our revenue under the new Ii
agreements is service fee revenue that is payglbalsytek and is based upon a variable percergbBaisytek's gross profit arising from its
IBM product sales.

As a result of this restructuring of our IBM agresats, our total revenues arising under our new Ejveements have been reduced, as
compared to the total revenues arising under tioe lBM agreements. However, our gross profit mar@s a percent of service fee revenue
under the new IBM agreements is higher as comparedr gross profit margin as a percent of prodeeenue under the prior IBM
agreements.

In addition, upon completion of the Offering on Betber 2, 1999, we entered into a new transactioragement services agreement with
Daisytek. Under this agreement, we received seffeiegevenue based upon a percentage of Daisgtaksed product revenue.
Consequently, our historical financial statemeaftect the service fee revenue we received fronsy@ak under this new agreement for the
twelve months ended March 31, 2001, but for onlyr fmonths in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000.

Additionally, upon completion of the Offering, Dgisk transferred to us fixed assets and otheragdath are being used in our business.
We paid to Daisytek a portion of the net proceddb® Offering and assumed capital and operatiagdebligations related to these assets.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth certain historicaancial information from our audited consolidastdtements of operations expressed as a

percent of revenues.

Product revenue...........cccccvvevveveeeeeeennn.
Service fee revenue...........ccoccveveeeenenn.n.
Other revenue........cccccccveeeeeeeieeeeecnes

Total revenues.........ccccceevvveeenne
Cost of product revenue (as % of product revenue)
Cost of service fee revenue (as % of service fee
FEVENUE)....ciiiiiieeiiiieeeeeniiieae e
Cost of other revenue (as % of other revenue)....

Total costs of revenues..................

Gross Profite.....cceeeeeiniieeeeiniiieeeeee
Selling, general and administrative expenses.....

Income (loss) from operations....................
Interest expense (income), net...................

Income (loss) before income taxes................
Income tax expense (benefit).............coc.u..

Net income (I0SS).......ccccvvvvvveieieenenennn.

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

1999

......... 7.5

2000 2001
64.4% %
356 958
- 42
100.0  100.0
94.4 -
761  71.0
- 1178
87.9 729
121 271
205 505
(8.4) (23.4)
05  (2.0)
(8.9) (21.4)
(2.0 -
(6.9)% (21.4)%

FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2001 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000

We believe our historical financial statementstfa periods prior to fiscal 2001 may not provide@aningful comparison to our current and

future financial performance for the reasons déscriabove.

Product Revenue. Product revenue was zero fol 284 as compared to $55.8 million for fiscal 2086 stated above, during the quarter
ended September 30, 1999, we, Daisytek and IBMredi@to new agreements applicable to all of oM Iiglationships. As a result of these
new agreements, the activities performed undeethestracts since that date were accounted fograge fee revenue as opposed to product

revenue.

Service Fee Revenue. Service fee revenue was $fich for fiscal 2001 as compared to $30.8 mitfliduring fiscal 2000, an increase of
$17.5 million or 56.5%. Changes in service fee nexss over prior periods were due to the furthemasn of existing contracts, the
restructuring of all the IBM contracts, new servimmtract relationships, our transaction managemmenices agreement with Daisytek which
commenced on the completion of the Offering in Deloer 1999 and the impact of certain contract teatins. Service fee revenue from
existing contracts increased $13.3 million and sewice contract relationships added $4.2 millimnfiscal 2001. Service fee revenue for
fiscal 2001 also includes approximately $0.5 millmf previously deferred revenue associated withnitgated contracts. For fiscal 2001,
service fee revenue totaling $27.6 million includees earned from Daisytek under our new transactianagement services agreement,
effective as of the Offering, our new IBM contratitat, prior to the September 1999 quarter, woalkhbeen reported as product revenue,
and for certain subcontracted services. Duringafi2001 we effected certain contract terminatioith wervice fee revenues of approximately
$8 million and have experienced a longer implenmeniaycle associated with new larger contractsaAssult of the contract terminations
and the asset sale to Daisytek (discussed bel8kiqaidity and Capital Resources"), our service feeenue performance is expected to be

lower for the next several quarters.

Other Revenue. Other revenue of $2.1 million fecdi 2001 represents the fees charged to cliemiznjunction with the early termination of

certain contracts.
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Cost of Product Revenue. Cost of product revenueaseo for fiscal 2001, as compared to $52.6 mmildaring fiscal 2000. Cost of product
revenue as a percent of product revenue was zeirmgdiscal 2001 and 94.4% during fiscal 2000. Tésulting gross profit margin was 5.6%
for fiscal 2000.

Cost of Service Fee Revenue. Cost of service feentee was $34.3 million for fiscal 2001, as compddre$23.5 million during fiscal 2000,
an increase of $10.8 million or 45.9%. The resglservice fee gross profit was $14.0 million or@®8.of service fee revenue, during fiscal
2001 as compared to $7.4 million, or 23.9% of sErfee revenue during fiscal 2000. The increaggans profit margin for fiscal 2001
resulted primarily from the further expansion ofstixg contracts and new service contract relatigpss including our transaction
management services agreement with Daisytek, wéuaimenced on the completion of the Offering in Deloer 1999, and the terminatior
certain lower margin producing contracts. The grosdit margin also increased because cost of seif@e revenue for fiscal 2000 included
incremental costs related to a large number of cl@mt implementations during that year. Fiscal 2@@oss profit increases were offset by
approximately $0.5 million of previously deferreaists associated with terminated contracts. In Exiditertain excess infrastructure costs,
incremental operating costs related to terminatedracts and costs associated with improving sergi@lity had a negative impact on fiscal
2001 gross margin. As a percentage of total rev@rthe gross profit margin for fiscal 2001 of 27.kf#¢reased when compared to the 12.1%
gross profit margin for fiscal 2000 due to the ¢aistdiscussed above as well as the restructuriadl of the IBM contracts into service fee
contracts, which typically have a higher gross iprofirgin as a percent of revenue as comparedetgrbss profit margin as a percent of
revenue earned under the IBM master distributoeements.

Cost of Other Revenue. Cost of other revenue $mafi2001 includes costs from certain terminatedrects and are primarily comprised of
approximately $0.4 million of employee severancgtgoapproximately $0.5 million of asset impairnseinbm fixed assets which were
specific to terminated contracts and have no funthiie to PFSweb, and approximately $1.6 millibeartain uncollectible amounts
receivable from, and liabilities applicable togdis who have terminated contracts.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&fenses were $25.4 million for fiscal 2001, 0596 of revenues, as compared to
$17.8 million, or 20.5% of revenues, for fiscal R0Bs a result of incremental costs, the restringuof the IBM agreements and the related
reduction in product revenue, SG&A expenses as@ptage of total revenue were higher in fiscall2f@n in fiscal 2000. SG&A expenses
increased as a result of costs incurred to suppertigher sales volumes under both new and egistimtracts, certain excess infrastructure
costs, incremental investments in resources arhédagy to support our continued growth and pubiimpany costs.

Interest Expense (Income), Net. Interest income$idas million for fiscal 2001 as compared to ingtrexpense of $0.5 million for fiscal
2000. The weighted average interest rate was 6u#gifiscal 2000. Our intercompany payable to Bk, on which we incurred interest
expense during fiscal 2000, was repaid with a portif the proceeds from our Offering. SubsequetitédOffering, the remaining proceeds
have been utilized to fund working capital needs eapital expenditures and generate interest inctmfeture periods, available cash will
used for future capital expenditures, working capieeds and possible acquisitions, and to thenettiat we have excess cash available, we
expect to generate interest income.

Income Taxes. For fiscal 2001, we recorded incaareekpense associated with our Canadian operaB@tsause of our limited operating
history in Europe, it is uncertain whether it isdira likely than not" that we will be able to utdiour European losses in future periods and
therefore we did not record an income tax benefittie pre-tax losses. To the extent we have fubgses in Europe, it will continue to
negatively impact our income tax expense (bendditlying fiscal 2001, we recorded an income tax lien&$0.1 million related to our abilit

to utilize our net operating losses to offset fattaxes related to deferred tax liabilities. Howegace we ceased to be included in Daisytek's
consolidated return due to the completion of tha-sff and we have not established a sufficientdrisof earnings from our U.S. operations,
on a stand-alone basis, a valuation allowance éas provided for the remaining net deferred tartass of March 31, 2001. For fiscal 2000,
although we did not benefit our European losses, @sult of the inclusion of our
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U.S. operations in Daisytek's consolidated retuiorpo the spin-off, our income tax benefit aseagqentage of pre-tax loss was 23.2%.
FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2000 COMPARED TO FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 1999

Product Revenue. Product revenue was $55.8 miliinfiscal 2000 as compared to $93.7 million fachl 1999. As stated above, during the
guarter ended September 30, 1999, we, DaisytekBiicentered into new agreements applicable tofadius IBM relationships. As a result
of these agreements, the activities performed uthdse contracts since that date were accountesfeervice fee revenue as opposed to
product revenue. Prior to the impact of these ngreements, product revenue had increased as codnjogpeior periods due to the addition
of our European IBM distribution agreement as vaslgrowth from the existing North America IBM masiestributor agreements.

Service Fee Revenue. Service fee revenue was #8llicgh for fiscal 2000 as compared to $7.5 millidaring fiscal 1999, an increase of
$23.3 million or 308.5%. The increase in serviae fevenues over prior periods was due to the fugkpansion of existing contracts, the
restructuring of all the IBM contracts, and newvses contract relationships, including our new gagtion management services agreement
with Daisytek which commenced on the completiothef Offering in December 1999. Service fee revdnuma existing contracts increased
$1.3 million and new service contract relationstagded $22.0 million for fiscal 2000. For fiscaloPQ new service fee revenue totaling $11.6
million is for fees earned from Daisytek under oew transaction management services agreementtiedfas of the Offering, and our new
IBM contracts that, prior to the September 1999 guawould have been reported as product revenue.

Cost of Product Revenue. Cost of product revenue$sa.6 million for fiscal 2000, as compared to .888&illion during fiscal 1999, a
decrease of $35.7 million, or 40.4%. Cost of pradaeenue as a percent of product revenue was 9dutirtg fiscal 2000, and 94.3% during
fiscal 1999. The resulting gross profit margin Ba8% and 5.7% for fiscal 2000 and 1999, respegtivel

Cost of Service Fee Revenue. Cost of service femntee was $23.5 million for fiscal 2000, as compae$5.3 million during fiscal 1999, an
increase of $18.2 million or 343.4%. The resultiegvice fee gross profit margin was 23.9% durisgdi 2000, and 29.5% during fiscal 19
During fiscal 2000, cost of service fee revenuedased related to a large number of new clientémphtations.

Gross Profit. Gross profit was $10.5 million, or.11% of revenues, for fiscal 2000, as compared t6 $illion, or 7.5% of revenues, for fiscal
1999. The increase in total gross profit resultecharily from the further expansion of existing ¢@tts and new service contract
relationships, including our new transaction managy& services agreement with Daisytek, which conoeémon the completion of the
Offering in December 1999. The increase in grosfitpas a percentage of revenues resulted fromeieucturing of all of the IBM contracts
into service fee contracts, which typically haveigher gross profit margin as a percent of reveasieompared to the gross profit margin as a
percent of revenue earned under the IBM mastenlalision agreements.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. SG&fenses were $17.8 million for fiscal 2000, 0620 of revenues, as compared to $6.7
million, or 6.6% of revenues, for fiscal 1999. Asesult of incremental costs, the restructuringhefIBM agreements and the related redu

in product revenue, SG&A expenses as a percenfageabrevenue were higher in fiscal 2000 thafisoal 1999. SG&A expenses increased
as a result of costs incurred to support the highkrs volumes under both new and existing comstiand incremental investments in resou
and technology to support our continued growth. &@&Xpenses also increased as a result of certaeiarirental charges effected during
fiscal 2000.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense was $0libmfor fiscal 2000 as compared to $0.4 milliar fiscal 1999. Interest expense increased
as a result of an increase in the average payaliaisytek to support working capital requiremayplicable primarily to our master
distributor agreements and for capital expendituséfset by interest income earned subsequenet®fifering. The weighted average interest
rate was 6.7% during fiscal 2000 and 1999. In DdrEmi 999, we used a portion of the funds from tfferidg to repay our intercompany
payable balance to Daisytek and purchase certagtsafom Daisytek.
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Income Taxes. Our income tax benefit as a percergfgre-tax loss was 23.2% for fiscal 2000 as caneghto an income tax provision as a
percentage of pre-tax income of 42.3% for fisc&149Ve were included in Daisytek's consolidatedré&mrn for all periods through the date
of the spin-off from Daisytek. As part of the tehasing agreement entered into with Daisytek, weaweimmbursed for any income tax benefit
derived from our inclusion in the consolidated retiHowever, any loss generated by us in Europetisncluded in the Daisytek consolida
return and may not be utilized at a consolidatedlleAccordingly, in fiscal 2000, we recorded a &ftfor the pre-tax loss generated in the
U.S., however, because of our limited operatingphysin Europe, it was uncertain whether it is "mdkely than not" that we would be able
utilize our European losses in future periods &mddfore we did not record an income tax benefittiose pre-tax losses. Additionally, since
we ceased to be included in Daisytek's consolidegean upon completion of the spin-off and we hatlestablished a sufficient history of
earnings, on a stand-alone basis, a valuation attoerwas provided for the net deferred income $artaas of March 31, 2000. For fiscal
1999, the income tax percentage was impacted bgitfezences between our U.S. and foreign subsalawhich are taxed at different rates.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During fiscal 2001, we utilized our capital resascwhich consisted primarily of the remaining geds of the Offering, to fund operations
and capital expenditures. As a result, working edgiecreased to $20.0 million at March 31, 20@1fi$28.0 million at March 31, 2000.
Prior to fiscal 2001, as a subsidiary of Daisyt&k,historically funded our business through interpany borrowings from Daisytek. As a
result of the Offering, we repaid such intercompbaoyrowings. We may seek our own credit facilityonder to provide additional financing
the future, in addition to our current cash positid over $22 million. We currently believe thatrmash position will satisfy our known
operating cash needs and our working capital apdata@xpenditure requirements for the next twehanths. Our cash position was further
increased as a result of an asset sale, described tsubsequent to March 31, 2001.

Net cash used in financing activities was $0.2ianilin fiscal 2001, representing payments on opitablease obligations partially offset
the proceeds from issuance of common stock. Nét jpasvided by financing activities was $24.0 miflitor fiscal 2000. In December 1999,
we successfully completed our Offering and sold3,800 shares of common stock, including the undtws over-allotment, at $17 per
share. Net proceeds from the offering aggregatpdoapmately $53.0 million. Proceeds were used frayean intercompany payable to
Daisytek of approximately $27 million and to acguirom Daisytek all fixed assets in its Memphidritsition facility, as well as certain
assets providing information technology servicesafgproximately $5 million, and we received thec&tof several subsidiaries of Daisytek
representing the business operations of PFSwelcdsétprovided by financing activities was $27.Hiom for fiscal 1999. During fiscal
1999, cash provided by Daisytek was used to fuadrtbremental financing of one of our client's intary, our capital expenditures and
working capital requirements.

Net cash used in operating activities was $0.Zonilfor fiscal 2001, and primarily reflected anriease in accounts payable and acci
expenses of $7.9 million and a decrease in prepgienses and other current assets of $5.7 millidreacounts receivable of $0.6 million.
The increase in accounts payable is primarilylaiteble to $7.2 million of VAT collections that adee one of our clients. The increase in
other current assets primarily relates to receembksociated with our European operations inajudifil.1 million note receivable from a
terminated client, a $1.6 million receivable rethte an asset based governmental grant and VATveddes of $2.3 million. Cash flows
provided by operating activities totaled $10.6 millfor fiscal 2000 and primarily reflected a retlan in accounts payable and accrued
expenses of $25.0 million, accounts receivable8a $nillion and inventory of $29.9 million. Theseductions primarily related to the trans
of the IBM related working capital assets from a$aisytek in conjunction with the new IBM agreensemNet cash used in operating
activities was $12.3 million for fiscal 1999. Wonkj capital requirements increased in fiscal 199%®arily due to product revenue growth
under our North American IBM master distributor@gments. We also entered into new master distrilaggieeements in December 1998 to
provide services for IBM in Europe. Our North Anwan revenue growth, as well as the new Europeatnamis, resulted in significant
increases in IBM contract related accounts recégvatwentory and accounts payable.
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Cash used in investing activities for fiscal 206tated $2.1 million. Capital expenditures were $&ilion for fiscal 2001. Partially offsetting
these capital expenditures was the full repaymeatter receivables. Cash used in investing a@iwviivas $10.2 million for fiscal 2000.
During fiscal 2000, our capital expenditures tadeh21.2 million and included the asset purchase fbaisytek at the completion of the
Offering, our new Belgium distribution facility, drihe expansion of U.S. sales and distributionifeas. Partially offsetting these capital
expenditures was a reduction of other receival@ash used in investing activities for fiscal 198tted $14.9 million, and was primarily a
result of a long-term contractual agreement with ohour clients pursuant to which, as part ofsberices that we provide, we financed
certain of the client's inventory. Capital expearks were $2.7 million for fiscal 1999. Capital ergitures have historically consisted
primarily of additions to upgrade our managemefdrimation systems, including our Internet-basedarsr tools, other methods of e-
commerce and general expansion of our facilitief) blomestic and foreign. We expect to incur sigaiit capital expenditures in order to
support new contracts and anticipated future grapgbortunities. We anticipate that our total invesit in upgrades and additions to facili
and information technology services for the upcantimelve months will be approximately $4 to $7 oifl. Some of these expenditures may
be financed through operating or capital leases.

On May 25, 2001, the Company completed the satethin assets to Daisytek pursuant to an AssehBse Agreement (the "Purchase
Agreement”). Under the Purchase Agreement, the @agnpransferred and sold to Daisytek certain digtion and fulfillment assets,
including equipment and fixtures, that were pregigwsed by the Company to provide outsourcingisesvto Daisytek. Daisytek also
assumed certain related equipment leases and aaueelease and hired certain employees who weeeiated with the warehouse facility.
The consideration payable under the Purchase Agneeafi $11.0 million ($10 million of which was paad closing on May 25, 2001 and $1
million of which is payable over six months, subjexccertain potential offsets) included a reldlag¢he Company and Daisytek of certain
transaction management services agreements prgventered into between the Company and DaisytekeaDaisytek subsidiary. Proceeds
of $10 million (excluding the $1 million deferredgeeeds) were received for assets with an apprdgign@4.5 million net book value with a
resulting $5.0 million gain, after closing costsk@t5 million. Concurrently with the closing of theset sale, the Company and Daisytek also
entered into a six-month transition services agergrander which the Company will provide Daisytelkhveertain transitional and
information technology services for which the Compwavill receive monthly service fees, subject tissaction of certain performance
criteria.

After giving effect to the termination of our agneent with Daisytek, approximately 21% of our revemill be derived from our existing
arrangements with IBM. Under these arrangementssyik acts as a distributor of various IBM produdhese arrangements have various
scheduled expiration dates through September 200 i@ otherwise generally terminable at will. D& has indicated that it does not
intend to continue to distribute these productsenrtidese arrangements after their scheduled exjirdate. We are currently discussing with
IBM the continuation of these arrangements and heweived a letter of intent from IBM to extend Bagreements with PFS for two years
subject to obtaining satisfactory financing. Theae be no assurance that these discussions validzessful or that our arrangements with
IBM will continue or, if they continue, any of therms thereof. It is possible that new arrangemeiitsIBM may involve cash commitments
by the Company, new third party financing, a jeiahture with a new master distributor or direct evahip by the Company of the IBM
products. We believe that through one of thesenfiiray arrangements, we will be able to continueain revenues in the future associated
with selling or providing services related to IBvbduct.

Currently, we believe that we are operating witl arcurring costs applicable to excess capacityoitth our North American and European
operations. We believe that as we add revenuenbatill be able to more fully cover our existingrastructure and public company costs
reach profitability. No assurance can be given Whatan achieve such operating levels, or thagtifieved, we will be profitable in any
particular fiscal period.

In the future, we may attempt to acquire other messes to expand our services or capabilitiesnnextion with our efforts to grow our
business. We currently have no binding agreemerdsquire any such businesses. Should we be sfdesacquiring other businesses, we
may require additional financing.
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Acquisitions involve certain risks and uncertaisti€herefore, we can give no assurance with respedhether we will be successful in
identifying businesses to acquire, whether we béllable to obtain financing to complete an acqaisjtor whether we will be successful in
operating the acquired business.

INVENTORY MANAGEMENT

Prior to September 30, 1999, our agreements wilith Were structured as master distributor agreemé@ihits transaction management services
we provided for IBM under these agreements inclyglegdhasing and reselling IBM product inventoryB® customers. During the quarter
ended September 30, 1999, we restructured ourragrés with IBM so that we will no longer be purdhngsor reselling the IBM product
inventory. In addition, we transferred to Daisytbk IBM-related customer accounts receivables,ritorg and accounts payable. We do not
currently own any product inventory.

SEASONALITY

The seasonality of our business is dependent upoedasonality of our clients' business and tladér af their products. Accordingly, our
management must rely upon the projections of dantd in assessing quarterly variability. We bedi¢vat with our current client mix our
business activity will be slightly more significantthe quarter ended December 31.

We believe that results of operations for a qubrigeriod may not be indicative of the resultsdor other quarter or for the full year.
INFLATION

Management believes that inflation has not had triah effect on our operations.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsl@SFAS™) No. 133, "Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging ActivitieSFAS No. 133, as amended, requires that an ertignize all derivative financial
instruments as either assets or liabilities indtaéement of financial position and measure thoseuments at fair value. If certain conditions
are met, a derivative may be used to hedge ceytpés of transactions, including foreign currenggasures of a net investment in a foreign
operation. SFAS No. 133 is effective for fiscal geebeginning after June 15, 2000, with initial apgion as of the beginning of an entity's
fiscal quarter. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 a8l 1, 2001 did not have a material impact on fimancial position or consolidated
financial statements.
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ITEM 7a. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE AB OUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to various market risks includitgrest rates on its financial instruments and gprexchange rates.
Interest Rate Risk

The carrying value of our financial instruments,iethinclude cash and cash equivalents, accountsviadae, note receivable, accounts
payable and a capital lease obligation, approxirttedi fair values based on short terms to matumitgurrent market prices and rates. The
impact of a 100 basis point change in interessratauld not have a material impact on the Compaegslts of operations or financial
position.

Foreign Exchange Risk

We are subject to market risk associated with caariig foreign currency exchange rates. In ordendoage these risks, beginning in the year
ended March 31, 1999, certain of our risks weresittared in Daisytek's corporate risk managemergraro, which included entering into
certain forward currency exchange contracts. Thadisgal 2000, we did not enter into any such @wets on our own. At March 31, 2001,
Company had one foreign currency hedge with a natiamount of 8 million Euros in place that expined\pril 2001. The settlement of this
hedge did not have a material impact on the Conlpdimancial position or consolidated financialtstaents.

Currently, our foreign currency exchange rate igsfrimarily limited to Canadian dollars and ther&un the future, we believe our foreign
currency exchange risk will also include other ennies applicable to certain of our internatiorarations. In order to mitigate foreign
currency rate risk, we will consider entering ifdoward currency exchange contracts to hedge aunestment and lonterm intercompan
payable balances.

Effective April 1, 2001, in response to a changth®oEuro for transaction activity previously contid in the U.S. dollar by the Company's
largest European client, the Company adopted the &its functional currency for its European agiens.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiaries as oftMait, 2001, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, sharehoktgugty, and cash flows for the year then endedohnection with our audits of the
consolidated financial statements, we also havéedithe accompanying financial statement scheasilef and for the year ended March 31,
2001. These consolidated financial statements iaaddial statement schedule are the responsiloilitie Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesotidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with audistagndards generally accepted in the United StdtAmerica. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonasseirance about whether the financial statemeatses of material misstatement. An au
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgghe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatiements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetagaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the financial position of PFSweb,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2001, andehelts of their operations and their cash floarslie year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America. Also, in our opinion, thiated financial statement schedule as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2001, when coreside relation to the basic consolidated finanstatements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the informaticet $orth therein.

KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 3, 2001, except for Notes 7 and 11
to which the date is as of June 28, 2001
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
To the Shareholders of PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of PFSweb, Inc. (a Delaware corporatind)sabsidiaries (see Note 1) as of
March 31, 2000, and the related consolidated setitsrof operations, shareholders' equity and dasls for each of the two years in the
period ended March 31, 2000. These financial statgsnare the responsibility of the Company's mamage. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements basedipaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgghe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asairgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refermedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of PFSweb, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of March 31, 2000, and the resfiliseir operations and their cash flows for eatthe two years in the period ended March
31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principlgsnerally accepted in the United States.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Dallas, Texas,
May 4, 2000
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA)

MARCH 31,
2000 2001
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents.........cccceeeeeeeee. L $24,896 $ 22,266
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfu |
accounts of $690 and $279 at March 31, 2000 an d 2001,
resSpectively. oo 8,892 7,294
Other receivables........ccccocvvvvveeveneee. 3,482 4,972
Prepaid expenses and other current assets........ ... 1,052 3,848

Total current assets.....................
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net.........cccocuevennee
OTHER ASSETS......ccooiiiiiiiiciiccce

Total assets........ccceeeveeeeieiieennns

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of capital lease obligations..... ... $ 274 $ 300
Trade accounts payable........ccccocveeeveeeee L 6,549 11,051
Accrued eXpPeNSES......ccccvevvviiieeeeiiieeeee . 3,525 7,006

Total current liabilities................

CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS, less current portion....

OTHER LIABILITIES.....ccoiiiiieiiieeiceien - 1,240

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 5 and 7)

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 1,000,000 share s
authorized; none issued and outstanding at Mar ch 31
2000 and 2001......cccceeviveiiieaiiieeeeee - -

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 40,000,000 shares
authorized; 17,870,000 and 17,907,378 shares i ssued and
outstanding at March 31, 2000 and 2001, respec tively... 18 18

Additional paid-in capital........cccccccoveeeee. L 50,673 50,884

Accumulated deficit.........coocovveeviieeeeee. L (2,836) (13,592)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss......c...... . ... (205)  (309)

Total shareholders' equity...............

Total liabilities and shareholders' equit Yeerrons $60,405 $ 58,737

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

42



PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

1999 2000 2001
REVENUES (Note 5):
Product revenue........cccccoevvveecveeccceeeeee $93,702 $55,778 $ --
Service fee revenue........coooeeevvviveieeeees 7,547 30,829 48,258
Other revVenUe......ccceveveveeeeeeeieiieieeeeeee -- - 2,097
Total revenues........ccccceeeveeveeeeeee 101,249 86,607 50,355
COSTS OF REVENUES:
Cost of product revenue.........ccceeeeeeveeeeee 88,335 52,639 -
Cost of service fee revenue.......ccococvveeeeee. L 5,323 23,475 34,261
Cost of other revenue.......cccoccvveeveeeeee. L -- - 2,470
Total costs of revenues.......cccooeeeee.. L 93,658 76,114 36,731
Gross profit.....cccccveeveeeevennen. 7,591 10,493 13,624
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES.......  ......... 6,711 17,764 25,446
Income (loss) from operations..........c...... .. 880 (7,271) (11,822)
INTEREST EXPENSE (INCOME), N€t....cccoovvvvevveeees e, 374 459  (1,091)
Income (loss) before income taxes.............. ... 506 (7,730) (10,731)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)...ccocooviieaieeeee . 214 (1,791) 25
NET INCOME (LOSS)...ccooovveiiiiveeviiiieeeeeeee i, $ 292 $(5,939) $(10,756)
NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE:
......... $ 0.02 $(0.38) $ (0.60)

Basic and diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic and diluted

14,305 15,479

17,879

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA)

ACCUMU LATED
COMMON STOCK ADDITIONAL DAISYTEK'S OTH ER TOTAL
-------------------- - PAID-IN ACCUMULATED NET EQUITY COMPREH ENSIVE SHAREHOLDERS'
SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL DEFICIT INVESTMENT LOS S EQUITY
Balance, March 31, 1998...... - $ - - $ - $ - $ (1000 $ (55) $ (155)
Netincome..........c........ - - - -- - 292 -- 292
Contributed capital.......... - - - - - 520 - 520
Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... - - - - - - (76) (76)
Comprehensive income.........
Balance, March 31, 1999...... -- - - - - 712 ( 131) 581
Net loss prior to initial
public offering............ - - - - - (3,103) - (3,103)
Contribution of Daisytek's
net equity investment...... -- - - (2,391) - 2,391 - -
Net loss subsequent to
initial public offering.... - - - - (2,836) - - (2,836)
Issuance of common stock to
DaisytekK.......ccoccrvene 14,305,000 1 4 6 - - - 20
Initial public offering, net
of issuance costs.......... 3,565,000 4 53,010 - - - 53,014
Stock based compensation
EXPENSE.....uuvveeerannns -- - - 48 -- -- -- 48
Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... - - - - - - (74) (74)
Comprehensive loss...........
Balance, March 31, 2000...... 17,870,000 $ 1 8 $50,673 $(2,836) $ - $ ( 205) $ 47,650
Net l0SS......coveviunenns - - - --  (10,756) - - (10,756)
Reduction in costs of initial
public offering............ - - - 148 - - - 148
Stock based compensation
EXPENSE.....vvvveeererinns -- - - 38 -- -- -- 38
Employee stock purchase
plan.....cccocoeenenen. 37,378 - - 25 - - - 25
Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... - - - - - - ( 104) (104)
Comprehensive loss...........
Balance, March 31, 2001...... 17,907,378 $ 1 8 $50,884 $(13,592) $ - % ( 309) $ 37,001

COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
(LOSS)
Balance, March 31, 1998......
Net income..........ccoue.e $ 292
Contributed capital..........
Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... (76)

Balance, March 31, 1999......
Net loss prior to initial
public offering............

.. $(3,103)

Contribution of Daisytek's
net equity investment......

Net loss subsequent to

initial public offering....  (2,836)
Issuance of common stock to
Daisytek...................

Initial public offering, net
of issuance costs..........
Stock based compensation
EXPENSE.....ereereenrne
Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... (74)

Comprehensive loss........... $(6,013)



Balance, March 31, 2000......
Net 10SS......ccovevvvenee. $(10,756)
Reduction in costs of initial
public offering............
Stock based compensation
EXPENSE.....ereareenrne
Employee stock purchase

Other comprehensive loss --
foreign currency
translation adjustment..... (104)

$(10,860)

Comprehensive loss.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

1999 2000 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Netincome (I0SS).....cccovevvveiieeiiiaeeeee $ 292 $(5,939) $(10,756)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.................. ... 275 2,373 6,658
Provision for doubtful accounts.. .- 344 458 2,203
Deferred income taxes........ccoeevvvvveeeee L (192) 453 109
Non-cash compensation expense.................. ... -- 48 38
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivables..........cccooeeeeeeee.. L (13,615) 8,324 (607)
Inventories, Net.......ooevccvvvveeeees (18,630) 29,856 --
Prepaid expenses and other current assets... ... (1,001) (55) (5,693)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses....... ... 20,231 (24,954) 7,871
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activ ities.... (12,296) 10,564 177)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property and equipment.............. ... (2,658) (18,521) (5,542)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables.......... .. (12,264) 8,358 3,417
Net cash used in investing activities......... . ... (14,922) (10,163) (2,125)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contribution........cccccceevvveeee. L 520 -- --
Issuance of common stock to Daisytek............ . ... - 20 -
Net proceeds from initial public offering of comm on
StOCK. .o -- 53,014 -
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock....... ... -- -- 25
Repayment on capital lease obligations............ ... -- (15) (242)
Increase (decrease) in payable to Daisytek....... . ... 27,202 (29,029) -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activ ities.... 27,722 23,990 (217)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH....ccccoccvevee. e, (30) (82) (111)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH......cccoocevveeees e, 474 24,309 (2,630)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of period..... ... 113 587 24,896
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of period............ ... $ 587 $24,896 $22,266
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Fixed assets acquired under capital leases....... ... $ - $269 $ -
Governmental grant receivable for capital expendi tures
(NOE 2).ceicceeceece e $ - $ - $1564

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. OVERVIEW AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

In June 1999, Daisytek International Corporatiddaisytek") created a separate wholly-owned subsidiamed PFSweb, Inc. (the
"Company" or "PFSweb"), a Delaware corporatiorhéocome a holding company for certain of Daisytekislly-owned subsidiaries ("PFS")
in contemplation of an initial public offering oFBweb. Daisytek contributed $20,000 for 14,305 8fres of common stock of PFSweb. In
December 1999, PFSweb sold 3,565,000 shares of oarstock at a price of $17 per share (the "Offéjinget proceeds from the Offering
aggregated approximately $53.0 million and wereluseepay the Company's payable to Daisytek arddoire from Daisytek all fixed
assets in its Memphis distribution facility as wal certain assets providing information technolegwices for approximately $5 million (see
Note 5). Simultaneous with the completion of thée@ng, Daisytek contributed to PFSweb all the ssdmbilities and equity comprisir

PFS.

On June 8, 2000, the Daisytek Board of Directorgayed the separation of PFSweb from Daisytek bgmaef a tax-free dividend of
Daisytek's remaining ownership of PFSweb afterivéug a favorable ruling from the IRS to the efféeait the distribution by Daisytek of its
shares of PFSweb stock would be tax-free to Daisytel to Daisytek's shareholders for U.S. feda@dine tax purposes. The distribution of
Daisytek's 14,305,000 shares of PFSweb (the "Sifihaxcurred at the close of business on July@® to Daisytek shareholders of record
as of June 19, 2000.

PFSweb is an international provider of integratasifiess process outsourcing services to major branmgt companies seeking to maximize
their supply chain efficiencies and to extend theiditional and e-commerce initiatives in the @diStates, Canada, and Europe. The
Company offers such services as professional ctimgutechnology collaboration, managed hosting enecitive web development, order
management, web-enabled customer contact centestoneer relationship management, billing and ctithecservices, information
management, and international distribution services

For all periods prior to the Spin-off, the acconyiag consolidated financial statements are preseoiea carve-out basis and reflect the
consolidated historical results of operations,firial position and cash flows of the Company. Hoperiods presented, certain expenses
reflected in the consolidated financial statemémtkide an allocation of certain Daisytek corpoespenses and infrastructure costs (see

5). Management believes that the methods usediottatd expenses are reasonable, although the fcastvices could be higher if obtained
from other sources. In addition, certain servieerevenue and cost of service fee revenue haverbieated by PFSweb for services
subcontracted to PFSweb by Daisytek. The servieedeenue, cost of service fee revenue and alldeateenses have been reflected on t
that Daisytek and PFSweb consider to be a reasamnetiection of the services provided and reverareed by PFSweb and the utilization of
services provided by Daisytek and the benefit kembby PFSweb. The financial information includeddin may not reflect the consolidated
financial position, operating results, shareholdegsiity and cash flows of PFSweb in the futurgvbat it would have been had PFSweb been
a separate, stand-alone entity during the perioceisepted.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
Principles of Consolidation

Prior to the Offering, the financial position, réswf operations and cash flows of PFS were reteto as the combined financial statements
of PFSweb. Subsequent to the Offering and foreddigols presented herein, the financial positiosilte of operations and cash flows of the
Company are referred to as the consolidated fishstatements of PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiariesnfdfcompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@ntonformity with generally accepted accountinigiciples requires management to
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities, disclosure otiogent assets and liabilities, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Aetsidts could differ from those estimates. The alfimn of certain expenses (see Notes 1
and 5) in these consolidated financial statemdatsrequired management estimates and assumptions.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

For fiscal 1999 and 2000, the Company recognizedyst revenue upon shipment of product to custormetsprovided for estimated returns
and allowances and recognized cost of product revepon shipment of product to customers.

The Company's service fee revenues primarily retates (1) distribution services and (2) order mgement/customer care services.

Distribution services relate primarily to inventananagement, product receiving, warehousing arfitifugnt (i.e., picking, packing and
shipping). Revenue for these activities are ei{erarned on a per transaction basis or
(i) earned at the time of product fulfilment whioccurs at the completion of the distribution sms.

Order management/customer care services relataplyno taking customer orders for our client'sgucts via various channels such as
telephone call-center, electronic or facsimile. §éeervices also entail addressing customer qusstdated to orders, as well as cross-
selling/up-selling activities. Revenue is recogdizs the services are rendered. Fees charged ¢behteare on a per transaction basis based
on either (i) a pre-determined fee per order opeetelephone minutes incurred, or (ii) are ineldiéh the product fulfillment service fees
which are recognized on product shipment. The Caryipaost of service fee revenue, representingdbeto provide the services described
above, is recognized as incurred. Cost of sendeaévenue also includes costs associated witha&udy collaboration and ongoing
technology support which consist of creative webd#velopment and maintenance, web hosting, tecgypahterfacing, and other ongoing
programming activities. These activities are prifggrerformed to support the distribution and ordeanagement/customer cares services anc
are recognized as incurred.

The Company also performs billing services andrimfition management services for its clients. Bjllgervices and information managern
services are typically not billed separately tewts because the activities are continually peréarnand the costs are insignificant and are
generally covered by other fees described abovereftre, any revenue attributable to these serigcesluded in the distribution or order
management fees which are recognized as serviegediormed. The service fee revenue associatédtingse activities are currently not
significant and are incidental to the above-memtbservices.

Other revenue of $2.1 million for fiscal 2001 reg@ets the fees charged to clients in conjunctidh thie early termination of certain
contracts. Cost of other revenue for fiscal 20@luides approximately $0.4 million of employee sawnee costs, approximately $0.5 million
of asset impairments from fixed assets which wpeeidic to terminated contracts and have no furttadue to PFSweb, and approximately
$1.6 million of certain uncollectible amounts re@dile from, and liabilities applicable to, cliemtbo have terminated contracts.

The Company primarily performs its services under to three year contracts that can be terminagegither party. In conjunction with the
long-term contracts the Company generally recestad-up fees to cover its implementation costuing certain technology infrastructure
and development costs. The Company defers thedees/ed, and the related costs, and amortizes gdvemthe life of the contract. The
amortization of deferred revenue is included asragonent of service fee revenue. The amortizatfon o
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

deferred implementation costs is included as a@os¢rvice fee revenue. To the extent implemenmatbsts exceed the fees received, excess
costs are recognized as incurred with the remaidéfgrred revenues and costs being amortized bedifé of the contract. At March 31,
2001, the Company had $2.3 million of deferred nems included in current liabilities.

Certain contracts involve third-party vendors whovide services such as package delivery. The austsred by the Company related to
such third-party services are reimbursed at codtshglients and are not reflected in revenue @ease.

Concentration of Business and Credit Risk

All of the Company's product revenue for fiscal 3%d 2000 was generated by sales of product psedhander master distributor
agreements with one supplier. Product and ser@eedvenue to Daisytek accounted for approximdidds, 22% and 55% of the Company's
total revenues for fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001,aetspely. No other client accounted for 10% or mof¢he Company's revenue during such
periods. As of March 31, 2000, four customers antexlifor over 75% of trade accounts receivableroaggregate basis. As of March 31,
2001, Daisytek and one other customer accounteaifjoroximately 55% of accounts receivable.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year data have been reclassifiedtdorm to the current period presentation. Theskassifications had no effect on previously
reported net income, shareholders' equity or ngt daws.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents are defined as short-term higtplyd investments with original maturities of thnewnths or less.
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable include outstanding trade attsoreceivable as well as certain unbilled amoantsd to PFSweb by clients in
accordance with contracts. The amount of unbilmbivables at March 31, 2000 and 2001 was appraeiy$0.2 million and zero,
respectively.

Other Receivables and Liabilities

During fiscal 1999, the Company entered into a r@mttial agreement whereby the Company financedindriventory owned by a client of
the Company. As of March 31, 2000, other receivableluded approximately $3.4 million related tistreceivable. During fiscal 2001, this
client repaid the outstanding balance. Under taxfitbe agreement, the Company charged the clieasaet management fee, a portion of
which resulted in interest income. Although the @amy no longer finances this client's inventorg, @ompany continues to earn service
related to services provided to this client.

As of March 31, 2001, other receivables includesftilowing items applicable to the Company's Ewapoperations (in thousands):

MARCH 31,
2001
NOLE..ooiiii it $1,132
Value added taX.....ccccoocvveeviviiieeeiicees 2,276
Governmental grant.......ccccoevvvevvvvieveenes L 1,564
$4,972
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

The note receivable amount represents the remalatamnce of a $1.7 million contract termination.fAe amended, the principal balance,
bearing interest at prime rate plus two perceduisin periodic payments through June 29, 2001ué/aldded Tax ("VAT") receivables
represent amounts due from European governmentsfiandable VAT payments made in the ordinary cewfsbusiness. The governmental
grant relates to investments made by the Compafiyad assets in its Belgium operation. The Compatgived approximately $1.3 million
associated with this grant in April 2001 and expédhe remaining balance to be paid within the hegtve months.

At establishment, the total grant of approximatklyé million was deferred and is being recognized aeduction to depreciation expense
over the same period over which the costs of tletew fixed assets are being depreciated. A defemedit included in other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated financial statementesgits the long-term unrecognized portion of tlatgiFor fiscal 2001, approximately
$0.2 million was recognized as a reduction of dejptsn expense. The current unrecognized portfahegrant is included in accrued
expenses. The grant was earned by the Companythp@thievement of certain minimum capital expemditequirements. Realization of
the entire gain requires the Company to maintaiartain minimum workforce through December 2004e Tompany's management belie
that the likelihood of a refund of this grant ismate.

Inventories

During the quarter ended September 30, 1999, tinep@oy transferred to Daisytek all of its invent(ge Notes 1 and 5) and as of March
2000 and 2001, the Company did not own any invgntor

Property and Equipment
The components of property and equipment as of Mat; 2000 and 2001 are as follows (in thousands):

FISCAL YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31,

----------------- DEPRECIABLE

2000 2001 LIFE
Furniture and fixtures...............cccecevvvens ... $11,933 $13,882 5-9years
Computer equipMeNt..........cceeeeeeniieeeeninnns ... 3,725 4,714 3-7 years
Leasehold improvements............ccocuveeeennnes ... 3,472 3,554 2-9years
Capitalized software cOStS.........ccccccveeeennn. ... 4772 6,201 2-3years
Other...ccooveeieiieieie e 356 251 3-7 years

24,258 28,602

Less-accumulated depreciation and amortization... ... (2,703) (8,349
Property and equipment, net.............. ... $21,555 $20,253

Property and equipment are stated at cost andepreciated using the straight-line method overetttanated useful lives of the respective
assets which range from three to nine years. Leédé@nhprovements are amortized over the shortén@iuseful life of the related asset or the
remaining lease term.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairmérenever events or changes in circumstancesdteltbat the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability aftags be held and used is measured by a comparigba carrying amount of an asset to
future net cash flows expected to be generatetidpsset. If such assets are considered to bergdp#ie impairment to be recognized is
measured by the amount by which the carrying amotitite assets exceeds the fair value of the agsaitsvalue would be determined using
appraisals, discounted cash flow analysis or sim#éduation techniques. Assets to be disposedeofegorted at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)
Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

For the Company's Canadian operations, the locatieay is the functional currency. All assets aadilities are translated at exchange rates
in effect at the end of the period, and income exjittnse items are translated at the average exehates for the period. Translation
adjustments are reported as a separate compongmaeholders' equity.

For the Company's European operations, the U.&rdehs the functional currency. Monetary assetslebilities are translated at the rates

of exchange on the balance sheet date and cessétsa notably property and equipment) are tragtlat historical rates. Income and expe
items are translated at average rates of exchamged period except for those items of expensé;iwtelate to assets, which are translated at
historical rates. The gains and losses from tréinslaelated to this subsidiary are included ininebme.

Gains and losses from foreign currency transactwasncluded in net income.

Effective April 1, 2001, in response to a changth&Euro for transaction activity previously conthd in the U.S. dollar by the Company's
largest European client, the Company adopted the &its functional currency for its European agiens.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe future tax consequences attributable tieifices between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitind their respective tax bases. Deferred tax sasek liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeernytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities change in tax rates is recognized in income irpéod that includes the enactment date.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of our financial instruments,iethinclude cash and cash equivalents, accountsviadae, note receivable, accounts
payable and a capital lease obligation, approxirtede fair values based on short terms to matumitpurrent market prices and rates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the ahangquity (net assets) of a business enterptisagla period from transactions and ot
events and circumstances from non-owner sourcasp@hensive income (loss) consists of net incomgsfland foreign currency translation
adjustments.

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Prior to the Offering, which was consummated iodis2000, basic and diluted net income (loss) paresattributable to PFSweb was
determined based on net income (loss) divided ey1th305,000 shares of PFSweb, Inc. (see Note

1) outstanding. There were no potentially diluthezurities outstanding during the periods presemtied to the Offering. For fiscal 2000 and
2001 outstanding options to purchase common sledfeESweb were anti-dilutive and have been excldo®d the weighted average share
computation. There are no other potentially diletsecurities outstanding.

Cash Paid During Year

The Company made payments for interest of appraeimn&16,000, $3,514,000 and $194,000 and incowestaf approximately $269,000,
$6,000 and $164,000 during fiscal 1999, 2000 aril 26espectively
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(see Notes 5 and 6). The Company's income taxvaglei and intercompany accrued interest are indini¢he payable to Daisytek as of
March 31, 2000.

3. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS:

During fiscal 2000, the Company entered into cartain-cancelable capital lease agreements primasiblving warehouse equipment. The
Company's property held under capital leases, dedlun furniture and fixtures, amounted to appratiety $2.7 million and $2.3 million, net
of accumulated amortization of approximately $28,80d $396,000 at March 31, 2000 and 2001, resgdgti

The following is a schedule of future minimum le@sgments under the capital leases together witlptasent value of the net minimum
lease payments as of March 31, 2001 (in thousands):

........ $ 506
........ 506
........ 493
........ 425
........ 425
........ 920
Total minimum lease payments........ccocccevvveeees. $3,275
Less: Amount representing interest................. . ... (836)
Present value of net minimum lease payments........ ... 2,439
Less: Current portion.......coccceevevvccveeennes L. (300)
Long-term capital lease obligations............... . ... $2,139

4. STOCK AND STOCK OPTIONS:
Preferred Stock Purchase Rights

On June 8, 2000 the Company's Board of Directottaded a dividend distribution of one preferredcktpurchase right (a "Right") for each
share of the Company's common stock outstandintutyn6, 2000. Each Right entitles the registerettedolders to purchase from the
Company one one-thousandth of a share of prefstomit at an exercise price of $67, subject to aajest. The Rights are not currently
exercisable, but would become exercisable if aeeaents occurred relating to a person or groupiaog or attempting to acquire 15 perc
or more of the Company's outstanding shares of aamstock. The Rights expire on July 6, 2010, untedeemed or exchanged by the
Company earlier.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On September 15, 2000, PFSweb shareholders adigt&FSweb Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "$®woathase Plan") which is
qualified under Section 423 of the Internal Reve@oede of 1986, to provide employees of PFSweb g@orpnity to acquire a proprietary
interest in the Company. The Stock Purchase Plaviges for acquisition of PFSweb common stock B5% discount to the market value.
The Stock Purchase Plan permits each U.S. empleliedhas completed ninety days of service to etepatticipate in the plan. Eligible
employees may elect to contribute up to 10 peraktiteir compensation with after-tax dollars umtmaximum annual contribution of
$21,250. The Company has reserved 250,000 sharsscoinmon stock under the Stock Purchase Plam Stock Purchase Plan became
effective for eligible employees in September 2009 of March 31, 2001, 37,378 shares had beendssnéer the Stock Purchase Plan.
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Stock Option Plans

PFSweb has authorized 6,000,000 shares of comraok f&tr issuance under two 1999 stock option pkarg 35,000 shares for issuance
under a stock option agreement (the "PFSweb Plahkg PFSweb Plans provide for the granting ofritize awards in the form of stock
options to directors, executive management, keyl@yeps, and outside consultants of PFSweb. The taghurchase shares under the stock
option agreements typically vest over a thyear period. Stock options must be exercised witliyears from the date of grant. Stock opt
are generally issued at fair market value. The Cawipecorded stock based compensation expensedidand $38,000 in fiscal 2000 and
2001, respectively, in connection with stock opgiom purchase an aggregate of 60,000 shares issded the PFSweb Plans to an outside
consultant. At March 31, 2001 there is no unamedigtock based compensation expense. As of Marc?OB1 there were 3,675,650 shares

available for future options.

The following table summarizes stock option acgivinder the PFSweb Plans:

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHA RES PRICE PER SHARE EXERCISE PRICE

Outstanding, March 31, 1999.................. - $ - $ -
Granted........ccccovevviceeinneaenn 1,42 5,000 $10.45 - $17.00 $10.69
EXEICISEd.....cvvervireriereiaieieiens - $ - $ -
Canceled.......ccccveveeeeeeeiiiiiiinn, 6 3,500) $10.45 - $13.00 $10.77

Outstanding, March 31, 2000.................. 1,36 1,500 $10.45-$17.00 $10.69
Granted........ccocvvvviieeieneaens 1,23 8,700 $1.16 - $11.75 $2.01
EXErciSed.....ocovevvviieeieiieeiens - 8 - $ -
Canceled.......ccccveveeeeeeeiiiiiinn, (24 0,850) $ 1.44 - $17.00 $6.73

Outstanding, March 31, 2001.................. 2,35 9,350 $1.16 - $17.00 $6.54

PFSweb Plan options granted prior to the Spin-efitwne-third on the anniversary of the date afigaad ongwelfth each quarter thereaft
PFSweb Plan options granted after the Spin-off @esttwelfth each quarter. As of March 31, 2000 20d1, zero and 963,520 options were
exercisable. The weighted average fair value abaptgranted during fiscal 2000 and 2001 were $&8riD$1.67, respectively. The weighted

average remaining contractual life of outstandiptioms is 8.8 years.

The following table summarizes information concegncurrently outstanding and exercisable PFSwetksiptions issued under the PFSweb
Plans to PFSweb officers, directors and employsex March 31, 2001:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
................... OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE WEIGHTED WEIGHT ED
RANGE OF OUTSTANDING AS OF  REMAINING AVERAGE EXERCISABLE AS OF  AVERAG E
EXERCISE PRICES MARCH 31, 2001 CONTRACTUAL LI FE EXERCISE PRICE MARCH 31,2001 EXERCISE PRICE
$1.16-%$269 1,118,100 9.4 $1.94 260,481 $19 5
$10.45-$17.00 1,241,250 8.3 $10.69 703,039 $10.6 3

Prior to the Offering and Spin-off transaction désed in Note 1, certain of the Company's employeese granted Daisytek stock options
under Daisytek's stock option compensation plares'[Daisytek Plans"). The stock options generadigt\over a three to fivgear period fron

the date of grant and expire 10 years after the ofagrant.
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In connection with the completion of the Spin-@fil, outstanding Daisytek stock options were repdaméh substitute stock options as
described below:

Options held by PFSweb employees were replacdti€aiption holder's election made prior to the Sgfhwith either options to acquire
shares of PFSweb common stock or options to acgbages of both Daisytek common stock and PFSwetmom stock (which may be
exercised separately) (the "Unstapled Options"}iddp held by Daisytek employees were replaceth@bption holder's election made prior
to the Spin-off) with either options to acquire swof Daisytek common stock or Unstapled Options.

In general, the adjustments to the outstandingybelisoptions were established pursuant to a forrdatigned to ensure that: (1) the
aggregate "intrinsic value” (i.e. the differencévmsen the exercise price of the option and the gtgykice of the common stock underlying
option) of the substitute options did not exceexlabgregate intrinsic value of the outstanding Y2alsstock options which were replaced by
such substitute options immediately prior to than8yf, and (2) the ratio of the exercise pricelod options to the market value of the
underlying stock immediately before and after tpenSff was preserved.

Substantially all of the other terms and conditiohsach substitute stock option, including theetion times when, and the manner in which,
each option is exercisable, the duration of thease period, the permitted method of exerciselesaent and payment, the rules that will
apply in the event of the termination of employmefithe employee, the events, if any, that may gise to an employee's right to accelerate
the vesting or the time or exercise thereof and/dsting provisions, are the same as those ofplaced Daisytek stock option, except that
option holders who are employed by one companyheilpermitted to exercise, and will be subjectltofahe terms and provisions of,
options to acquire shares in the other companfaagh holder was an employee of such other company

As a result of the Spin-off on July 6, 2000, 3,489, non-plan PFSweb stock options (the "PFSweb Nan*) were issued to PFSweb and
Daisytek officers, directors and employees. As airdéh 31, 2001, 3,396,845 PFSweb Non-plan options wetstanding, of which 2,693,641
were held by PFSweb officers, directors and emmsyad 703,204 were held by Daisytek officers,atlims and employees.

The following table summarizes stock option acgivinder the PFSweb Non-plan:

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHA RES PRICE PER SHARE EXERCISE PRICE
Outstanding, March 31, 2000.................. - $ - $ -
Granted..........cccoeveeveiiiiiiiiinenns 3,47 9,697 $4.22 - $10.58 $7.26
EXErciSed.......covvevuviieeieeieaninns - 8 - $ --
Canceled.........cccovveiiiieeiinens (8 2,852) $4.51 - $10.58 $7.91
Outstanding, March 31, 2001.................. 3,39 6,845 $4.22 - $10.58 $7.25

The weighted average fair values of options gradtethg fiscal 2001, was $5.95. As of March 31, 200,895,773 of options outstanding
were exercisable. The weighted average exercise pfiexercisable options outstanding at Marci2801 was $7.12. The remaining options
will become exercisable over the next two yearetas vesting percentages. The weighted averagaimam contractual life of outstanding
PFSweb Non-Plan options is 7.4 years.
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The following table summarizes information conceghPFSweb Non-plan options outstanding and exdneises of March 31, 2001.:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
................... OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

WEIGHTED emmmemememeeememeeeeeeeeeee eeee
AVERAGE WEIGHTED WEIGHT ED
RANGE OF OUTSTANDING AS OF  REMAINING AVERAGE EXERCISABLE AS OF  AVERAG E
EXERCISE PRICES MARCH 31, 2001 CONTRACTUAL LI FE EXERCISE PRICE MARCH 31,2001 EXERCISE PRICE
$4.22-$5.95 2,334,755 7.4 $5.85 1,366,794 $5.8 7
$6.18 - $10.37 96,180 7.8 $7.71 46,024 $8.1 1
$10.58 965,910 7.2 $10.58 482,955 $10.5 8

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only pamnssdf SFAS 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Congpginn.” In accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 123, the Company applies Acciogrerinciples Board Opinion No. 25, "Accounting ftock Issued to Employees" and
related interpretations in accounting for the PH$®Eans and Non-plan and the Daisytek Plans anordiogly, does not recognize
compensation expense for its stock option planaimethe Company and Daisytek typically do notasstions at exercise prices below the
market value at the date of grant. Had compensatipense for the PFSweb Plans and Non-plan anddtsytek Plans applicable to the
Company's employees been determined based updaiitalue at the grant date for awards consisiétiit the methodology prescribed by
SFAS 123, the Company's consolidated pretax inoemed have decreased by approximately $2,531,0605&;852,000 and $3,766,000 in
fiscal 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively, and ditialve resulted in a net loss per share of ($0($6)73) and ($0.81) in fiscal 1999, 2000,
and 2001, respectively. These pro forma effects nudye representative of expense in future pesate the estimated fair value of stock
options on the date of grant is amortized to expen®r the vesting period. Additional options maygbanted in future years. Options issued
under the Daisytek Plans prior to April 1, 1995yevexcluded from the computation.

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidcispy model with the following
assumptions used for grants of PFSweb options 8wk officers, directors, and employees under B@web Plans:

FISCAL YEARS ENDED MARCH 31,

2000 2001
Expected dividend yield......................... -- -
Expected stock price volatility... 4 5.00% - 84.23% 98.37% - 128.38%
Risk - free interest rate..............cc....... 5.5% - 6.2% 5.8% - 6.3%
Expected life of options (years)................ 6 5

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidaispy model with the following
assumptions used for grants of PFSweb options 8web and Daisytek officers, directors, and emplsyewler the PFSweb Non-Plans
during fiscal 2001: no dividends; expected volgtitif 112.08%, risk-free interest rate of 6.1%, angected life of 5 years.

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidaispy model with the following
assumptions used for grants of Daisytek optiorl3R8web officers, directors and employees undebtisytek Plans during fiscal 1999: no
dividends; expected volatility ranging between 2%dand 47.92%; risk-free interest rate ranging betw4.6% and 5.5%; and expected life
of 6 years. The following assumptions were usedjfants of Daisytek options to PFSweb employeegutigt Daisytek Plans during fiscal
2000: no dividends; expected volatility betweer34% and 50.02%; risk-free interest rate rangingvbeh 5.7% and 6.0%; and expected life
of 6 years. No options were granted to PFSwebafficdirectors or employees under the DaisyteksRilaming fiscal 2001.
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5. TRANSACTIONS WITH DAISYTEK AND OTHER RELATED PARIES:

Prior to the Offering, monies advanced by Daisyteke used to fund the Company's operations, workapgtal requirements and certain
investment activities. Interest expense chargeDdigytek was based on its weighted average intesitest of 6.7% for fiscal 1999 and 2000
and approximated $1.0 million and $1.7 million pestively.

During fiscal 2000, PFSweb used a portion of thezpeds from the Offering to repay its payable tsiak. Following the completion of the
Offering, Daisytek is prohibited from advancing fisnto PFSweb, except in the normal course of basjrend PFSweb will be restricted fr
borrowing from Daisytek following the Spin-off. &8 March 31, 2000, the payable to Daisytek refldgiayables incurred in the normal
course of business.

As of March 31, 2001, the Company had payablesdaisyiek of approximately $7.2 million and receivabfrom Daisytek of $3.1 million.
The Company's product revenue from sales to Daisyts $12.4 million, $7.2 million and zero in fi$d®99, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

The Company's costs and expenses include allosdtiom Daisytek for certain general administraseevices including information
technology, financial, treasury, legal, insuraned ather corporate functions as well as certaitscooperations including facility charges.
These allocations have been estimated on baseBdimgttek and the Company consider to be a reatonafitection of the utilization of
services provided or the benefit received by themm@any. The methods used for allocation of expefrses Daisytek were either (i)
percentage of: revenue, shipped orders, or nunflEnployees, or (i) management's best estimateveder, these allocations of costs and
expenses do not necessarily indicate the costexpehses that would have been or will be incursethb Company on a stand-alone basis.
Management estimates that incremental selling,rgéaad administrative expenses associated witweB®perating as a stand-alone
publicly traded company, including executive mamaget, overhead and public company costs, insurandeisk management costs, and
other costs would have been approximately $2.0anifor fiscal 1999 and 2000, and $0.2 million fiscal 2001.

During the quarter ended September 30, 1999, andrinection with the restructuring of certain IBMster distribution agreements under
which both Daisytek and PFSweb are parties, thefgamy transferred to Daisytek certain related prb@uentory, accounts receivable and
accounts payable that it held under its prior agergs. In consideration of this transfer, the Comyp&ceived the net book value of these
assets and liabilities of approximately $20 millimmd reduced its payable to Daisytek by a corredipgramount.

In conjunction with the successful completion of thffering, PFSweb entered into agreements witlsy@ek, including a tax sharing
agreement, a transaction management services agmednansition services agreement and a mastara®m agreement. In addition, on a
going forward basis, Daisytek will continue to breabligor and guarantor for certain of the Compaffigtility and equipment leases.

Included in the consolidated financial statemengssarvice fee revenues and cost of service fesntms which have been reflected by
PFSweb for certain services subcontracted to PF®&wénisytek under Daisytek's contractual agreement

Service fee revenues charged to Daisytek undérdinew IBM contracts, entered into during the tpragnded September 30, 1999, (ii) te
of the transaction management services agreemémDaisytek and (iii) for certain subcontractedvemes, were $12.1 million and $27.6
million for fiscal 2000 and 2001, respectively. dee fee revenues applicable to the subcontraeedce were $0.8 million in fiscal 1999.
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In May 1999, the Company entered into an agreemogmtovide services to a certain company. Durisgdi 2000, an executive officer and a
director of PFSweb both served on the Board of @i of this company. During fiscal 2001 an exeeutfficer of PFSweb served on the
Board of Directors of this company. PFSweb no lemgevides services to this company. Service feemae earned from this company was
approximately $1.8 million and $2.0 million for ¢sl 2000 and 2001, respectively, and other reverage$1.7 million for fiscal 2001.

PFS had previously guaranteed an unsecured regdivi@ of credit with commercial banks of Daisy{ghe "Facility"). In December 1999,
PFS was released from its guarantee.

A non-employee director of PFSweb was a Managingd@r of Hambrecht and Quist LLP, one of the lewhaging underwriters on the
Offering.

6. INCOME TAXES:

Prior to the Spin-off, the Company's operationsenacluded in consolidated income tax returns filgdaisytek. The provision for income
taxes reflected in the consolidated statementpefations and the deferred tax assets reflectéteinonsolidated balance sheets have been
prepared as computed on a separate return basicuftent income tax liability or receivable fasdal 1999 and 2000 have been included in
the payable to Daisytek. Effective with the comipletof the Spin-off, PFSweb ceased to be includedaisytek's consolidated tax return.

A reconciliation of the difference between the eotpd income tax expense at the U.S. federal stgtatwporate tax rate of 34%, and the
Company's effective tax rate is as follows (in tsends):

FISCAL YEARS ENDED
MARCH 31,

Income tax expense (benefit) computed at statutory rate.... $172 $(2,628) $(3,649)

Impact of foreign taxation at different rate....... ... 16 (24) (28)

State income taxes, net of federal tax impact...... ... 21 51 -

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes........... . ... 11 84 9

Net operating loss carryback.........ccccoeeeeeee. L - (171)

Change in valuation reserve........c.cccceeeeeeeee L - 915 3,382

Other. e (6) (18) 311
Provision (benefit) for income taxes..... .. $214 $(1,791) $ 25

The consolidated income (loss) before income taxgslomestic and foreign entities, is as followsttiousands):

FISCAL YEARS ENDED
MARCH 31,

DOMESHIC...cuvieiiieiiic e $(45) $(5,331) $ (6,188)
FOr@ign. oo 551 (2,399) (4,543)
Total oo $506 $(7,730) $(10,731)

56



PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)
Current and deferred income tax expense (bensf#iiinmarized as follows (in thousands):

FISCAL YEARS ENDED
MARCH 31,

1999 2000 2001

Current

DOMESHC..ccovieiiiieiie et $268 $(2,150) $ 57

State. oo 33 7 -

FOr@igN. .. 105 (171) 77
Total current.....ccocveeevvceeeeneeees L 406 (2,244) 134

Deferred

DOMESLIC...viviiiiiiieiee e (175) 453 (109)

State..c v —— a7 - -
Total deferred........ccooveevvvcveeee. L (192) 453 (109)
Total i $214 $(1,791) $ 25

The components of the deferred tax asset (liab#itg as follows (in thousands):

MARCH 31,
2000 2001
Deferred tax asset:
Allowance for doubtful accounts.................. .. $ 241 $ 95
Net operating loss carryforwards...........c.... L. 670 4,454
Other. .o 120 30
1,031 4,579
Less -- Valuation reserve.........cccccceeeeeeee L 915 4,297
Total deferred tax asset.....cccceeeeeee. L 116 282
Deferred tax liability:
Property and equipment........cccccccovvvcs Ll (116) (470)
Total deferred liability..................— ... (116) (470)
Deferred tax liability, net.......ccocceeeeeeeeee L $ - $(188)

Management believes a sufficient history of earsihgs not been established by PFSweb, on a standadsis to support the more likely
than not realization of deferred tax assets in &xoé existing taxable temporary differences. Aigtibn allowance has been provided for the
net deferred income tax asset as of March 31, 2002001. At March 31, 2001, net operating loss/é@amwards relate to taxable losses of
the Company's Europe subsidiary totaling approxetye6.6 million and the Company's U.S. subsiditmtaling approximately $6.5 million
that expire in 2016.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

The Company leases facilities, warehouse, offre@sportation and other equipment under operagiagds expiring in various years through
fiscal 2009. In most cases, management expectsrhthie normal course of business, leases witklbewed or replaced by other leases.
Minimum future annual rental payments
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under non-cancelable operating leases having alfiggnms in excess of one year are as followsh@usands):

Fiscal year ended March 31,

After giving effect to the lease assumption by Rtk discussed in Note 11, fiscal 2002 lease comanits and total lease commitments (and
leases guaranteed by Daisytek) decreased by apmtely $1.4 million and $5.0 million, respectively.

The Company has entered into an asset purchasenagméeto purchase certain assets totaling approgiyn®8.8 million in 2001. The
purchase agreement allows the Company to forfedtrion or all of certain prepayments and deposgitéch as of March 31, 2001 totaled $1
million, in lieu of liqguidated damages if the Conmgaelects not to exercise its purchase rights.

Total rental expense under operating leases appated $0.8 million, $3.7 million and $7.7 millioarffiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001,
respectively.

For all periods prior to the spin-off Daisytek owdn80% of more of our capital stock, we are includeBDaisytek's consolidated group for
federal income tax purposes. If Daisytek or othembers of the consolidated group fail to make &gfal income tax payments, we would
be liable for the shortfall since each member obmsolidated group is liable for the group's ertiveobligation.

Subsequent to March 31, 2001, the Company exeritisegtion to renew a lease for an additional frear term beginning in March 2002.
Annual payments under this lease, subject to adgst, approximate $0.9 million.

8. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION:

The Company is organized as a single operating eegwhich is an international provider of integrhb®isiness process outsourcing
solutions. Geographic areas in which the Compamyaips include the United States, Europe (prim&iigium), and Canada.
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The following is geographic information by areaafsfers between geographic areas were immategakrRies are attributed based on the
Company's domicile.

YEAR ENDED OR AT MARCH 31,

1999 2000 2001

Revenues:

United States..........ccccveevveevcreeennnnn ... $85,746 $64,455 $43,352
EUrope.....ooviiiiiieieeie e ... 10,456 18,357 5,863

Canada.........ccccvvvviiieiieeee e, ... 5,047 3,795 1,140

$101,249 $86,607 $50,355

Long-lived assets:

United States.........cccoovevvvenriieeinnens ... $14,449 $14,465 $13,775
EUrOPe...ciieieeeeee e 373 7,358 6,448
Canada.........coccvvviieiiiieeeeeeeee e, 152 260 134

$14,974 $22,083 $20,357

9. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution employe&gawplan under Section 401(k) of the Internal RexmeCode. Substantially all full-time
and part-time U.S. employees are eligible to pigie in the plan. The Company, at is discretioay match employee contributions to the
plan and also make an additional matching contidun the form of profit sharing in recognition thfe Company performance. During fiscal
year 2001, the Company matched 10% of employeegibatibns totaling approximately $41,0C

10. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED):

Unaudited quarterly results of operations for fis200 and 2001 were as follows (amounts in thodsa@xcept per share data):

FISCAL 2000
1S TQTR. 2ND QTR. 3RD QTR. 4TH QTR.
Total revenue.........ccceeeeeeeiieenineens $3 5811 $26,971 $10,868 $12,957
Gross pProfite.....eeeeeeeenieniciiiiennns 2,787 2,458 1,096 4,152
NEt 10SS...ccoiviiiriieiiieeieeee (298) (575) (4,777) (389)
Basic and diluted loss per share............... (0.01) (0.04) (0.31) (0.02)
Shares used in computation of basic and diluted
loss per share:......cccccceeevviiiiinnnns 1 4,305 14,350 15,447 17,870
FISCAL 2001 AS REPORTED
1S TQTR. 2ND QTR. 3RD QTR. 4TH QTR.
Total revenue.........ccevvereenveneenenn. $1 3,370 $12,563 $12,884 $11,638
Total cost of revenues 8,645 10,169 8,567 7,650
Gross profit........ccooeveeeeeiiiieneeiinns 4,725 2,394 4,317 3,988
Selling, general and administrative expenses... 5230 9,158 6,456 6,402
Loss from operations..............ccccvvvenes (505) (6,764) (2,139) (2,414)
NEt 10SS...ceiiiiiiiieiiiieiee e (238) (6,465) (1,861) (2,192)
Basic and diluted loss per share............... (0.01) (0.36) (0.10) (0.12)
Shares used in computation of basic and diluted
loss per share:......cccccceeevviiiiiinnns 1 7,870 17,870 17,870 17,907
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FISCAL 2001 AS RESTATED

1s TQTR. 2ND QTR. 3RD QTR. 4TH QTR.

Total revenue(d).....cccocvevvvrvenennnenns $1 3,370 $12,963 $12,384 $11,638
Total cost of revenues(l).........cccccvvveeeee 8,645 11,869 8,567 7,650
Gross pProfit(1)...eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneninicnnnns 4,725 1,094 3,817 3,988
Selling, general and administrative

eXPENSES(L)..euveeiiiiieieeiiiiiee e 5230 7,858 5,956 6,402
Loss from operations..............ccccuvvvenes (505) (6,764) (2,139) (2,414)
Net 10SS.....veviveiieiieieeceeeee (238) (6,465) (1,861) (2,192)
Basic and diluted loss per share............... (0.01) (0.36) (0.10) (0.12)
Shares used in computation of basic and diluted

loss per share:........ococceeeiiiiienenns 1 7,870 17,870 17,870 17,907

(1) Represents an increase in revenue in the sepaarter of $1.7 million for contract terminatiogek previously recorded as a reduction of
cost of service fee revenue and a $1.3 million®M8d million reduction of previously recorded seevfee revenues and selling, general and
administrative expenses in the second quarterfanthird quarter, respectively.

The seasonality of the Company's business is depengon the seasonality of its clients' businesstheir sale of products. Management
believes that with the Company's current client,rtie Company's business activity is expected tslightly more significant in the quarter
ended December 31.

11. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
Subsequent to March 31, 2001, the Company electeldange its fiscal year end date from March 3Ddéoember 31.

On April 30, 2001, the Company filed a Tender Ofi¢gsitement on Schedule TO (the "Schedule TO")inglab the Company's offer to
exchange certain options to purchase shares ofiitenon stock held by certain PFSweb officers, tliinscand employees for new options to
purchase shares of its common stock at a per ghiarseequal to the fair market value of one shélescommon stock on the date of
issuance, currently expected to be December 3,,2(8th the terms and subject to the conditionkénQffer to Exchange (the "Offer") dated
April 30, 2001. On May 29, 2001 the Offer expirewtiahe Company accepted for exchange options thpee 3,753,044 shares of common
stock, 2,663,544 of which were PFSweb Non-planomatiand 1,089,500 were PFSweb Plan options. On29a2001, the Company also
repriced and fully vested 105,000 options issuatkuthe PFSweb Plans and 698,860 PFSweb Non-ptamsineld by Daisytek officers,
directors and employees and non-employees whiclteesin a non-cash charge of approximately $0Iiiani

On May 25, 2001, the Company completed the satethin assets to Daisytek pursuant to an AssehBee Agreement (the "Purchase
Agreement”). Under the Purchase Agreement, the @agnpransferred and sold to Daisytek certain digtion and fulfillment assets,
including equipment and fixtures, that were pregigwsed by the Company to provide outsourcingisesvto Daisytek. Daisytek also
assumed certain related equipment leases and aaueelease and hired certain employees who weeeiated with the warehouse facility.
The consideration payable under the Purchase Agneeafi $11.0 million ($10 million of which was paad closing on May 25, 2001 and $1
million of which is payable over six months, subjexccertain potential offsets) included a reldlag¢he Company and Daisytek of certain
transaction management services agreements prgventered into between the Company and DaisytekeaDaisytek subsidiary. Proceeds
of $10 million (excluding the $1 million deferredgeeeds), were received for assets with an appriein$4.5 million net book value with a
resulting $5.0 million gain, after closing costsk®5 million. Concurrently with the closing of theset sale, the Company and Daisytek also
entered into a six-month transition services agergrander which the Company will provide Daisytelkhveertain
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONT INUED)

transitional and information technology servicesviich the Company will receive monthly servicedesubject to satisfaction of certain
performance criteria.

Pro forma revenues and pro forma loss from oparstior fiscal 2001, assuming the transaction hadiwed in April, 2000, would have been
$29.5 million and ($18.9) million, respectively.d$e pro forma adjustments do not consider cemdiastructure costs, such as operating
costs associated with the information technologycfion, salaries of certain management and persaietephone and lease costs, and
depreciation expense which supported this busimesthat will continue in the future. Because thesgoing costs were not considered, the
pro forma adjustments to the loss from operatioasat indicative of the overall margin earned urtlese transaction management services
agreements. These pro forma results do not gieetetd any fees to be earned by PFSweb for sertades provided by Daisytek under a six-
month transition services agreement.

The Company, Daisytek and IBM are parties to variblaster Distributor Agreements which have varistiseduled expirations dates thro
September 2001 and are otherwise generally ternarmlwill. On June 8, 2001, Daisytek notified thempany and IBM that it does not
intend to renew these agreements upon their sob@@uxbpiration dates. Services provided under thgssements by the Company represe
approximately 13.5% of the Company's total revenndiscal 2001. The Company is currently discugsiaith IBM the continuation of these
arrangements and has received a letter of intent fBM to extend such agreements with PFS for teary subject to obtaining satisfactory
financing. There can be no assurance that thesassi®ns will be successful or that the Companyagements with IBM will continue or,
they continue, any of the terms thereof. It is jasghat new arrangements with IBM may involvelcasmmitments by the Company, new
third party financing, a joint venture with a nevaster distributor or direct ownership by the Compahthe IBM products. The Company
believes that through one of these financing aearents, it will be able to continue to earn revaninghe future associated with selling or
providing services related to IBM product.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On February 26, 2001, PFSweb, Inc. and Arthur AselelLLP terminated their client-auditor relatiomshihe reports of Arthur Andersen
LLP on the consolidated financial statements ferghst two years contained no adverse opinionsotaimer of opinion and were not
qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit seap accounting principles. The Audit Committedlef Board of Directors of the Company
approved the decision to change independent acaotsnin connection with its audits for the two inregent fiscal years and through
February 26, 2001, there were no disagreementsAwittur Andersen LLP on any matter of accountinipgiples or practices, consolidated
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scopprocedure, which disagreements, if not resoleeithé¢ satisfaction of Arthur Andersen Ll
would have caused them to make reference thergh@inreport on the consolidated financial statetméor such years. During the two most
recent fiscal years and through February 26, 20@&te were no reportable events (as defined in Régn S-K Item 304(a)(1)(v)). The
Company requested that Arthur Andersen LLP furitighith a letter addressed to the Securities anchBrge Commission stating whether or
not it agrees with the above statements. A copsuoh letter, dated March 2, 2001, was received.ddrapany appointed KPMG LLP as its
new independent accountants as of February 26,2001

PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Reference is made to the information to be sehfiorthe section entitled "Election of Directorg"the definitive proxy statement involving
the election of directors in connection with thenrdial Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to blel in September 2001 (the "Proxy
Statement”) which section is incorporated hereimdfgrence. The Proxy Statement (or an amendmehisté-orm 10-K containing the
relevant information) will be filed with the Secties and Exchange Commission not later than 128 dégr the last day of the Company's
fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by Part Ill, Item 11, will iecluded in the section entitled "Election of Ditexs" of the Company's Proxy Statement
relating to the Company's annual meeting of stoltédrs to be held in 2000, and is incorporated nebgireference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Information required by Part Ill, Item 12, will liecluded in the Sections entitled "Election of Riers" and "Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management" of the CompaPgdxy Statement relating to the Company's annuetimg of stockholders to be held
in September 2001, and is incorporated herein teyence.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED TRANSACTI ONS

Information regarding certain of the Company'stieteships and related transactions will be incluagtethe section entitled "Certain
Relationship and Related Transactions" of the CamgaProxy Statement relating to the Company's alnmeeting of stockholders to be h
in September 2001, and is incorporated herein teyerace.
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PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ tieport:
1. Financial Statements
Independent Auditors' Report
Report of Independent Public Accountants
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2000da2001

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fisears Ended March 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthfoFiscal Years Ended March 31, 1999, 2000 afd 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiéears Ended March 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2. Financial Statements Schedules

Report of Independent Public Accountants

Schedule Il -- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because the redjirfermation is not present in amounts sufficientequire submission of the schedule or

because the information required is included infith@ncial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

EXHIBIT

NO. DESCRIPTION OF E XHIBITS

2.1 -- Master Separation Agreement by and among Daisytek
International Corporation, Dais ytek, Incorporated,
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. and PFSweb, Inc.

2.2 -- Initial Public Offering and Dis tribution Agreement by and
among Daisytek International Co rporation, Daisytek,
Incorporated, and PFSweb, Inc.

2.3* -- Registration Rights Agreement b y and among Daisytek
International Corporation, Dais ytek, Incorporated and
PFSweb, Inc.

2.4* -- Tax Indemnification and Allocat ion Agreement between
Daisytek, International Corpora tion and PFSweb, Inc.

2.5* -- Transition Services Agreement b etween Daisytek
Incorporated and PFSweb, Inc.

2.6* -- Transaction Management Services Agreement between
Daisytek, Incorporated and Prio rity Fulfillment Services,
Inc.

3.1* -- Amended and Restated Certificat e of Incorporation

3.2 -- Amended and Restated Bylaws

10.1* -- Non-Employee Director Stock Opt ion and Retainer Plan

10.2* -- Employee Stock Option Plan

10.3* -- Employee Annual Incentive Plan



10.4* -- Industrial Lease Agreement betw een Shelby Drive
Corporation and Priority Fulfil Iment Services, Inc.

10.5* -- Lease Contract between Transpor ts Weerts and Priority
Fulfillment Services Europe B.V

63



EXHIBIT

NO. DESCRIPTION OF E XHIBITS

10.6** -- Asset Purchase Agreement by and among PFSweb, Inc.,
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., Daisytek, Inc. and
Daisytek International Corporat ion

10.7** -- Transition Services Agreement b y and between PFSweb, Inc.
and Daisytek International Corp oration

10.8** -- Form of Change of Control Agree ment between the Company
and each of its executive offic ers

21** -- Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1** -- Consent of KPMG LLP

23.2** -- Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP

* Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Regfion Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File 388-87657).
** Filed herewith.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2001 reporting Item habges in Registrant's Certifying Accountant, traFebruary 26, 2001, PFSweb, Inc.
and Arthur Andersen LLP terminated their clientiémdrelationship. The reports of Arthur AnderseltPLon the consolidated financial
statements for the past two years contained norselapinion or disclaimer of opinion and were naalified or modified as to uncertainty,
audit scope or accounting principles. The Audit @uttee of the Board of Directors of the Companyrappd the decision to change
independent accountants. In connection with itstadidr the two most recent fiscal years and throkgbruary 26, 2001, there have been no
disagreements with Arthur Andersen LLP on any matteaccounting principles or practices, consokdiafinancial statement disclosure, or
auditing scope or procedure, which disagreementstiresolved to the satisfaction of Arthur Anderd LP, would have caused them to
reference thereto in their report on the consadiddinancial statements for such years. Duringwitemost recent fiscal years and through
February 26, 2001, there have been no reportakleteyas defined in Regulation S-K Item 304(a)(})(v
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
The Shareholders of PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing stadsdgenerally accepted in the United States, thea@ated financial statements of
PFSweb, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidigsee Note 1) as of March 31, 2000, and théeetleonsolidated statements of
operations, shareholders' equity and cash flowsdoh of the two years in the period ended Margt28Q0 included in this report on Form
10-K and have issued our report thereon dated M&p@0. Our audits were made for the purpose afiffitg an opinion on the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a wialeedule Il of this report on Form 10-K is thep@ssibility of the company's management
and is presented for the purposes of complying thighSecurities and Exchange Commission's rulessamot part of the basic consolidated
financial statements. This schedule has been debj¢ the auditing procedures applied in the augfithe basic consolidated financial
statements and, in our opinion, fairly states imlterial respects, the financial data requireddet forth therein in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements as of March 8002and for the two years then ended taken as &who

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Dallas, Texas
May 4, 2000
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SCHEDULE I
PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2001
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT CHARGES TO CHARGES TO BALANCE
BEGINNIN G COST AND OTHER END O
OF PERIO D EXPENSES ACCOUNTS DEDUCTIONS PERIO
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 1999:
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ $318 344 - 27) $ 63
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ $635 458 - (403) $ 69
Income tax valuation allowance......... $-- 915 -- - $ 91
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts........ $690 2,203 - (2,614) $ 27
Income tax valuation allowance......... $915 3,382 -- -- $4,29
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant thaly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrize

By: /'s/ THOVAS J. MADDEN

Thomas J. Madden,
Executive Vice President
and Chi ef Financial and Accounting
O ficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoAtB34, this report has been signed below by dheviing persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the datbsated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl MARK C. LAYTON Chairman of the Board, President June 29, 200 1
-- and Chief Executive Officer
Mark C. Layton (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl THOMAS J. MADDEN Executive Vice President and June 29, 200 1
-- Chief Financial and Accounting
Thomas J. Madden Officer (Principal Financial

and Accounting Officer)

/s CHRISTOPHER YATES Director June 29, 200 1

Christopher Yates

/s DR. NEIL JACOBS Director June 29, 200 1

Dr. Neil Jacobs

/s TIMOTHY M. MURRAY Director June 29, 200 1

Timothy M. Murray

/sl JAMES F. REILLY Director June 29, 200 1

James F. Reilly

/s/ DAVID |I. BEATSON Director June 29, 200 1

David I. Beatson
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* Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Regfion Statement on Form S-1 (Commission File 388-87657).

** Filed herewith.
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EXHIBIT 10.6
ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
Dated as of May 25, 2001
by and among
PFSWEB, INC.,
PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES, INC.
DAISYTEK, INC.
and

DAISYTEK INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION



SCHEDULE

2.1A Assets

2.1B Excluded Assets

2.2 Assumed Liabilities

24 Employees to Whom Seller May Off
2.4(c) Wages of Transferring Employees
3.2 Cash Payment Adjustments
3.3 Allocation of Purchase Price
35 Proration of Taxes

3.6 Proration of Utilities

3.8 Required Consents

4.2 Authority - Non-contravention
4.3 Leased Real Property

4.4 Personal Property

4.6 Material Permits

4.9 Contract Defaults

4.13 Benefit Plans

4.14 Employees

4.15 Consents

4.16 Insurance

4.17 Contested Taxes

421 Guaranteed Agreements

5.3 Purchaser Consents Required
7.2 IBM Agreements

12 Ongoing Expenses

14.1 Expenses

EXHIBITS

A Bill of Sale and Assignment
B Assumption Agreement

C Termination Agreement

D Transition Agreement

E Private Letter Ruling

er Employment
and Assumed Employee Expenses



ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement"made and entered into as of the 25th day of Ma@1 2By and among Prior|
Fulfillment Services, Inc., a Delaware corporatwith its principal offices at 500 North Central Egpsway, Plano, Texas 75074 ("Seller"),
PFSweb, Inc., a Delaware corporation with its gpatoffices at 500 North Central Expressway, Plarexas 75074 ("PFSweb"), Daisytek,
Inc., a Delaware corporation with its principalioffs at 1025 Central Expressway South, Suite 208nATexas 75013 ("Purchaser”), and
Daisytek International Corporation, a Delaware ooation with its principal offices at 1025 CentEadpressway South, Suite 200, Allen,
Texas 75013 ("Parent").

WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser, andhaser desires to buy from Seller, all of theetsssf Seller used in its business
operations (other than the Excluded Assets) toigeovomprehensive outsourcing solutions to Purctese B.A. Pargh Company (the
"Business"); and

WHEREAS, Purchaser is a wholoywned subsidiary of Parent and Parent will berfefin Purchaser's purchase of all of Seller's assstd ir
the Business (other than the Excluded Assets); and

WHEREAS, Seller is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Rle® and PFSweb will benefit from Seller's salelbbhits assets used in the Business
(other than the Excluded Assets); and

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the malirepresentations, warranties, covenants aneagnats hereinafter set forth g
other good and valuable consideration, and upotetimes and subject to the conditions hereinaftefosth, the parties do hereby agree as
follows:

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

1.1 Certain Defined Terms. As used in this Agreetytbe following terms shall have the following meays:
"Action" means any claim, action, suit or arbitoatin each case, by or before any Governing Authori

"Additional Documents" means the Bill of Sale anssfgnment, the Assumption Agreement, the Terminatigreement and the Transition
Agreement.

"Affiliate” means, with respect to any specified$n, any other Person that directly, or indiretttipugh one or more intermediaries,
Controls, is Controlled by, or is Under Common @oh#ith, such specified Person.

"Assets" has the meaning specified in Section



"Assumed Contracts" has the meaning specified in
Section 4.8.

"Assumed Employee Expenses" has the meaning speaifiSection 2.4(d).

"Assumed Liabilities" has the meaning specified in
Section 2.2.

"Assumption Agreement" shall mean that certain gsient and Assumption Agreement in the form of #t&tched hereto as Exhibit B to
executed by Purchaser, Seller and such third gaatid’urchaser may request.

"Bill of Sale and Assignment" shall mean that der@ill of Sale and Assignment in the form of tlztached hereto as Exhibit A to be
executed by Seller and such Affiliates of SellePaschaser may request.

"BSD" has the meaning specified in Section 7.2.

"BSD Business" has the meaning specified in Sedtién

"BSD Group" has the meaning specified in Sectiéna 7.

"Business" has the meaning set forth in the reciéthis Agreement.

"Business Day" means any day that is not a Satyal®yunday or other day on which banks are requiredithorized by law to be closed in
The City of New York.

"Cash Payment" has the meaning specified in Se8ti®(@).

"CERCLA" means the Comprehensive Environmental Besp, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, agaded, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

"CERCLIS" means the Comprehensive EnvironmentapBese, Compensation and Liability Information Sgste

"Claims" means any debts, contracts, leases, ili@kil arrangements, commitments, obligationsriatiins, disabilities or duties whatsoever,
whether known or unknown, contingent or absolwd,dr contract.

"Closing" and "Closing Date" have the meanings gigektin Section 8.1.
"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 198&mesnded.

"Control" (including the terms "Controlled By" afidnder Common Control With"), with respect to tlationship between or among two
more Persons, means the possession, directly wedtlgt or as trustee, personal representativexec&tor, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the affairs or management of



Person, whether through the ownership of votingisees, as trustee, personal representative arigge by contract or otherwise, including,
without limitation, the ownership, directly or imdctly, of securities having the power to electajarity of the board of directors or similar
body governing the affairs of such Person.

"Controlled Group" has the meaning specified inRuding.
"Deferred Payment" and "Deferred Payments" haverteéanings specified in Section 3.2(b).
"Distributing Group" has the meaning specifiedtie Ruling.

"Employee Claims" has the meaning specified in
Section 13.3.

"Encumbrance” means any security interest, pleshgetgage, lien (including, without limitation, emenmental and tax liens), charge,
encumbrance, adverse claim, preferential arranggrerestriction of any kind other than (a) medh&n materialman's, and similar liens for
work completed but for which payment is not yet;dis¢ liens for taxes not yet due and payable otdmes that the taxpayer is contesting
(and which contest has been disclosed on Schedlilevth respect to Seller) in good faith througipm@priate proceedings; or (c) with
respect to leased Assets, the interest of therdessany party claiming through the lessor, therei

"Environmental Laws" means any federal, state ocalltaw or any foreign law, including any statutge, regulation, ordinance, code or rule
of common law, now or hereafter in effect and inleease as amended, including any judicial or atnaiive order, consent decree or
judgment, relating to the environment, health, tyade Hazardous Materials, including, without liatibn, CERCLA; CERCLIS; the Resour
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Secti®@ts &t seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transport#&@n49 U.S.C. Sections 1801 et s
the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. ss.ss. 1251 et #am.foxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C Sest@801 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42
U.S.C Sections 7401 et seq.; the Safe Drinking Whatg 42 U.S.C Sections 300f et seq.; the Atormiergy Act, 42 U.S.C Sections 2011 et
seq.; the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and RacldatAct, 7 U.S.C Sections 136 et seq.; Emergéhanning and Community Right-to-
Know Act, 42 U.S.C Sections 11001 et seq.; the @Patianal Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C Sectidsik & seq.; and the Superfund
Amendments and Reauthorization Act, 42 U.S.C Sest8501 et seq.

"Environmental Permits" means all permits, writsggprovals, U.S. Environmental Protection Agencgtate generator numbers, licenses and
other authorizations from applicable Governing Auities required under any applicable Environmehéad.

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income SgclGt of 1974, as amended, and the rules and atignk promulgated thereund



"Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange A&B8#, as amended, and the rules and regulatiomsytgated thereunder.

"Excluded Assets" has the meaning specified in
Section 2.1.

"Excluded Claims" has the meaning specified in
Section 2.2.

"GAAP" means United States generally accepted adamyiprinciples and practices in effect from titndime applied consistently
throughout the periods involved.

"Governmental Actions" means all authorizations)samts, approvals, waivers, exceptions, variarics;hises, permissions, permits and
licenses of, and filings and declarations withobyn respect of, Governing Authorities.

"Governing Authority" means any United States fatlestate, local, possession or foreign governnharggulatory or administrative
authority, agency or commission, or any politiagbdivision thereof, or any court, tribunal or arhitoody (whether governmental or not).

"Governmental Order" means any order, writ, judgmiejunction, decree, stipulation, determinatiosraward entered by or with any
Governing Authority.

"Guaranteed Agreements" has the meaning specified i
Section 4.21.

"Guaranty Revocation Date" has the meaning spédifi&Section 4.21.

"Hazardous Materials" means (a) petroleum and [gtno fuels, lubricants and cleaning agents, radiiaenaterials, friable asbestos mate
as defined under 40 C.F.R. 61.141, urea formaldelfigam insulation, transformers or other equipntleat contain polychlorinated biphenyls
in concentrations of 50 ppm, and radon gas; (b)athgr pollutants, contaminants, wastes, chemioaddéerials or substances defined as or
included in the definition of "hazardous substahcészardous wastes", "hazardous materials", ttgubstances", "contaminants",
"pollutants” or "extremely hazardous wastes" ordgoof similar import, under any applicable Envir@mtal Law or otherwise subject to
regulation, control or remediation under Environtaéhaws; and (c) any other pollutant, contaminargste, chemical, material or substance

exposure to which is regulated pursuant to anyiegiple Environmental Law.
"IBM Agreements" has the meaning specified in Seci.2.
"IBM Products" has the meaning specified in Secfich

"Income Taxes" means any and all income taxes fb@egevith any and all interest, penalties, and t@aighl amounts imposed with respect
thereto) imposed by any government or taxing aitghor

"Indemnified Party" has the meaning specified in
Section 13.5



"Indemnification Notice" has the meaning specified
Section 13.5.

"Indemnifying Party" has the meaning specifiedast®on 13.5.
"IRS" means the Internal Revenue Service.

"Knowledge" (including the terms "to the knowledgf& or "to the best knowledge of") means, with sto Seller, the actual personal
knowledge of Mark Layton, Scott Talley, Steve Grah&liff Defee, Tom Madden, Chris Yates at the tiwieen the applicable statement is
made.

"Laws" means all laws, statutes, rules, regulationdinances and other pronouncements having feeteff law of the United States, any
foreign country or any domestic or foreign stat®yrtty, city or other political subdivision or ofyaoverning Authority.

"Leased Real Property" means the "Demised Premdsdgied in that certain Industrial Lease Agreentzied March 31, 1999 between New
York Life Insurance Company, as landlord, and Di@syInc., as tenant, as assigned to Seller put$adhat certain Assignment of Industrial
Lease Agreement dated May 9, 2000

"Losses" has the meaning specified in Section 13.4.

"Material Adverse Effect" means any circumstant@nge in, or effect on, the Business or the Agbetsindividually, or in the aggregate
with any other circumstances, changes in, or effent the Business or the Assets, taken as a wimliel materially adversely affect the
ability of Purchaser to operate or conduct the Bess in the manner in which it is currently opetaieconducted by Seller or utilize the
Assets in the manner in which they are currentiljzaet by Seller.

"Material Permits" has the meaning specified in
Section 4.6.

"MMH Certificate" has the meaning set forth in
Section 6.5.

"Objection Period" has the meaning specified in
Section 13.9(a).

"Parent" has the meaning specified in the openarggraph.

"Person" means any individual, partnership, firerporation, association, trust, unincorporated oizgtion or other entity, as well as any
syndicate or group that would be deemed to be soparnder Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act.

"PFS Group" has the meaning specified in Sectién 7.
"PFSweb" has the meaning specified in the openamggraph.

"Plans" has the meaning specified in Section ¢



"Private Actions" means all authorizations, consgapprovals, waivers, exceptions, variances, friges, permissions, permits and license
(a) Persons other than Governing Authorities and@verning Authorities acting in private capadtie

"Purchase" has the meaning specified in the Ruling.
"Purchase Price" has the meaning specified in Ge&til.
"Purchaser" has the meaning specified in the oggpéamagraph.

"Purchaser's Losses" has the meaning specified in
Section 13.2.

"Recalculation Notice" has the meaning specified in
Section 3.5.

"Remedial Action" means all action required undgy applicable Environmental Law or Environmentatr®ie and all action required by a
Governing Authority to (i) clean up, remove, treathandle in any other way Hazardous Materialfienenvironment; (ii) prevent the release
of Hazardous Materials so that they do not migrtelanger or threaten to endanger public healtheoenvironment; or

(iii) perform remedial investigations, feasibilisyudies, corrective actions, closures, and postiéher postclosure studies, investigations,
operations, maintenance and monitoring on, aboirt any real property, including, without limitatipSeller's Leased Real Property.

"Required Consents" means all orders, approvaigppsl certificates or consents of the Seller'srBad Directors and any third parties,
including, without limitation, any orders, approsatertificates or consents deemed necessary msebto Purchaser which shall be required
to consummate the transactions contemplated heireblyding, without limitation, consents to the igssnent of the Assumed Liabilities

listed on Schedule 2.2.

"Ruling" means that certain IRS Private Letter RgliL20721-01, a copy of which is attached heretexsbit E.
"SASA" has the meaning specified in Section 2.5.
"Seller" has the meaning specified in the openiaggraph.

"Seller Commercial Software Rights" means packagedmercially available software programs generallgilable to the public through
retail dealers in computer software which have bieemsed to Seller and which are used in Selter&ness but are in no way a componel
or incorporated in any of Seller's products andtesl trademarks, technology and know-how.

"Seller's Bank Account” means the account to béggdated by the Seller in a written notice to Pusghanot less than five Business Days
before the Closing.

"Seller's Losses" has the meaning specified in
Section 13.4



"Separation" has the meaning specified in the Rulin

"Service Level Penalties" has the meaning specifigde Transition Agreement.

"Services" has the meaning specified in Section 7.2

"Spin-off* means the transaction in which the Padistributed its ownership interest in PFSwelt¢cstockholders.
"Supplemental Ruling Request" has the meaning fipddn Section 4.11.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any and all taxes, feesef\duties, tariffs, imposts, and other chargeangfkind (together with any and all interest,
penalties, additions to tax and additional amoimfgosed with respect thereto) imposed by any gowemnt or taxing authority, including,
without limitation: taxes or other charges on othwiespect to income, franchises, windfall or otefits, gross receipts, property, sales, use,
capital stock, payroll, employment, social secyritgrkers' compensation, unemployment compensationet worth; taxes or other charges
in the nature of excise, withholding, ad valoretan®, transfer, value added, or gains taxes; salésise taxes charged by the U.S. federal
government, any state, country or any other logdlitense, registration and documentation feed;@rstoms' duties, tariffs, and similar
charges.

"Tax Allocation Agreement" shall mean that certéax Indemnification and Allocation Agreement dassdof December 7, 1999 between the
Parent and PFSweb.

"Termination Agreement" shall mean that certainmieation Agreement in the form of that attachedeteas Exhibit C to be executed by
Purchaser, Parent, Seller and such Affiliates oéfteand Seller as the other may request.

"TMSA" has the meaning specified in Section 2.5.

"Transferring Employee" has the meaning specified i
Section 2.4(a).

"Transition Agreement” shall mean that certain Biton Services Agreement in the form of that ditthereto as Exhibit D to be executed
by Parent and PFSweb.

"Vendor Debt" has the meaning specified in Sec8idh

"WARN Act" means the Worker Adjustment and RetmagnNotification Act of 1988, as amendt



ARTICLE II
PURCHASE AND SALE

2.1 Purchase and Sale of Assets. Effective at thsir@y, Seller will sell, convey, transfer, assad deliver to Purchaser, and Purchaser will
acquire and accept from Seller, the assets andgiep listed on Schedule 2.1A (collectively, thsSets"), free and clear of any and all
Encumbrances provided, however, that "Assets" stwdlinclude, and Seller will not sell, convey nséer, assign or deliver to Purchaser, and
Purchaser will not acquire from Seller, (i) themanate charter, qualifications to conduct busiressa foreign corporation, arrangements with
registered agents relating to foreign qualificagictaxpayer and other identification numbers, seailsute books, stock transfer books, blank
stock certificates, and other documents relatingpéoorganization, maintenance, and existenceeoStiler as a corporation,

(i) any of the rights of the Seller under this Agment, (iii) claims (and benefits to the extesythrise therefrom) that relate to Seller's
liabilities other than the Assumed Liabilities, )(adl of Seller's cash, bank accounts, certificatfedeposit, securities and accounts receivable,
(v) insurance policies of Seller and proceeds aerdieposits related thereto to the extent suclipslare not expressly assumed by Purchase
and Parent, and (vi) the items listed on SchedulB Zollectively, the "Excluded Assets").

2.2 Assumption of Certain Obligations. Effectivela Closing and subject to the terms set fortkihePurchaser shall assume and be liable
solely for the liabilities and obligations of Sellested on Schedule 2.2, including the Assumed Byge Expenses (collectively, the
"Assumed Liabilities"). Purchaser will not assunne avill not be liable for and Seller will be liabéead will pay for any Claims: (i) of the
Seller or of its Affiliates or (ii) which arise fro or relate to the ownership, use, sale, manufactesign, possession, operation or control of
the Assets or operation of the Business prior ¢oGlosing Date (collectively, "Excluded Claims"jher than the Assumed Liabilities and c

in the amounts set forth on Schedule

2.2. Furthermore, Purchaser will not assume anlérSsHall remain liable for all tax liabilities,éhuding, but not limited to, personal property
taxes and income taxes, incurred, imposed upooaued by the Seller through the Closing Date, aserfully described in Section 3.5.

2.3 Transfer and Conveyance. Seller shall exeaudealaliver to Purchaser at the Closing, a Bill afeésand Assignment in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A, the Assumptigme®ment in substantially the form attached hemst&xhibit B, and all such other
assignments, endorsements and instruments of érasskhall be necessary or appropriate to catrtheuntent of this Agreement and as s
be sufficient to vest in Purchaser title to altloé Assets free and clear of any Encumbrancescaeddence Purchaser's assumption of the
Assumed Liabilities.

2.4 Employees and Agents of Seller.

(&) On the Closing Date, Purchaser shall offeretingloyees of Seller listed on Schedule 2.4 (tharigterring Employees") employment with
the Purchaser, on the terms mutually agreed thdytrchaser and the employee. Seller hereby aigreesh solicitation and agrees to
encourage such employees to go to work for theHaiser and not to discourage any individuals wha#eged employment with Purchaser
from accepting such employment with Purcha



(b) Purchaser and Parent will not assume spongoaslzEny of the Seller's Plans.

(c) Effective on the Closing, Seller shall termm#tie employment of all Transferring Employees, imdémnify and hold harmless the
Purchaser and Parent against all claims made byfemsferring Employee as set forth in

Section 13.3. Purchaser shall provide all TransfgrEmployees with wages and benefits (other thacksoptions) which are comparable to
the wages and benefits as set forth on Schedule) 2Rurchaser intends to provide certain key Tearnag Employees options to acquire
Parent common stock pursuant to the Parent's siatidn plans but Purchaser shall have no obligatigorovide stock options to any
Transferring Employee.

(d) Effective as of the Closing Date, the Purchabatl assume the liability of the Seller in redpefahe Transferring Employees for accrued
but unpaid salaries, wages, vacation and sicklpayonly to the extent such liability is reflected Schedule 2.4(c) hereto and not to include
vacation time accrued for any period before theti@slve (12) months (the "Assumed Employee Expghs&xcept as set forth in the
preceding sentence, Seller shall remain responiblgayment of any and all other Employee Claimp@vided in Section 13.3 hereof.

(e) Seller and Purchaser agree that Purchasenneasgsed substantially all the property used iepagate unit of Seller's trade or business.
Accordingly, pursuant to Rev. Proc. 96-60, 1996:B.G399, provided that Seller provides Purchaséh il necessary payroll records for the
calendar year which includes the Closing Date, Rager shall furnish a Form W-2 to each Transferéimgployee disclosing all wages and
other compensation paid for such calendar yeartates withheld therefrom, and Seller shall beek&d of the responsibility to do so.

(f) Except as contemplated in this Section 2.4 afperiod of one year after Closing, PurchaserRarént will not solicit for employment,
directly or indirectly, any employee of Seller dF$web. For a period of one year after Closing, R&isand Seller will not solicit for
employment, directly or indirectly, any TransfegiBmployee or any employee of Purchaser or Parent.

2.5 Termination of Certain Agreements. Each Paitlyaxecute the Termination Agreement, the fornwiich is attached hereto as Exhibit C
that provides for the termination of the Transatfibanagement Services Agreement dated Decemb@&99, detween PFSweb, Inc./Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc. and Daisytek, Inc., (tfl@MSA") and the Strategic Alliance Services Agreardated July 15, 1999 between B.A.
Pargh Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of thecRaser, and PFSweb, Inc./Priority Fulfillment Seeg, Inc. (the "SASA"). Each Party
will remain subject to the confidentiality provisi® of the TMSA and the SASA and such sections erelly incorporated herein.

2.6 Transition Agreement. Each Party will executd deliver to the other at the Closing, the TraosiAgreement substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit



2.7 Deposits. Effective at the Closing, Seller wéll, convey, transfer, assign and deliver to Raser, and Purchaser will acquire and accept
from Seller, all rights to any deposits or advanoasie in connection with leases for Assets.

ARTICLE Il
PURCHASE PRICE

3.1 Purchase Price. The purchase price (the "PsedReace") for the Assets shall be (a) Ten Mill@ollars ($10,000,000) plus (b) the
Deferred Payments plus (c) the mutual executiondatigery of the Termination Agreement includingemses minus (d) the Assumed
Employee Expenses (except for the sick pay pottiereof), subject to the adjustments set forthaoti®ns 3.5 and 3.6 hereof.

3.2 Method of Payment of Purchase Price PayaliteeaClosing. The Purchase Price shall be deliveyegurchaser on the Closing Date and
Purchaser shall assume the Assumed LiabilitiefierCtosing Date as follows:

(a) by wire transfer of immediately available furidghe Seller's Bank Account in an amount equdleo Million Dollars ($10,000,000) (the
"Cash Payment"), subject to the adjustments aorhton Schedule 3.2.

(b) by payment of One Hundred Sixty-Six ThousandHBindred Sixty-Six Dollars and Sixty-Six Cents §$1666.66) on each of July 31,
2001, August 31, 2001, September 28, 2001, Oct®be?001 and a final payment of $333,333.44 on Ndbar 26, 2001 (each, a
"DEFERRED PAYMENT" and collectively, the "DEFERRBEEAYMENTS") for aggregate Deferred Payments equéne Million Dollars
($1,000,000); provided that each Deferred Paymigait be subject to the rights of offset set fortithis Agreement and the Transition
Agreement.

(c) by Purchaser's assumption of the obligation®\&sumed Employee Expenses.
(d) by Purchaser's execution of the Terminationeggnent in order to effectuate the releases sét fiogrein.

(e) by Purchaser's execution and delivery to Sali¢ghe Closing of an Assumption Agreement in safitslly the form attached hereto as
Exhibit B.

3.3 Allocation of Purchase Price. Subject to adgstt as set forth herein, for tax purposes thelwsee Price shall be allocated among the
Assets and other matters as set forth on Sched@l®8rchaser and Seller shall report the allonaiio Internal Revenue Service Form 85¢
a manner consistent with the allocation provide8d¢hedule 3.3, subject to the adjustments set Fatéin.

3.4 Right of Offset for Claims. Parent and Purchasell have the option, in addition to and nadlién of any other available rights or
remedies hereunder, in the event Seller is detemitio owe any indemnification amount in accordanite the procedures of Articl



X1l of this Agreement, and Seller fails to pay buamount, Parent and Purchaser shall have thetdgiifset such amount against the
Deferred Payments and the amounts payable und@ransition Agreement, in each case, respectivelgccordance with the terms and
provisions set forth herein and therein.

3.5 Proration of Taxes. All real and personal proptaxes and special assessments payable buehdug with respect to any of the Assets
shall be prorated between Seller and Purchasetésrth on Schedule 3.5 on the basis of actuas édgpsed between the commencement of
the current fiscal tax year and the Closing Datesell on a 365-day year; provided that all suchstare assessments which Seller has agreec
to pay on an installment basis shall be paid ihdubr prior to the Closing Date. In connectiotwsuch proration of taxes, in the event that
actual tax figures for the year of Closing are anadilable at the Closing Date, an estimated, prowé proration of taxes shall be made using
tax figures from the preceding year together witbhsincreases or decreases thereof as Purchas€eliedmay agree. It is the intent of the
parties that the Seller shall be responsible flaiaalliabilities related to the Assets up to andiiding the Closing Date, and Purchaser she
responsible for all tax liabilities related to thesets following the Closing. In the event that ohéhe parties later receives a bill showing
such charges to be more or less than originaliynastd, such party shall send notice to the othetywithin thirty (30) days of such receipt
(the "Recalculation Notice") with a statement irading the amount overpaid or underpaid by suchrqibgty. The party that underpaid shall
pay the other party within thirty (30) days of rgxtef the Recalculation Notice unless such amaudisputed utilizing the procedures set
forth in Section

13.9. All transfer taxes, if any, arising from tsade of the Assets shall be borne by Seller.

3.6 Proration of Utility Charges and Other Paymelmsny case in which the Closing Date shall dalla date other than the date on which
payments are due, and for which a final billing hasbeen obtained by Seller, with respect to diligyuor similar regular periodic charge
respecting the Assets or the Leased Real Propwiyding, but not limited to, common area maintergacharges, any such utility or similar
charge payable with respect to the current penoahich the Closing Date occurs shall be prora&ttvben Seller and Purchaser on the basis
of the actual number of days elapsed from the diast of such period to the Closing Date as sehfont Schedule 3.6. In the event that one of
the parties later receives a bill showing such g@gsito be more or less than originally estimatedh party shall send a Recalculation Notice
to the other party within thirty (30) days of suelceipt with a statement indicating the amount paif or underpaid by such other party. The
party that underpaid shall pay the other party withirty (30) days of receipt of the Recalculatigotice unless such amount is disputed
utilizing the procedures set forth in Section 12\ppropriate adjustment shall also be made at 6¢p& apportion the Assumed Liabilities so
that Seller shall be responsible for, and enjoybteefits of, the Assumed Liabilities for the perfarior to and including the Closing Date, .
Purchaser shall be responsible for, and enjoy émefits of, the Assumed Liabilities for the perfotlowing the Closing Date.

3.7 Additional Rights for Assets. Effective on flsing Date, Seller hereby constitutes and appdtatrchaser the true and lawful attorne
Seller, with full power of substitution, in the narof Seller or Purchaser, but on behalf of andtferbenefit of Purchaser: (i) to demand and
receive from time to time any and all the Assetd tinmake endorsements &



give receipts and releases for and in respecteo$éime and any part thereof;

(ii) to institute, prosecute, compromise and settlg and all Actions that Purchaser may deem prioperder to assert or enforce any claim,
right or title of any kind in or to the Assets;j)iio defend or compromise any or all Actions ispect of any of the Assets; and (iv) to do all
such acts and things in relation to the mattergostit in the preceding clauses (i) through (iB)Rurchaser shall deem desirable. Seller hereby
acknowledges that the appointment hereby madehenplawers hereby granted are coupled with an isttared are not and shall not be
revocable by it in any manner or for any reasotieGshall deliver to Purchaser at Closing an agkedged power of attorney to the

foregoing effect executed by Seller. Purchasei #id¢mnify and hold harmless Seller from any alhdl@sses caused by or arising out of .
breach of Law by Purchaser in its exercise of qumher of attorney.

3.8 Transfer and Conveyance. Notwithstanding angtkbntained herein to the contrary, this Agreenséatl not constitute an agreement to
assign any Asset or Assumed Contracts if an assghor attempted assignment of the same withoutdhsent of another Person would
constitute a breach thereof or in any way imparrights of Purchaser thereunder or give to amd érty any rights with respect thereto. If
any such consent is not obtained prior to the @p&ate or if an attempted assignment would beécéfe or would impair Purchaser's
rights under any such Asset or Assumed Contratttaat would not receive all such rights and respbilities, then, except for those requi
consents set forth on Schedule 3.8, (i) Selled sisal commercially reasonable efforts to provideanse to be provided to Purchaser, to the
extent permitted by law, the benefits of any suslset or Assumed Contract and (ii) in considerati@neof Purchaser shall pay, perform and
discharge on behalf of Seller such of the Sellatslities thereunder to the extent that the Passhr would have been responsible if such
consent or approval had been obtained. In addiSefier shall take such other actions as may reddpibbe requested by Purchaser in ords
place Purchaser, insofar as reasonably possibieeisame position as if such Asset or Assumedr&ctisthad been transferred as
contemplated hereby and so all the benefits andemsrrelating thereto, including possession, isle of loss, potential for gain and
dominion, control and command, shall inure to Paseh. If and when such consents and approvalsbéaaed, the transfer of the applicable
Asset or Assumed Contract shall be effected intalzowe with the terms of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IV
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER AND PFSWEB

The Seller and PFSweb, jointly and severally, regpnéand warrant to the Purchaser as follows:

4.1 Due Organization and Qualification. Each ol&eind PFSweb is a corporation duly organizeddlaéxisting and in good standing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, and Has@isite corporate power and authority to ovetase or operate its properties and to carry
on its business as it is presently being operateldrathe place where such properties are ownedetkor operated and such business is
conducted.

4.2 Corporate Power and Authority. The executiativéry and performance of this Agreement and Addél Documents by Seller and
PFSweb and the consummation by ther



the transactions contemplated hereby and theretwg been duly authorized by all requisite corpoaatéon, including, but not limited to,
Board of Director approvals, and no vote of shalddrs or further action or approval is requireghéomit Seller and PFSweb to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby and therdiig. Agreement and Additional Documents when exetatel delivered in accordance w
the terms thereof, will constitute, the legal, daind binding obligations of Seller and PFSweborrable in accordance with their terms,
Seller and PFSweb have full power, authority ag@lleight to enter into this Agreement and the Aiddial Documents and to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby and therdimyniaking and performance of this Agreement and\tiitional Documents and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated reaed thereby in accordance with the terms henedftereof will not (a) conflict with

the Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws @li8r or PFSweb, (b) result in any breach or teatiom of, or constitute a default under, or
constitute an event that with notice or lapsemgti or both, would become a default under, or tésuhe creation of any Encumbrance upon
any of the Assets under, or create any rightsrafiteation, cancellation or acceleration in any parander, any Assumed Contract, or violate
any order, writ, injunction or decree, to whichl8ebr PFSweb is a party, by which any of the Assletisiness or operations of Seller or
PFSweb may be bound or affected or under whichofilye Assets, business or operations of Sell@F8web receive benefits, except as set
forth in Schedule 4.2, (c¢) result in the loss oreade modification of any license, franchise ommiegranted to or otherwise held by Seller or
PFSweb required for the Business except as sétifoschedule 4.2 or (d) result in the violatioraofy provisions of law applicable to Seller
or PFSweb, the violation of which would reasondi#yexpected to have a Material Adverse Effect. 8ag@n the Seller's estimate of its
going concern value, the Seller is not insolverfabe date hereof, will not be insolvent on tHedthg Date and the transfer of the assets
contemplated hereby will not render it insolvertieTransactions contemplated hereby are not b&ing dith actual intent to hinder, delay
defraud any entity to which the Seller is, or resgny expects to become, indebted on or after thsi@y Date. Based upon the PFSweb's
estimate of its going concern value, PFSweb isnsmtlvent as of the date hereof, will not be insoltvon the Closing Date and the transfer of
the assets contemplated hereby will not rendessitlivent. The transactions contemplated herebya@rbeing done with actual intent to
hinder, delay, or defraud any entity to which PFBge or reasonably expects to become, indebteat after the Closing Date.

4.3 Real Property.

(a) Schedule 4.3 lists: (i) the address of Leaseal Rroperty,
(i) the identity of the lessor, lessee and curagupant (if different from lessee) of the LeaRel Property and (iii) the term pertaining to
the Leased Real Property.

(b) Except as described in Schedule 4.3, Sellenbageceived any written notice of any violatidraay law, regulation or ordinance relating
to any of the Leased Real Property. Seller has ragdiable to Purchaser true and correct copiei afiy, all certificates of occupancy,
environmental reports and appraisals which it eutygpossesses in respect of the Leased Real Ryofeller, as the lessee of each parcel of
Leased Real Property, is in peaceful and undistuplessession of such parcel of Leased Real Propartythere are no contractual legal
restrictions to which Seller or PFSweb is a partyolv preclude or restrict the ability to L



the subject premises for the purposes for which #re currently being used which would reasonablgxpected to have a Material Adverse
Effect. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.3, Séitey not leased or subleased any parcel of LeasaldHRoperty to any other Person, nor has
Seller assigned its interest under any lease deasib set forth in Schedule 4.3 to any third party.

(c) Seller has delivered to Purchaser correct angptete copies of all leases and subleases shtifo8chedule 4.3 and any amendments.
With respect to each of these leases and subleases:

(i) such lease or sublease, as amended is ledial, banding, enforceable and in full force andesff with respect to Seller, and, to the
knowledge of Seller, with respect to all other jgarthereto and is the entire agreement betweepatties thereto with respect to such

property;

(i) except as otherwise set forth in Schedule gugh lease or sublease will not cease to be legkd, binding, enforceable and in full force
and effect on terms identical to those currentlgfiiect as a result of the consummation of thestaations contemplated by this Agreement,
nor will the consummation of the transactions comtkated hereby constitute a breach or default usdeh lease or sublease or otherwise
the landlord a right to terminate, recapture or ifyoslich lease or sublease;

(iii) except as otherwise disclosed in Schedule wifh respect to each such lease or subleaseS¢hé¢r has not received any notice of
cancellation or termination under such lease olesige and, no lessor has any right of terminaticzancellation under such lease or sublease
except in connection with the default of Selleréumder, (B) Seller has not received any notice lafeach or default by Seller under such
lease or sublease, and (C) Seller has not graotaayt other Person any material rights, adversghmrwise, under such lease or sublease; or

(iv) except as set forth in Schedule 4.3, neittedteB nor, to Seller's Knowledge, any other pastguch lease or sublease is in breach or
default in any respect, and no event has occuhat Wwith notice or lapse of time, would constitateeh a breach or default by Seller or any
other party to such lease or sublease or pernnitin@tion or acceleration of such lease or sublease.

(d) Seller has received no written notice of thennencement of any condemnation proceedings or @mndtmmain proceedings of any kind
against the Leased Real Property. To Seller's Kexgd, there are no condemnation proceedings oreatdomain proceedings of any kind
threatened against the Leased Real Property.

4.4 Personal Property; Title to Property.
(a) Set forth on Schedule 4.4 is a list of all Asse

(b) Except for the leased Assets as listed on Sdbetl4, Seller is the legal and equitable ownellzas good and indefeasible title to all of
Assets, and upon conveyar



of the Assets to Purchaser by Seller at the Clo$tngchaser will acquire and hold indefeasible titl all of the Assets, whether real, persc
tangible, intangible or mixed, free and clear of and all Encumbrances. Seller enjoys peaceabkepsi®n of all Assets. Except for the
Excluded Assets, the Assets constitute all thetesmzessary to conduct the Business as curramtijucted on the date hereof. The Assets
listed on Schedule 2.1A constitute all of the Asdetated, as of the Closing Date, at the Leased Reperty. All of the assets listed in the
MMH Certificate continue to be located at the Le&bReal Property as of the Closing Date.

(c) With respect to any leased Assets: (i) thedemgeement is legal, valid, binding, enforceadtel in full force and effect; (ii) the lease
agreement will continue to be legal, valid, bindiegforceable, and in full force and effect on iiteai terms following the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby (includingaisignments and assumptions referred to in Se2tibabove); (iii) no party is in breach
default, and no event has occurred which with moticlapse of time would constitute a breach oadl&for permit termination, modification,
or acceleration, under the lease agreement; apddiparty has repudiated any provision of thedesmgreement.

4.5 [Intentionally Omitted]

4.6 Permits. Seller owns and holds all licenses)dhises, permits, titles and other governmentalagizations (including, without limitation,
motor vehicle titles and current registrations)yviEsnmental Permits, licenses, and franchisesabsence of any of which would have a
Material Adverse Effect (the "Material Permits™)n Accurate list of all such Material Permits isfeeth on Schedule 4.6 hereto. The Material
Permits are valid and, to the extent permitted aw lor the terms thereof, will be transferred todhaser at the Closing, and to Seller's
Knowledge no governmental authority intends to efrterminate or not renew any such Material Per8etler has conducted and is
conducting the Business in compliance with the irequents, standards, criteria and conditions gt o the Material Permits and is not in
violation of any of the foregoing except where snoimcompliance or violation would not have a Matkefidverse Effect. Except as
specifically provided on Schedule 4.6, the trarisastcontemplated by this Agreement will not resukh default under or a breach or
violation of, or adversely affect the rights anchégts afforded to Seller, or to Purchaser after@osing, by any such Material Permits.

4.7 Compliance with Laws. The Seller has not resgtivotice of any investigation, threatened or aoplated, by any federal, state or local
agency or Governing Authority, which remains untesd involving the Business or the Assets, inclgdinut not limited to, the safety aspe
of the Assets or the safe working conditions andrenment of its employees at the Leased Propeargnmgployment practices or policies.

4.8 Assumed Contracts. Seller owns all rights gréd Seller under any contract, agreement, lealeense that Purchaser has elected to
assume as an Assumed Liability (the "Assumed Cot#tfaand has not made any assignment, pledgéher tansfer of such rights.

4.9 Contract Defaults. Seller is not in default has any act occurred which upon the passage efwiithconstitute a default by Seller and
Sellerhas not been declared to be in default in any mspeler Assumed Contract, and such Assumed Cdstae legal, valid an



binding obligations of the Seller and, to Sell&®wledge, the other parties thereto in accordavittetheir terms and, except to the extent
reflected in Schedule 4.9, have not been amendéd@udefenses, offsets or counterclaims therete baen asserted by any party thereto
other than Seller nor has Seller waived any rigfitseunder. Except as set forth on Schedule 4ch, @ethe Assumed Contracts is assumable
by the Purchaser and will not cease to be legtij Mainding, enforceable and in full force andesff on terms identical to those currently in
effect as a result of the consummation of the @atiens contemplated by this Agreement, nor wil tonsummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby constitute a breach or defisuglér such contract or otherwise give the othetiyghereto a right to terminate, recapture
or modify such contract.

4.10 Litigation. There are no Actions pending agateller or, to the knowledge of Seller, threatkeagainst Seller, Seller's business,
including, without limitation, the Business or tAssets, or any property or rights of Seller, at tavin equity or before or by any Governing
Authority. Seller is not in default with respectaoy order, writ, injunction or decree of any Gaueg Authority with respect to the Assets,
the Business or the operations or employees dBtisness.

4.11 Private Letter Ruling. PFSweb examined theddtom the Parent to the IRS dated April 6, 288questing a supplemental ruling to F
100247-00 (the "Supplemental Ruling Request") &eddcts presented and the representations maaénth® the extent descriptive of
PFSweb or the Controlled Group or the busines§&web or the Controlled Group (including, withautitation, the business purposes for
the Separation and the Purchase, that none ofidtereceived as part of the Separation will beidiged, directly or indirectly, to the
shareholders of PFSweb, the representations iSupplemental Ruling Request to the extent that take to PFSweb or the Controlled
Group or the business of PFSweb or the Controllexi@and the plans, proposals, intentions and ipslief PFSweb and the Controlled
Group), shall be treated as having been made byet-&nd are true, correct, and complete. NeitreePtirchaser nor the Parent will have
liability for any misrepresentations made by PFSivethis Section 4.11. A breach of the represemtatimade in this Section 4.11 shall be
deemed a Prohibited Action (as defined in the THacation Agreement).

4.12 Absence of Undisclosed Liabilities. Thereravdiabilities, contingent or otherwise, exceptélosed on Schedule 2.2, for which
Purchaser or Parent would be obligated or whichldvattach to or follow the Assets.

4.13 Employee Benefit Plans. Each employee bepigiit within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISAqintained or contributed to by Sel
and used for any of the Transferring Employeedédctiely, the "Plans") is listed on Schedule 4 M8ither the Purchaser nor the Parent will
have liability under any of the Plar



4.14 Employees; Employee Relations.

(a) Schedule 4.14 sets forth (i) the name and otueenual salary (or rate of pay) and other comgiimrs (including, without limitation,
normal bonus, profit-sharing and other compensatiom payable by Seller to each Transferring Emedgyii) any increase to become
effective after the date of this Agreement in thialtcompensation or rate of total compensatiorapkeyby Seller to each such person, anc
all accrued but unpaid vacation pay owing to argnsferring Employee.

(b) Seller is not a party to, or bound by, the ®whany collective bargaining agreement that coegry Transferring Employee. Except as set
forth on Schedule 4.14, there are no labor dispexésging or, to the best knowledge of Seller, éite@ed that involve, by way of example,
strikes, work stoppages, slowdowns, picketing,nyr @ther interference with work or production, ayather concerted action by employees
that involve any of the Transferring Employees.dWarges or proceedings before the National Labtati®eas Board, or similar agency, exist
or, to the best knowledge of Seller, are threat¢hatlrelate to the Business. To the Seller's Kedgé, there are no attempts being made to
organize any employees presently employed in tterggs nor have any employees left or been firen wadre attempting to organize the
employees. To Seller's Knowledge, all of the Trangig Employees will continue to be available absantially the same terms and
conditions to the Purchaser following Closing.

(c) Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.14, Selleotis party to any employment agreement or otgereament with any Transferring
Employee. No Actions have been commenced nor t&étler's Knowledge are threatened against Sefi@nly employee of Seller concern
such employee's work with the Business under atgréd, state or local laws in respect of the emplet relationship of such employee or
the independent contractor relationship of any rearior or consultant, including, but not limited #xctions under: (i) anti-discrimination
statutes such as Title VII of the Civil Rights Axft1964, as amended (or similar state or local lprehibiting discrimination because of race,
sex, religion, national origin, age and the lik@);the Fair Labor Standards Act or other fedestdte or local laws regulating hours of work,
wages, overtime and other working conditions; (@uirements imposed by federal, state or locale@ung contracts such as those imposed
by Executive Order 11246; (iv) state laws with exdtfto tortious employment conduct, such as sladdeassment, false light, invasion of
privacy, negligent hiring or retention, intentiomafliction of emotional distress, assault and &att or loss of consortium; (v) the
Occupational Safety and Health Act, as amendedietisas any similar state laws, or other regulaiogspecting safety in the workplace; or
(vi) any state or federal statutes, rules or reifpia classifying persons as employees ratheritidependent contractors. Seller is not subject
to any settlement or consent decree with any ptesgormer employee, employee representative gpr@averning Authority relating to

claims of discrimination or other claims in respgcemployment practices and policies; and no GuugrAuthority has issued a judgment,
order, decree or finding with respect to the ladyed employment practices (including practices iredatio discrimination) of Seller involving
the Business



(d) Since December 7, 1999, Seller has not incuarsdliability or obligation under the WARN Act similar state laws.

(e) The Seller does not owe any wages, salaribsmuses to Transferring Employees for servicesenautprior to the Closing Date that are
not Assumed Employee Expenses and no claims harerhade for any such amount by any Transferringl&yep.

4.15 Consents. Except as set forth in Schedulerbif®nsent, approval, authorization or order gf @urt, Governing Authority or any oth
person or under any Assumed Contract is requirgetmit Seller to convey the Assets free of Encuanbes, assign the Assumed Contracts
or to otherwise consummate the transactions conéeatpby this Agreement.

4.16 Insurance. Set forth on Schedule 4.16 is armmndescription of all policies of fire, casualipility and other forms of insurance and
all fidelity bonds held by Seller covering the Asser the Business together with a list of all @idpamounts, deposits and claims made other
than health claims made by employees under groaiphhglans.

4.17 Taxes. PFSweb and Seller have paid all Takéswhave become due or have been assessed dpairtsie Assets and all Taxes which
any taxing authority has proposed or asserted toalieg, except for Taxes which are not yet due ayghble or which it is contesting as set
forth on Schedule 4.17. All Tax liabilities to whithe properties of Seller may have been subjdwigd been discharged, except for Taxes
assessed but not yet payable. There are no Tamsfar unpaid Taxes which are due and owing présbeing asserted against Seller,
PFSweb or the Assets and to Seller's Knowledge tisero basis for any such claim. Neither SellerPieSweb has granted any extension to
any taxing authority of the limitation period dugimhich any Tax liability against the Assets mayakeerted thereby. The Assets will be
conveyed to Purchaser at Closing free and cleangfclaims or Encumbrances for Taxes incurred poidhe Closing Date, except for Taxes
which are not yet due and payable.

4.18 Environmental Laws and Regulations. Exceeaigorth in the Mock OSHA Safety Survey preparg@iperations Excellence Inc. for a
survey conducted from March 28, 2001 to March 2812 (i) to Seller's Knowledge, the operationshef teased Real Property and any use,
storage, treatment, disposal or transportationafadidous Materials which has occurred in or orL#fesed Real Property from December 7,
1999 to the Closing Date have been in compliantle Bmvironmental Law, except for such noncompliaasevould not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect; (iiptdler's Knowledge, from December 7, 1999 to tlesi@g Date, no release, leak, discha
spill, disposal or emission of Hazardous Materfiels occurred in, on or under the Leased Real Rgojmea quantity or manner which viola
or requires further investigation or Remedial Antimder Environmental Law; (iii) to Seller's Knowdtge, there is no pending or threatened
litigation or administrative investigation or preckng concerning the Leased Real Property involtHagardous Materials or Environmental
Laws; and (iv) to Seller's Knowledge, there areahove-ground or underground storage tank systecasdd at the Leased Real Property,
except for two above ground diesel fuel tanks.

4.19 Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Nefb#ler nor PFSweb has suffered any event or cirtamoe which could reasonably be
expected to preclude Purchaser from u;



the Assets in the manner previously used by Sielldre Business or received any notice of any claéserted against it by any Governing
Authority which could reasonably be expected taluge Purchaser from using the Assets in the maomesiously used by Seller in the
Business.

4.20 [Intentionally Omitted]

4.21 Agreements with Guaranties. Schedule 4.21fgdtsa list of all agreements to which the SetiePFSweb is a party and for which the
Parent or the Purchaser has guaranteed the perfoenaad all amounts owing thereunder (the "Guaeahtgreements"). With respect to
each Guaranteed Agreement, neither Seller nor PB-%ne breach or default, and no event has ocdust@ch with notice or lapse of time
would constitute a breach or default by Seller B&Reb, or permit termination, modification, or decation, under such agreement. Seller
and PFSweb have been notified by the Parent andutehaser of their intent, subject to Section b 3otify, after June 15, 2001, all parties
holding guaranties in connection with the Guarashtégreements that, effective upon Closing or sutieiodate as otherwise required by the
terms of any guaranties in connection with the Goered Agreements (the "Guaranty Revocation Da®ellent and Purchaser will no longer
act as guarantor under the Guaranteed Agreemamasniounts incurred from the Guaranty RevocatioreDat

4.22 True, Correct and Complete Information. Naespntation or warranty by Seller and PFSweb coathin this Agreement, in the
schedules attached hereto or in any certificateisbhed by Seller and PFSweb to Purchaser in coienmengrewith or pursuant hereto contains
any untrue statement of a material fact or omitstébe any material fact necessary in order to maakestatement herein or therein, in light of
the circumstances in which it was made, not mistead

4.23 Broker's and Finder's Fees. Neither SellePk8web has made any agreement with any Perstakesr any action which would cause
any Person, to become entitled to an agent's, Bsokefinder's fee or commission in connectiorhwite transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER AND PARENT

Purchaser and Parent, jointly and severally, remtesnd warrant to the Seller as follows:

5.1 Organization and Authority. Each of Purchaset Rarent is a corporation duly organized, valekisting and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Delaware, and has all requigirporate power and authority to own or leaspritperties and to carry on its business

is presently being operated and in the place wiach properties are owned or leased and such Isgssmeonducted. The execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement by each of Peehand Parent, and all other agreements by andathe parties, and the consumma
by it of the transactions contemplated hereby Ardeby, have been duly authorized by all requisitgorate action and no further action or
approval is required in order to permit Purchaself@ Parent to consummate the transactions cota¢edphereby and thereby. This
Agreement constitutes, and all other agreementmbyamong the parties, wh



executed and delivered in accordance with the ténergof, will constitute the legal, valid and kiimgl obligations of each of Purchaser and/or
Parent, enforceable in accordance with their teEash of Purchaser and Parent has full power, attemd legal right to enter into this
Agreement and all other agreements by and amonggatties and to consummate the transactions cotdéedphereby and thereby. The
making and performance of this Agreement, andthkioagreements by and among the parties, andbtieimmation of the transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby in accordancethatierms hereof and thereof will not conflict witte Certificate of Incorporation or the
Bylaws of Purchaser or Parent.

5.2 Corporate Power and Authority. The executi@iivéry and performance of this Agreement and Add#l Documents by Purchaser and
Parent and the consummation by them of the traiessctontemplated hereby and thereby, have begraditihorized by all requisite
corporate action, including, but not limited to,&8d of Director approvals, and no further actiompproval is required to permit Purchaser
and Parent to consummate the transactions conttedgiareby and thereby. This Agreement and Additi@ocuments when executed and
delivered in accordance with the terms thereof, eaihstitute, the legal, valid and binding obligais of Purchaser and Parent, enforceable in
accordance with their terms. Purchaser and Paeeat tull power, authority and legal right to entep this Agreement and the Additional
Documents and to consummate the transactions coptatd hereby and thereby. The making and perfocmahthis Agreement and the
Additional Documents and the consummation of taagactions contemplated hereby and thereby in danoe with the terms hereof and
thereof will not (a) conflict with the Certificatef Incorporation or the Bylaws of Purchaser anceRar(b) result in any breach or termination
of, or constitute a default under, or constituteemant that with notice or lapse of time, or batbuld become a default under, or result in the
creation of any Encumbrance upon any of the as$ets create any rights of termination, cancediator acceleration in any person under
contract of, or violate any order, writ, injunctiondecree, to which Purchaser and Parent is &, fdmrtwhich any of the assets, business or
operations of Purchaser and Parent may be bouaffeated or under which any of the assets, busioesperations of Purchaser and Parent
receive benefits, or (c) result in the violationamfy provisions of law applicable and material tvdhaser and Parent.

5.3 Consents. Except as set forth on Schedule6.8pnsent, approval, authorization or order of emyrt, Governing Authority or any other
person is required in order to permit Purchasétarent to consummate the transactions contemptgtéus Agreement.

5.4 True, Correct and Complete Information. No espntation or warranty by Purchaser and Parenaic@t in this Agreement, in the
schedules attached hereto or in any certificateéished by Purchaser and Parent to Seller in coimmelserewith or pursuant hereto contains
any untrue statement of a material fact or omitstéade any material fact necessary in order to raalestatement herein or therein, in light of
the circumstances in which it was made, not mistepd

5.5 Broker's and Finder's Fees. Purchaser and tHerea not made any agreement with any Persoakentany action which would cause
any Person, to become entitled to an agent's, Bsoefinder's fee or commission in connectiorhviite transactions contemplated by this
Agreement



5.6 Private Letter Ruling. Parent hereby represantswarrants, on its own behalf and on behalfaahemember of the Distributing Group,
that (i) it has examined the Supplemental Rulingust, and (ii) the facts presented and the reptatsens made therein, to the extent
descriptive of Parent or the Distributing Groupghoe business of Parent or the Distributing Grouapl(iding, without limitation, the business
purposes for the Separation and the Purchasegpiesentations in the Supplemental Ruling Reqoebiet extent that they relate to Parent or
the Distributing Group or the business of ParertherDistributing Group and the plans, proposailgntions and policies of Parent and the
Distributing Group), shall be treated as havingnhbeade by Parent and are true, correct, and coepletther the Seller nor PFSweb will
have liability for any misrepresentations madeh®y Parent in connection therewith. A breach ofrfpeesentations made in this Section 5.6
shall be deemed a Prohibited Action (as definetiénTax Allocation Agreement).

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS OF SELLER

The Seller covenants and agrees with Purchasetlaws$:

6.1 Notices. Seller will timely give all noticesgugred to be given relating to the transactiong@mplated hereby, including without
limitation,
(i) required to be given to employees and (ii) anyices required to be given to all creditors airolnts against Seller.

6.2 Access to Books, Records and Properties.

(a) Seller agrees to provide Purchaser, its acentsitcounsel and other representatives, duringaldsusiness hours and upon reasonable
notice, for a period of four years (plus such langeriod of time should the statute of limitatidos any matter for which Purchaser has or is
asserted to have liability which relates to infotima or records which the Seller has) after thes@ig Date, access to the books, records,
income tax returns, contracts and other underlgaitg and documentation of Seller relating to theefs Business or Transferring Employees
during the period prior to the Closing Date andni@ke available to Purchaser, personnel of SellBuirchaser's review thereof for the purf

of enabling them to determine and calculate anyigdities in connection with the Assets, Busis@s the Transferring Employees. Seller
agrees that, for such four-year period, it willggeve and keep intact all such books and records.

(b) Purchaser agrees to provide Seller, its acemtsit counsel and other representatives, duringaldsusiness hours and upon reasonable
notice, for a period of four years (plus such langeriod of time should the statute of limitatidos any matter for which Seller has or is
asserted to have liability which relates to infotima or records which the Seller has) after thes@ig Date, access to the books, records,
income tax returns, contracts and other underlgietg and documentation of Purchaser relating té\#sets, Business or Transferring
Employees during the period prior to the ClosingeDand to make available to Seller, personnel oftfaser in Seller's review thereof for the
purpose of enabling them to determine and calcalayetax liabilities in connection with the AsseBsisiness or Transferring Employees.
Purchaser agrees that, for such -year period, it will preserve and keep intact attlsbooks and record



6.3 Approvals of Third Parties. As soon as prablieafter the date hereof, the Seller will usdést efforts to secure all necessary consents,
approvals and clearances of third parties thatrRarePurchaser has requested, but that were ainell prior to the Closing and were
waived by the Parent and Purchaser as conditiotigetolosing.

6.4 Obligations under Guaranteed Agreements. SmtieiPFSweb each hereby agree to perform and digchb of their obligations under
such Guaranteed Agreements. The obligations oéiSatid PFSweb under this Section 6.4 will expiremvBeller and PFSweb have paid all
obligations under the Guaranteed Agreements argliatlantees of Purchaser and Parent under the iGe@taAgreements have terminated.

6.5 Certificate of Memphis Material Handling, Ir®eller shall deliver to Purchaser on or before A%e001 a certificate from an authorized
officer of Memphis Material Handling, Inc. (the "MMCertificate") certifying that the list of assef®y prepared contains a list of every A
located in Building H, known as 4650 Quality DriveMemphis, Tennessee, as identified in a surveylaoted from April 11, 2001 through
April 13, 2001.

ARTICLE VII
COVENANTS OF PURCHASER AND PARENT

7.1 Approvals. Purchaser and Parent will each sédlkeecessary corporate and other action and fidoauments required to obtain, and will
use its reasonable efforts to obtain, all approwhtegulatory authorities, consents and approraisired of it to carry out the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and will cooperath tthe Seller to obtain all such approvals andsenits required by Purchaser and Parent.

7.2 BSD. Seller and its Affiliates, Priority Fulfitent Services Canada, Inc. and Priority Fulfillln8arvices Europe B.V. (collectively, the
"PFS Group"), provide certain services ("Servicés"Purchaser's subsidiary, Business SuppliesiBustrs, Inc. ("BSD") and its Affiliates,
BSD (Canada), Inc. and Business Supplies DistrilsuEnirope B.V., (collectively, including PriorityuKillment Services Australia pty Ltd
and Priority Fulfillment Services de Mexico S.A.@eV., the "BSD Group"), in connection with the phase and sale by the BSD Group (the
"BSD Business") of various IBM products (the "IBMdéucts") pursuant to various IBM Master Distribuémreements set forth on Sched
7.2 hereof (the "IBM Agreements"). Parent covenanis agrees that between the date hereof and Dec&hp2001 (i) it will provide
reasonable cooperation to Seller in connection thighproposed transition and transfer of the BSBifBass and the IBM Agreements to the
PFS Group or its designee and (ii) it will not beoa master distributor of IBM products, as prodidethe IBM Agreements or, so long as
the PFS Group is a master distributor of IBM pradubecome a second master distributor of IBM pet&ltNothing contained herein shall
restrict Parent or its Affiliates (other than thBIB Group) from continuing to conduct its businesé & currently being conducted, which
includes the distribution and sale of IBM products.

7.3 Agreements with Guaranties. Parent and Purchaleot rescind, revoke or terminate any guayaftunder the terms of the applicable
Guaranteed Agreement, such act



would, with or without notice or lapse of time, atitute a breach or default by Seller or PFSwelpeomit termination or acceleration under
such Guaranteed Agreement and prior to June 13, B¥ller has provided written notice of such ptigireach, default, termination or
acceleration.

ARTICLE VI
DATE AND PLACE OF CLOSING

8.1 Date and Place of Closing. Subject to satigfaair waiver of the conditions to the obligatiafghe parties, the purchase and sale of the
Assets pursuant to this Agreement will occur aiaing (the "Closing") to be held in the officesMfinsch Hardt Kopf & Harr, P.C., 1445
Ross Avenue, 40th Floor, Dallas, Texas 75202, on sther place as mutually agreed to by the pamiesidnight Dallas, Texas time, on
May 25, 2001, or such other date as the partiesrmauyally agree upon (the "Closing Date") to beetif’e on such Closing Date. The par
may mutually agree to close this transaction veaghor delivery of the closing documents, the fimie of executed signature pages and the
wiring of the Cash Payment.

ARTICLE IX
CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF PURCHASER AND PARENT

The obligations of Purchaser and Parent to causputchase of the Assets and the other transaat@artiemplated hereby to occur at Closing
shall be subject to the satisfaction on or priathi Closing Date of all of the following conditmrexcept such conditions as Purchaser and
Parent may waive in writing:

9.1 Representations and Warranties of Seller. fAthe representations and warranties of Selleraipatl in this Agreement and in any
Schedule or other disclosure in writing from Seflball have been true and correct when made, aidbshtrue and correct on and as of the
Closing Date with the same force and effect asghauch representations and warranties had beee amadnd as of the Closing Date,
except for such representations as are made agdifiéeent date which shall be true and correabfasuch different date.

9.2 Covenants of Seller. All of the covenants agigements herein on the part of Seller to be cadpliith or performed on or before the
Closing Date shall have been fully complied withl gr@rformed.

9.3 Seller's Certificate. There shall be delivareBurchaser a certificate dated as of the Clodatg and signed by the President or a Vice
President of Seller to the effect set forth in #ext 9.1 and 9.2, which certificate shall havedffect of a representation and warranty made
by Seller on and as of the Closing Date.

9.4 Litigation. At the Closing Date, there shalt be pending or threatened any litigation in anyrtor any proceeding before any Governing
Authority (i) in which it is sought to restrain Malidate, set aside or obtain damages in respabecfonsummation of the purchase and sa
the Assets or the other transactions contemplageebly; (ii) that could, if adversely determinedsuk in any Material Adverse Effect; or (iii)
as a result of which, in tt



reasonable judgement of Purchaser, Purchaser voeul@prived of the material benefits of its owngrsii the Assets.

9.5 Satisfactory to Purchaser's Counsel. All astigmoceedings, instruments and documents reqtarearry out this Agreement or incidental
thereto and all other related matters shall haes Isatisfactory to Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr, P.€aunsel for Purchaser.

9.6 No Material Adverse Effect. There shall notdaecurred any Material Adverse Effect. Purchalel seceive a certificate from Seller,
dated as of the Closing Date and in form and snbstaatisfactory to Purchaser, as to the fulfillbwrthe conditions set forth in this Section
9.6.

9.7 Consents. Seller shall have obtained all ordgxgrovals, estoppel certificates or consenthiad parties, including, without limitation,
any orders, approvals, certificates or consentmddenecessary by counsel to Purchaser which shaiduired to consummate the
transactions contemplated hereby, including, withionitation, consents to the assignment of theuivssd Liabilities listed on Schedule 2.2.

9.8 [Intentionally Omitted]

9.9 Assurance from Tax Advisors. Purchaser andrPatall have received assurance from their taisads, in form and substance
reasonably acceptable to each of Purchaser andtPduat the Transaction will not affect the tagdrstatus of the Spin-off.

ARTICLE X
CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF SELLER

The obligations of Seller to cause the sale ofAbsets and the other transactions contemplatedyéseoccur at Closing shall be subject to
the satisfaction on or prior to the Closing Datalbbf the following conditions, except such cdiahis as Seller may waive in writing.

10.1 Representations and Warranties of PurchaseParent. All of the representations and warramfd3urchaser and Parent contained in
this Agreement and in any Schedule or other disctom writing from Purchaser or Parent shall hlagen true and correct when made, and
shall be true and correct on and as of the CloSitg with the same force and effect as though setesentations and warranties had been
made on and as of the Closing Date, except for epyymtesentations as are made as of a differenwd@td shall be true and correct as of s
different date.

10.2 Covenants of Purchaser and Parent. All oEtdvenants and agreements herein on the part &utehaser and Parent to be complied
with or performed on or before the Closing Datdldteave been fully complied with and performed.

10.3 Purchaser's/Parent's Certificate. There beallelivered to Seller a certificate dated as ef@losing Date and signed by the President or
a Vice President of Purchaser ¢



Parent to the effect set forth in Sections 10.1Hnh@, which certificate shall have the effect aépresentation and warranty made by
Purchaser and Parent on and as of the Closing Date.

10.4 Satisfactory to Seller's Counsel. All actign®ceedings, instruments and documents requiredrty out this Agreement or incidental
thereto and all other related legal matters steletbeen satisfactory to Wolff & Samson, P.A., califior Seller.

10.5 Assurance from Tax Advisors. Seller shall haaoeived assurance from its tax advisors, in fant substance reasonably acceptable to
Seller, that the transaction contemplated hereliynai affect the tax-free status of the Spin-off.

ARTICLE XI
CLOSING

11.1 Performance by Seller. At the Closing, corenity with performance by Purchaser and Parerttiaif tespective obligations to be
performed at the Closing:

(a) Conveyances. Seller shall execute and delovButchaser, in form and substance acceptablerah&ser (i) a Bill of Sale and Assignment
in substantially the form attached hereto as Exiilionveying to Purchaser all items of personaltjuded among the Assets, assignments
of each of the contracts, leases, arrangementes@nthitments listed on Schedule 2.1A; (ii) all othssignments, endorsements and
instruments of transfer as shall be necessarymogpate to carry out the intent of this Agreemamd as shall be sufficient to vest in
Purchaser title to all of the Assets and all rigitie and interest of Seller thereto and (iii) aher Additional Documents to which Seller is a
party. If requested by Purchaser, such documeatstshin a form suitable for recording and shalldonsented to by any third parties to such
agreements.

(b) Records. Except as may be necessary for theepfalfillment of its obligations under the Tratish Agreement, Seller shall deliver to
Purchaser all documents, agreements, reports, paiards and accounts pertaining specificalhhtoAssets that are in Seller's possession,
including, but not limited to, the list of MateriBermits attached as Schedule 4.6.

(c) Certificates. Seller shall execute and delteelPurchaser such certificates as may be reasoredpyested by the Purchaser, including, but
not limited to, an Incumbency Certificates and &iter's certificates certifying that the represgitins and warranties contained herein are
true.

(d) Certificates of Authorities. Seller shall delivto Purchaser

(i) certificates of the Secretary of State of Dedagy each dated as of a date not more than tw2@jydays prior to the Closing Date, attesting
to the organization, existence and good standirgetier and PFSweb and (ii) a copy, certified byaathorized officer of each of Seller and
PFSweb, of resolutions duly adopted by the Boardicdctors of each of Seller and PFSweb duly aigiray the transactions contemplated in
this Agreement



(e) Opinion of Seller's Counsel. Seller shall dalito Purchaser the legal opinion of its counsal|fi% Samson, P.A., dated the Closing
Date, as to the matters set forth in Sections ddl4a2, such opinion to be reasonably satisfadmBurchaser.

(f) Consents. Seller shall deliver to PurchaseRbguired Consents.
(9) Tax Proration Schedule. Seller shall delivePtwchaser the tax proration schedule attacheddchaseSchedule 3.5.

(h) Expenses Owed for TMSA and SASA. The partied| shutually agree upon an invoice and paymentdaleefor all services performed
under the TMSA and the SASA through the date ohileation.

(i) Other Actions. Seller shall take all such oteps as may be necessary or appropriate to pcihd®&er in actual and complete ownership
and possession of the Assets.

11.2 Performance by Purchaser. At the Closing, worotly with the performance by Seller of its giliions to be performed at the Closing,
Purchaser shall:

(&) Purchase Price. Deliver to Seller the fundgifigd in
Section 3.1.

(b) Assumption Agreement. Deliver to Seller the dmaption Agreement.

(c) Certificates of Authorities. Deliver the follamg to Seller

(i) a certificate of the Secretary of State of Dedae, dated as of a date not more than twentyd2¢3 prior to the Closing Date, attesting to
the organization, existence and good standing offfaser and Parent and (ii) a copy, certified bypathorized officer of Purchaser and
Parent, of resolutions duly adopted by the BoarDicéctors of each of Purchaser and Parent dulyaaizing the transactions contemplate«
this Agreement.

(d) Expenses Owed for TMSA and SASA. At closingrdPaser shall pay all invoices rendered by Sefiéturchaser under either the TMSA
or the SASA, provided the invoices are delivere@tochaser prior to the Closing Date for servidesady rendered and said invoices have
been approved by Purchaser's personnel. The psaiadismutually agree upon an invoice and paymemedule for all services performed
under the TMSA and the SASA through the date ghileation.

(e) Opinion of Purchaser's Counsel. Purchaser dbhller to Seller the legal opinion of its counddunsch Hardt Kopf & Harr, P.C., dated
the Closing Date, as to the matters set forth tti®es 5.1 and 5.2, such opinion to be reasonadilgfactory to Seller.

(f) Additional Documents. Execute and deliver tdl&dahe Additional Documents to which Purchased/anParent is a party, as the case |
be.

11.3 Other Instruments. In addition to the foregoiurchaser, Parent and Seller agree as follows:

(a) Further Action by Seller. At any time and fréime to time, at or after the Closing, upon requé$turchaser, Seller shall do, execute,
acknowledge and deliver or sh



cause to be done, executed, acknowledged and aliedl such further acts, deeds, assignmentssfees conveyances, powers of attorney
and assurances as may reasonably be requireddieneei, vest in and confirm to Purchaser full andlete title to, possession of, and the
right to use and enjoy, the Assets.

(b) Further Action by Purchaser and Parent. Attamg and from time to time, at or after the Closingon request of Seller, each of
Purchaser and Parent shall do, execute, acknowhkauydeliver or shall cause to be done, executdahoaviedged and delivered all such
further acts and assurances as may reasonablyjbiee to better assure and confirm to Seller #simption by Purchaser of the obligations
to render performance that are to be assumed lgh&®ser pursuant to this Agreement.

ARTICLE Xl
ONGOING EXPENSES

The parties agree to continue making the paymenggeeed by the parties, including, but not limi@dhose set forth on Schedule 12.

ARTICLE Xl
SURVIVAL AND INDEMNIFICATION

13.1 Survival of Covenants, Agreements, Representaaind Warranties.

(a) Covenants and Agreements. All covenants aneeagents made hereunder or pursuant hereto or irectian with the transactions
contemplated hereby shall survive the Closing dnadl sontinue in full force and effect thereaftecarding to their terms.

(b) Representations and Warranties. All represiemisitand warranties contained herein shall surthieeClosing and shall continue in full
force and effect thereafter for a period of oneryekowing the Closing, except that (a) the rem@stions and warranties contained in Se«
4.17 (Taxes) hereof shall survive until the eari&(i) the expiration of the applicable periodscuding any extensions) of the respective
statutes of limitation applicable to the paymentheaf taxes to which such representations and w#sarelate without an assertion of a
deficiency in respect thereof by the applicablértgoauthority or (ii) the completion of the finalidit and determinations by the applicable
taxing authority and final disposition of any dédiecy resulting therefrom; and (b) the represeotatiand warranties contained in Section:
and 5.1 (Due Organization and Qualification); SBwi4.2 and 5.2 (Corporate Power and AuthoritygtiSe 4.4 (Personal Property; Title to
Property) and Section 4.18 (Environmental Laws Radulations) hereof shall survive until one dagathe expiration of the applicable
periods (including any extensions) of the respecsitatutes of limitation.

(c) Claims Made Prior to Expiration. Notwithstanglithe foregoing survival periods set forth in tBisction 13.1, the termination of a survival
period shall not affect the rights of an Indemmiffearty in respect of any claim made by such paitly specificity, in good faith and in
writing to the Indemnifying Party in accordanceiw8ection 13.5 and Section 14.9 hereof prior teettpgration of the applicable survival
period.



13.2 Purchaser's Losses. Seller and PFSweb, j@intyseverally, agree to indemnify and hold harelRsrchaser, Parent, their Affiliates and
their directors, officers, employees, represengatiagents and attorneys from, against, for anelsipect of any and all damages (including,
without limitation, amounts paid in settlement wgkller's consent, which may not be unreasonalilfhwid), penalties, fines, interest and
monetary sanctions, losses, obligations, liabdlitedaims, deficiencies, costs and expenses, imguaithout limitation, reasonable attorneys'
fees and other costs and expenses incident toudinyastion, investigation, claim or proceedingré@irafter referred to collectively as
"Purchaser's Losses") suffered, sustained, incunreequired to be paid by any of them by reasofi) @hny representation or warranty made
by Seller or PFSweb in or pursuant to this Agreerbeing untrue or incorrect in any respect; (iiy &ailure by Seller or PFSweb to observe
or perform its covenants and agreements set forthis Agreement; and (iii) any failure by SellerRFFSweb to satisfy and discharge any
liability or obligation not expressly assumed byd¢haser or Parent pursuant to this Agreement. Euntbre, Seller agrees that in the event
that the representation made by the Seller inabiesentence of Section 4.4(b) is found to be unate, in addition to all other remedies
available to Purchaser and its Affiliates (incluglimithout limitation, seeking such damages it shaw it has sustained by reason of such
breach), the Seller will execute and deliver atlestassignments, endorsements and instrumentsnsfér as shall be necessary or appropriate
to vest in Purchaser title to all of the asseteasary to make such representation accurate.

13.3 Employee Compensation and Benefits. Selle¥ezgto indemnify and hold Purchaser, and its direcbfficers, employees,
representatives, agents and attorneys harmlessaindnagainst any and all claims made by employepsrsons claiming to be employees of
Seller for wages, salaries, bonuses, pension, wenksttompensation, medical insurance, disabildgation, severance, pay in lieu of notice,
sick benefits or other compensation or benefitrayements to the extent the same are based on emgbgervice rendered to Seller prior to
the Closing Date or injury or sickness occurrinigpto the Closing Date and are not Assumed Liaedior Assumed Employee Expenses
(collectively, "Employee Claims"). Employee Claiohs not include insurance premium adjustments, as®@s or other charges incurred by
Purchaser or Parent in connection with providinglthecare or other insurance benefits following @esing Date for Transferring
Employees as the result of any pre-existing comwlitif any such Transferring Employee.

13.4 Seller's Losses. Purchaser and Parent, j@intyseverally, agree to indemnify and hold harsies Seller, PFSweb, their Affiliates and
their directors, officers, employees, represengatiagents and attorneys from, against, for anelsipect of any and all damages (including,
without limitation, amounts paid in settlement wRbrchaser's consent, which may not be unreasonatbilgeld), penalties, fines, interest ¢
monetary sanctions, losses, obligations, liabdlitidaims, deficiencies, costs and expenses, imgugithout limitation, reasonable attorneys'
fees and other costs and expenses incident toudinyastion, investigation, claim or proceedingré@irafter referred to collectively as "Seller's
Losses"; Seller's Losses or Purchaser's Losseoaretimes referred to herein as "Losses") suffenestained, incurred or required to be paid
by any of them by reason of (i) any representatiowarranty made by Purchaser or Parent in or auntsto this Agreement being untrue or
incorrect in any respect; (ii) any failure by Puashr or Parent to observe or perform its covermmsagreements <



forth in this Agreement; or (iii) any failure by Rinaser or Parent to satisfy and discharge anyradiLiability.

13.5 Notice of Loss. Except to the extent set fortthe next sentence, a party to this Agreemeait slot have any liability under the
indemnity provisions of this Agreement with resptech particular matter unless a notice (the "Indiication Notice") setting forth in
reasonable detail the breach which is assertetidwms given to the Indemnifying Party (as hereafedined). Notwithstanding the preceding
sentence, failure of the Indemnified Party to gietice hereunder shall not release the Indemnifiiagy from its obligations under this
Article XIlI, except to the extent the Indemnifyifarty is actually prejudiced by such failure teeghotice. With respect to Purchaser's
Losses and Employee Claims, Seller shall be théetimifying Party" and Purchaser and the other Psrdescribed in Section 13.2 shall be
the "Indemnified Party." With respect to Sellersskes, Purchaser, shall be the "Indemnifying Parg'Seller and the other Persons
described in Section 13.4 shall be the "IndemniRedty."

13.6 Right to Defend. Upon receipt of notice of anijt, action, investigation, claim or proceeding\vhich indemnification might be claims
by an Indemnified Party, the Indemnifying Partylshe entitled to defend, contest or otherwise grbagainst such suit, action, investigation,
claim or proceeding at its own cost and expensg tla Indemnified Party must cooperate in any slefbnse or other action, including the
assertion of any counterclaim or crossclaim. Thikeimnified Party shall have the right, but not thégation, to participate at its own expense
in a defense thereof by counsel of its own choqdingthe Indemnifying Party shall be entitled tmtrol the defense unless the Indemnified
Party has relieved the Indemnifying Party from iligpwith respect to the particular matter or fimelemnifying Party fails to assume defense
of the matter. If the Indemnifying Party shall faildefend, contest or otherwise protect in a ynmeanner against any such suit, action,
investigation, claim or proceeding, the Indemnifieatty shall have the right, but not the obligatimndefend, contest or otherwise protect
against the same and make any compromise or setitdtrereof and recover the entire cost therea fitee Indemnifying Party including
reasonable attorneys' fees, disbursements andhallrats paid as a result of such suit, action, itigason, claim or proceeding or the
compromise or settlement thereof; provided, howeabat the Indemnified Party must send a writteticeato the Indemnifying Party of any
such proposed settlement or compromise, whichese¢tht or compromise the Indemnifying Party mayateje its reasonable judgment,
within 30 days of its receipt of such written neti@ failure by the Indemnifying Party to rejecthusettlement or compromise within such
thirty

(30) day period shall be deemed an acceptancechfssitlement or compromise. The Indemnified Psinll have the right to effect a
settlement or compromise over the objection ofildemnifying Party; provided, that if (i) the Indeifying Party is contesting such claim in
good faith or (ii) the Indemnifying Party has assahthe defense from the Indemnified Party andiidernifying Party has a net worth in
excess of the amount being sought, the Indemnifeatly waives any right to indemnity therefor. I&tindemnifying Party undertakes the
defense of such matters, the Indemnified Partyl sloal so long as the Indemnifying Party does ratralon the defense thereof, be entitled to
recover from the Indemnifying Party any legal drastexpenses subsequently incurred by the Indesdnifarty in connection with the defe
thereof other than the reasonable costs of inva#tig undertaken by the Indemnified Party with phier written consent of th



Indemnifying Party and other than such amountsrieciiwhere a conflict of interest is reasonablyedatined to exist by the Indemnified
Party such that more than one legal counsel iDreddy needed.

13.7 Cooperation. Each of Parent, Purchaser an8dher and each of their affiliates, successodcsamsigns shall cooperate with each oth
the defense of any suit, action, investigationcpealing or claim by a third party and, during ndrimssiness hours, shall afford each other
access to their books and records and employesigeto such suit, action, investigation, procagdir claim and shall furnish each other all
such further information that they have the righd @ower to furnish as may reasonably be necessalgfend such suit, action, investigati
proceeding or claim, including, without limitatiorgports, studies, correspondence and other dodati@nrelating to Environmental
Protection Agency, Occupational Safety and Healfimiistration, and Equal Employment Opportunity Guission matters.

13.8 Satisfaction of Amounts Owed. Until the DederPayments have been made pursuant to Sectioif Seller is determined to owe an
indemnification amount pursuant to the proceduetdasth in this Article XIll, then the amount dtiee Indemnified Party hereunder may, in
addition to and not in lieu of any other rightssemedies, be recovered by (i) offsetting such arhagainst the Deferred Payments or (i)
offsetting such amount against amounts due uné@eftansition Agreement.

13.9 Right to Dispute.

(a) If the Indemnifying Party notifies the Indemad Party that it does not dispute the claim désctiin such Indemnification Notice or fails
to notify the Indemnified Party within ten (10) lnesss days of receiving the Indemnification Noticesuant to Section 13.5 (the "Objection
Period") that the Indemnifying Party disputes tlena described in such Indemnification Notice, lbgs in the amount specified in such
Indemnification Notice will be conclusively deemadiability of the Indemnifying Party under Secti®B.2, 13.3 or 13.4, as the case may be,
and the Indemnifying Party shall pay the amourguah loss to the Indemnified Party on demand.dfittdemnifying Party has disputed its
liability with respect to such claim within the @sfion Period, the Indemnifying Party and the Inddied Party will proceed in good faith to
negotiate a resolution of such dispute, and ifrasblved through negotiations within fifteen (18yd of the Indemnifying Party disputing the
claim, such dispute shall be resolved by arbitratipaccordance with Section 13.9(b).

(b) Any dispute submitted to arbitration pursuanttis Section 13.9 shall be finally and conclubivdetermined by arbitration conducted
pursuant to the commercial arbitration rules ofAlneerican Arbitration Association in Dallas, Texdsy decision made by the arbitrators
shall be final, binding and conclusive on the Indédiad Party and the Indemnifying Party and entitle be enforced to the fullest extent
permitted by law and entered in any court of corpejurisdiction. The expenses of each party toabiytration, including but not limited to
such party's attorneys' fees, if any, and the esggand fees of the arbitrators shall be recover@bborne as determined by the arbitrat



(c) In the event Seller disputes any claim for mdéication as provided in paragraph (a) abovecRaser and Parent may not exercise their
right of offset set forth herein (including Secta®.4 and 13.8) as to such claim until such claas leen finally determined in accordance
with the arbitration provisions of the precedingagmaaph (b); provided, however, Purchaser and Pahatl not be obligated to pay the
Deferred Payments to Seller or pay amounts duerithdelransition Agreement to the extent of suapdied amounts, but shall instead pay
such disputed amounts into the Joint Deposit Actéamsuch term is defined in the Transition Agreethpursuant to the terms of the
Transition Agreement, with such amounts to be paidupon resolution of the dispute as providedihesein the Transition Agreement, as
applicable.

13.10 Limitations on Losses.

(@) In case any event shall occur that would otissentitle any party to assert a claim for inddioaiion hereunder, no Losses shall be
deemed to have been sustained by such party exthat of (i) any actual tax benefit or savingdizea by such party with respect thereto
(net of any tax cost attributable to the receipamy indemnification payment hereunder) or

(i) any proceeds (net of deductibles, taxes adiéction costs) received by such party from anwyrasce policies maintained by or on behalf
of such party with respect to losses (net of agyease in insurance premiums attributable to secbwvery). The parties agree to submit a
claim under any applicable insurance policies piooor promptly following making a request for imdeification hereunder.

(b) The sum of all Losses incurred by any partkisggindemnification must exceed, on a cumulatiasis, Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
($25,000) before such party shall be entitled tiemnification hereunder; provided, however, oneghstumulative Losses exceed Twenty-
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), such party shakbtitled to indemnification for all Losses.

(c) Except for the representations and warrantigsessly set forth herein and the Schedules hemetparty hereto makes any representation
or warranty of any kind or nature regarding theeissthe Business or any other matter, fact ounistance, and any and all other warranties,
whether express or implied, including warrantiesnefrchantability or fitness for a particular purppare hereby expressly disclaimed. Parent
and the Purchaser acknowledge that they (anddh#iiorized agents and representatives ) have cteatitieeir own investigation and due
diligence review of the Assets and the Businesshave reviewed the operations, facilities, books @tords of the Seller and have met with
and interviewed such employees and other persasitley deemed appropriate.

(d) The indemnification obligations of Seller, Parand Purchaser hereunder shall, except in treeafafsaud, intentional breach, intentional
misconduct, or intentional misrepresentation, dtutstthe sole and exclusive remedies of the m@rtespectively, for the recovery of money
damages with respect to the matters for which imdfication is provided hereunder; provided, tha foregoing shall not be construed as
limiting in any way whatsoever any remedy othentfar the recovery of money damages to which amtypaay be entitled



ARTICLE XIV
MISCELLANEOUS

14.1 Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly @advidrein or on Schedule 14.1, the Seller, therParal the Purchaser shall each pay its
own expenses in connection with the preparatiahisfAgreement, and the consummation of the traiseccontemplated hereby, including,
without limitation, fees of their own counsel, atot$ and other experts, whether or not such traiosscbe consummated.

14.2 Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including éxhibits and schedules hereto) and the Additibeauments constitute the entire
agreement and supersedes all prior agreementsnaiedstiandings, both written and oral, between #rdgs hereto with respect to the subject
matter thereof, including, but not limited to thetter of Intent between the Parent and the SedlexddMarch 21, 2001, and no party shall be
liable or bound to the other in any manner by apresentations or warranties not set forth heMatwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement and the Additional Documents shall npessede, replace, amend or modify any of the tempsovisions of the following
agreements dated December 7, 1999 to which Pamdr®BSweb are a party: Master Separation Agreemantindemnification and
Allocation Agreement, and Initial Public OfferingéDistribution Agreement (each as supplementethéyAgreement dated April 6, 2001).

14.3 Publicity. Except as otherwise required by, lawparty hereto shall issue any press releaseke any public statement, in either case
relating to this Agreement or the matters contaimexein, without obtaining the prior written appabef the other parties hereto to the con
and manner of presentation and publication thekgbich consent shall not be unreasonably withheldetayed. Each party hereby agrees
that if the other party determines in its goodHfaipinion that it must make a disclosure regardigtransaction, including, but not limited
the filing of copies of agreements or other docutmevith the Securities and Exchange Commissionrdter to comply with applicable
securities laws, that such party may make sucHhadise and such party's only obligation shall bprtwvide a copy of such proposed
disclosure to the other party prior to making sdidtlosure publicly and to seek confidential treatrof the portions of such agreements or
documents which the other party reasonably deemoppate.

14.4 Successors and Assigns. No party may asdiggr ¢his Agreement or any of its rights, interestsobligations hereunder without the
prior written approval of the other parties; pradd however, that the Purchaser may

(i) assign any or all of its rights and interestsdunder to one or more of its Affiliates and d@i@signate one or more of its Affiliates to perf
its obligations hereunder (in any or all of whiases the Purchaser nonetheless shall remain résiedios the performance of all of its
obligations hereunder). Nothing in this Agreemenpress or implied, is intended to confer upon @anyy, other than the parties and their
respective successors and assigns, any rightsgdrespebligations or liabilities under or by reagfrsuch agreements.

14.5 Counterparts. This Agreement may be execuatedé or more counterparts, each of which shaldligpurposes be deemed to be an
original and all of which shall constitute the saim&rument



14.6 Headings. The headings of the paragraphsubmhsagraphs of this Agreement are inserted foveience of reference only and shall
not be deemed to constitute part of this Agreermetd affect the construction hereof.

14.7 Use of Certain Terms. As used in this Agreentbe words "herein," "hereof" and "hereunder" attter words of similar import refer to
this Agreement as a whole and not to any partiquéaagraph, subparagraph or other subdivision.

14.8 Modification and Waiver. Any of the terms @nditions of this Agreement may be waived in wgtat any time by the party which is

entitled to the benefits thereof, and this Agreennealy be modified or amended by a written instrutexecuted by Parent, Purchaser and
Seller. No supplement, modification or amendmenhisf Agreement shall be binding unless executeariting by all of the parties hereto.

No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreernehall be deemed or shall constitute a waivemgf@ther provision hereof (whether or

similar) nor shall such waiver constitute a conitiguwaiver.

14.9 Notices. All notices of communication requiardbermitted hereunder shall be in writing and rhaygiven by (a) depositing the same in
United States mail, addressed to the party to liéeth postage prepaid and registered or certifiitth return receipt requested, (b) delivering
the same in person to an officer or agent of satyp(c) sending by a nationally recognized ovgnhidelivery service or (d) telecopying the
same with electronic confirmation of receipt.

(i) If to Seller and/or PFSweb:

PFSweb, Inc. 500 North Central Expressway Plano73374 Attention: Mark Layton Telecopy No.: 972-88145
With copies to:

Wolff & Samson, P.A.

5 Becker Farm Road
Roseland, New Jersey 07068
Attention: Morris Bienenfeld, Esq.
Telecopy No.: (973) 741407



(i) If to Purchaser and/or to Parent:
c/o Daisytek International 1025 Central Express®auth, Suite 200 Allen, Texas 75013 Attention: Bbhn D. Kearney, Sr.
Telecopy Number: (972) 424-4604
With copies to:

Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr, P.C.
1445 Ross Avenue, 40th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75202
Attention: A. Michael Hainsfurther, Esq.
Telecopy Number: (214) 855-7584

or at such other address or counsel as any pamychehall specify pursuant to this Section 14o@rfitime to time.

14.10 GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTBED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
TEXAS WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO THE CONFLICT OF LAWE®RINCIPLES THEREOF.

14.11 Time. Time is of the essence with respettitoAgreement.

14.12 Reformation and Severability. In case anyigion of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegalunenforceable, it shall, to the extent
possible, be modified in such manner as to be vigghl and enforceable but so as to most neatdyrréhe intent of the parties, and if such
modification is not possible, such provision shlsevered from this Agreement, and in either ttasealidity, legality and enforceability of
the remaining provisions of this Agreement shatlinany way be affected or impaired thereby.

14.13 Remedies Cumulative. No right, remedy ortelagjiven by any term of this Agreement shall leemied exclusive but each shall be
cumulative with all other rights, remedies and &tets available at law or in equity.

[Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blar



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties heretodzased this Agreement to be signed in counterplirés of the date first above
written.

SELLER:
PRIORITY FULFILLMENT SERVICES, INC.

Name:

PFSWEB:

PFSWEB, INC.

Name:

PURCHASER:

DAISYTEK, INC.

Name:

PARENT:

DAISYTEK INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION

Name:




EXHIBIT 10.7
TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT (the "Agreement$ entered into as of May 25, 2001 (the "Effeetivate") by and between
PFSWEB, INC., a corporation organized under theslafithe State of Delaware, and DAISYTEK INTERNANAL CORPORATION, a
corporation organized under the laws of the Sthfeetaware.

WHEREAS, prior to the date hereof, PFSWeb, Inc. @athin of its subsidiaries, including Prioritylfilment Services, Inc. (collectively,
"PFS"), provided certain warehousing, distributéord fulfillment services (the "Fulfillment Servi¢gand certain information technology
services that include transaction management, @m@essing, and communications services (the 8iviSes") to Daisytek International
Corporation and certain of its subsidiaries (cdlledy, "Daisytek"); and

WHEREAS, concurrently herewith the Parties are aomsating the transactions contemplated by thahiteAsset Purchase Agreement (the
"Asset Purchase Agreement”) by and between DaigytdPFS, including, without limitation, the termiion of the agreements specified in
the Termination Agreement (as such term is definge Asset Purchase Agreement); and

WHEREAS, on and after the Effective Date, Daisykélk assume responsibility for the Fulfillment Sares and PFS will provide the
necessary support to Daisytek in order to facditat orderly and complete transition of the Fulféht Services (the "Fulfillment Transition
Services"); and

WHEREAS, on or after the Effective Date, PFS wilhtinue to provide to Daisytek the IT Services &l ws those services, functions and
responsibilities necessary to facilitate an ordarld complete transition of the IT Services to P&k (the "IT Transition Services");

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual eceav@s contained herein, the receipt and sufficieriayhich are hereb
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. PROVISION OF DESIGNATED SERVICES

1.1. DESIGNATED SERVICES. Upon the terms and sultiethe conditions of this Agreement, during teert of this Agreement, PFS
agrees to provide to Daisytek, and Daisytek agi@esirchase from PFS, the Designated Servicesséd berein, the term Designated
Services means: (i) the Fulfillment Transition Sees, the IT Services and the IT Transition Sewvidecluding, without limitation, the
services described in the Statement of Work s¢h fas Exhibit-SOW; and (ii) any services, functiomsresponsibilities not specifically
described in this Agreement, but that are currgoeéisformed by PFS and which are required for tlop@r performance and delivery of the
Designated Services.

1.2. IT TRANSITION SERVICES. Daisytek has the primnaesponsibility to manage, coordinate, superaisé effectuate the transition of 1

IT Services to Daisytek. PFS shall facilitate asgist Daisytek to transition the IT Services todytek on or before a date (the "Cutover
Date") to be designated by Daisytek through writtetice to PFS at least thirty (30) days priordolsdate. Except as otherwise included
within the IT Transition Services, PFS shall natypde the IT Services after the Cutover Date. PHBuae its best efforts to perform the IT
Services and IT Transition Services without causimgaterial disruption to Daisytek's business @ragons. Until the completion of the
transition of each applicable IT Service, each PiE®&idual responsible for the services providedRS to transition that function will

review with Daisytek the status of the IT Servioewhich that individual is responsible as oftenvasy be reasonably requested by Daisytek.
In connection with the transition of the IT Sensc®FS shall provide, in writing, on or before it30) days from the Effective Date to the
extent available, applicable requirements, stargjaualicies, operating procedures and other doctatien relating to the affected execution
environment of the IT Services. Daisytek acknowksignd agrees that PFS makes no representatisgranties with respect to the
accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any sdiehriation. Following the expiration of this Agreemt, PFS shall reasonably cooperate
with Daisytek by answering all reasonable and perti verbal or written questions from Daisytek reigay the IT Services on an "as needed"
basis as agree



upon by Daisytek and PFS and deliver to Daisytgkramaining Daisytek-owned reports and documemagtdl in PFS' possession.

In connection with the transition of the IT Sengc®aisytek and PFS covenant and agree to joiddlytify any third-party software necessary
for the performance of the IT Services (the "Thrarty Software"). Daisytek and PFS will cooperaih\wne another in obtaining the
necessary access to or licensing of the Third-Faofjware, as more particularly described in Sectid 2.

PFS acknowledges and agrees that it shall havbsaoiude and unconditional obligation to provide $y&&k with the Designated Services in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement andy@ak acknowledges and agrees that it has an absold unconditional obligation to pay
the Monthly Fees and other amounts payable byréuraler, in each case, subject however, to thetafitght of Daisytek set forth in Section
1.6(A) and 1.8 below. Except for such offset rigliiaisytek shall have no right to offset any MowtRee or Variable Charge, and in the e
Daisytek shall fail to pay any Monthly Fee or VélmCharge hereunder on any date when due orfsiilath pay any Deferred Payment
payable under the Asset Purchase Agreement onatayden due (subject to the right of offset sehfn Section 1.8 hereof or Section 13.8
therein and/or the resolution of a dispute wittpees to Daisytek's right to offset the Monthly Reeset forth in Section 1.6), PFS shall have
the right, in addition to and not in lieu of anyet available rights or remedies, after providivg {5) days written notice to Daisytek to ce
providing any or all of the Designated ServicestvNihstanding the foregoing, in the event of a dispwith respect to Daisytek's right to
offset the Monthly Fee, Variable Charge, or anyddefd Payment, provided that Daisytek has paiditbethly Fee, Variable Charge, or the
Deferred Payment into the Joint Deposit Accounts(ah term is defined below) as described in Sedti6(C), PFS will continue to provide
the Designated Services pending the resolutiohefitspute in accordance with Section 1.6(B) anSéstion 3.12.

1.3. COST AND EXPENSES. Except as set forth on BEi8OW, PFS shall, at its expense, provide alspenel, equipment, facilities and
systems as may be necessary for it to provide dwgbated Services hereunder. PFS shall be selghpnsible for the payment of all
compensation and benefits, including applicableghtaxes, to all of its employees performing tesignated Services.

1.4. AUTHORITY. In performing the Designated SeescPFS shall have no authority to make any reptasen, warranty, commitment or
obligation on behalf of Daisytek, nor shall PFSdeemed an agent or representative of Daisytek.

1.5. SERVICE LEVELS. PFS agrees to provide the @estied Services in accordance with the servicddeses forth in Exhibit-SLA (the
"Service Levels").

1.6. SERVICE LEVEL PENALTIES. A. In the event PH®&# be in breach of

Section 1.5 hereof and the quality of the Desigh&ervices is not in accordance with the Serviogelsin any month during the term hereof
(a "Service Level Breach"), Daisytek and PFS agitag as the sole and exclusive remedy and ligaeildamages therefor, and in lieu of any
and all other rights or remedies available at lawnequity or otherwise, Daisytek will be entitlemloffset the amount of the applicable
corresponding service level penalties set forthxhibit-SLA (the "Service Level Penalties"), from the applicable Monthly Fee and any
Variable Charges due to PFS under this Agreemersufth month and (ii) the applicable Deferred Payndeie to PFS under the Asset
Purchase Agreement for such month. Daisytek andagiee that the maximum liability of PFS for Seevievel Breaches occurring in any
month during the term hereof and the maximum amBaigytek may offset for the corresponding Sertiegel Penalties arising from such
Service Level Breaches, on a monthly basis, ikénaggregate, the sum of (i) the Monthly Fee fahauonth, (ii) any Variable Charges
occurring in such month, and (iii) the applicablef&red Payment or other amounts due to PFS uhdekdset Purchase Agreement for such
month. Other than with respect to liability resudfifrom the intentional misconduct of PFS, Daisydgkees that the exercise of such right of
offset shall be deemed to cure any such ServicellBreach and PFS shall have no further liabilitybligation with respect thereto, whether
direct, indirect, liquidated or contingent, incladiwithout limitation, any claim for lost profitExcept for liability resulting from the
intentional misconduct of PFS or the right of offset forth herein, PFS shall have no liability 8arvice Level Breaches or any loss of time,
inconvenience, loss of use of any product or eqeimr any incidental, indirect, punitive, speadakonsequential damages of any kind or
nature, including lost profits, arising therefromven if PFS has been advised, knew or should haewk of the possibility thereof.
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B. Daisytek and PFS agree to use the following guace with respect to Service Level Breaches: Agddereto as Exhibit 1.6 is a list
setting forth for each of Daisytek and PFS the reaar& phone numbers (including extensions, celhgs@nd pagers) of Daisytek personnel
and PFS personnel (the "Daisytek Representativebtre "PFS Representatives”, respectively) whaatkorized to deliver or receive all
notices regarding Service Level Breaches and allersarelated thereto. Notice shall be deemed tiven upon actual receipt (by telephone
for oral notice and by fax for written notice) byeoparty's Representative of notice from the otlaety's Representative. Each party will use
its best efforts to continue to attempt noticedsly until receipt is confirmed. Each party agreesse its best efforts to immediately notify
(by telephone) the other party (i) of the occureentany Service Level Breach and (i) if it haagen to believe that a Service Level Brea
likely to occur.

Within 24 hours of the occurrence of a Level 1 8\ evel Breach pursuant to which Daisytek detagnithat a Service Level Penalty is
due, a Daisytek Representative will deliver to &Representative written notice setting forth thentity of the Service Level Breach and the
calculation of the Service Level Penalty (the "Netof Offset"). If a PFS Representative does nighimten (10) days following its receipt of
a Notice of Offset (the "Objection Period"), deliwe a Daisytek Representative a written respopseifying its objections to any Service
Level Penalty specified therein (the "Notice of &dtjon"), then upon the expiration of the ObjectiReriod, Daisytek may offset the amount
of any Service Level Penalty set forth in the Netid Offset. In the event PFS has delivered to Y2eksa Notice of Objection within the
Objection Period, then Daisytek will designatechsef executive officer and PFS will designatect$ef executive officer whose task it will

to meet for the purpose of endeavoring to resdieadispute set forth in the Notice of ObjectioneTesignated executives will meet as often
as Daisytek and PFS reasonably deem necessargantorgather and furnish to the other all inforioratvith respect to the matter in issue
which the Daisytek and PFS believe to be apprapaati germane in connection with its resolutiorchSexecutives will discuss the dispute
regarding the Notice of Objection and will negaiat good faith in an effort to resolve such digpwithout the necessity of any formal
proceeding relating thereto. The specific formatsfiach discussions will be left to the discretidihe designated executives but may include
the preparation of agreed upon statements of faetitten statements of position furnished to tiieeo Party. No formal proceedings for the
resolution of the dispute regarding the Notice bfé@tion under Section 3.12 hereof may be commeunnébthe earlier to occur of (a) a gc
faith conclusion by the designated executivesdhatable resolution through continued negotiatibthe matter in issue does not appear
likely or (b) the 15th day after the initial reqtiés negotiate the dispute regarding the Notic®bjection. Upon the occurrence of either the
event described in (a) or (b) in the precedingessee, Daisytek and PFS will submit the dispute n¢igg the Notice of Objection to
arbitration in accordance with Section 3.12 hereof.

C. In the event PFS delivers a Notice of Objectioa timely manner, Daisytek will pay the disputeation of the Monthly Fee and any
Variable Charges due for such month, as well aso#tmgr disputed amounts sought to be offset, irdegsit account established with such
bank or other institution as may be mutually agregedn by Daisytek and PFS (the "Joint Deposit AatuAny such Joint Deposit Account
will require the signatures of an authorized offiokeach of Daisytek and PFS for withdrawals. Silmilnt Deposit Account will also provide
for the payment of interest on the amount deposfietein. The Parties agree that the party prenaiti the resolution of the dispute will be
entitled to recover the interest earned on the siggbamounts, plus an amount which, when add#uetinterest earned, will total eighteen
percent (18%) of the amount deposited into thetId@posit Account.

D. In the event a party hereto is taxed upon tter@st earned in such Joint Deposit Account, besdmt receive such interest from the Joint
Deposit Account, the party receiving such inteststll pay on demand to the party who paid the ireetar, the amount of the income taxes
actually paid by such party on such interest.

1.7. SYSTEM SEPARATION. Daisytek and PFS will cont to use their best efforts to complete the systeparation project (the "System
Separation Project") more particularly describe&xhibit-SSP. In addition, Daisytek and PFS covémaua agree to use their respective best
efforts to complete the responsibilities assigrmethem as set forth in the time and events schedtdehed as Schedule 2. In addition,
Daisytek will develop a plan



that will specify the tasks to be performed by plagties in order to complete the System Separ#&tioject. PFS will review such plan and use
its best efforts to identify any items or omissioaisthe same level of detail as the plan provide®aisytek, that interfere with or are likely
interfere with the completion of the System SepanalProject. The terms and provisions of the Syssaparation Project, including the
responsibilities and costs thereof, are set forthxhibit-SSP and are independent of, and unrelatetie terms and provisions governing the
Designated Services. Any amounts payable by Ddigytesuant to Exhibit SSP are not subject to tgbtrof offset hereunder.

1.8. FEES.

A. In consideration of the performance of the Deatgd Services, Daisytek shall pay to PFS (i) athipriee as set forth on Exhibit-SOW
hereto (the "Monthly Fee") and (ii) such other fem®ounts and compensation relating to Additiorsa/8es as mutually agreed, as set forth
on Exhibit-SOW hereto (the "Variable Charges"). Mibnthly Fees shall be payable no later than teelasiness day of the month following
the month in which the Designated Services wertopeed (e.g., the Monthly Fee for June shall be ahe payable on July 31) (the "Invoice
Due Date"); except that for the last month of #rent hereof, the Invoice Due Date shall be thedagtof the term. The Monthly Fee for June
shall include the period of time between the dateedf and June 1. PFS shall provide Daisytek witloices on a monthly basis on or before
the 15th day of each calendar month for all Vagabharges payable by Daisytek and arising in cdiorewith the Designated Services
performed by PFS during the immediately prior cdammonth. Subject to Daisytek's right of offsdtfeeth in

Section 1.6 and PFS' delivery to Daisytek of thea@uoteed Payments Certificate described in sulose@t) below, Daisytek shall (i) pay all
undisputed amounts of the Monthly Fee on the Irev@loe Date and

(if) pay any undisputed Variable Charges on theice Due Date, provided such Invoice Due Date leant fifteen (15) days from the date
Daisytek's receipt of an invoice for such VariaBlearges. Any payment by Daisytek is without prejedif its right to contest the accuracy of
the number of hours or number of named users gigegto the Variable Charges on such invoice. Monthly Fee which is not paid or
disputed within ten (10) days of the Invoice Dugdshall accrue interest until paid at the lowet &% per month or the highest legal rate.
Any Variable Charge which is not paid or disputathim 10 days of the Invoice Due Date shall acdnierest until paid at the lower of .75%
per month or the highest legal rate. The amounietpaid by Daisytek to PFS herein do not includedomestic or foreign, federal, state,
local, municipal or other governmental taxes, dytievies, fees, withholdings, excises or taréi$sing as a result of or in connection with the
transactions contemplated under this Agreemeritjditg, without limitation, any state or local saler use taxes or any value added tax or
business tax now or hereafter imposed on the pgoovief Designated Services under this Agreemenisybek and PFS shall cooperate to
segregate the Monthly Fees and Variable Chargeshetfollowing separate payment streams: (a) tharsexable services;

(b) those for nontaxable services; (c) those foictvia sales, use or other similar tax has alreaeypaid; and (d) those for which PFS
functions merely as a paying agent for Daisyteteeiving goods, supplies or services (includiragieg and licensing arrangements) that
otherwise are nontaxable or have previously bebjesuto tax. In addition, each of Daisytek and RBR8&Il reasonably cooperate with the
other to more accurately determine a Party's &bility and to minimize such liability, to the ertdegally permissible. Each of Daisytek and
PFS shall provide and make available to the othgresale certificates, information regarding ofistate sales or use of equipment, mate
or services, and any other exemption certificatéaformation requested by a Party. With respec¢h&oportion of the Designated Services
Parties determine are taxable, PFS will pay thdicgige taxes and on or before the date PFS isnejto pay such taxes Daisytek will
reimburse PFS for onlealf of the amount of taxes paid by PFS on sucliggoof the Designated Services. In the eventshasequent to PF
payment of the taxes described above, an audhdgpplicable taxing authority conclusively detares additional taxes are owed by PFS
which Daisytek has a payment obligation as desdréimve, PFS will notify Daisytek of such amounadtlitional taxes and on or before the
date PFS is required to pay such taxes Daisytdkeithburse PFS for one-half of the amount of addil taxes subsequently paid by PFS.

If PFS is determined to owe an indemnification antqaursuant to the procedures set forth in Articlig of the Asset Purchase Agreement,
Daisytek may offset such amount against the Morfielgs and Variable Charges payable hereunder.
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B. Bonus Payments. Daisytek shall have the righitsisole and absolute discretion, to pay bontes#se individuals set forth on Exhibit-
Bonus (up to the amounts specified therein), sailbgesuch conditions precedent as Daisytek shadirdene in its sole discretion.

Daisytek will be responsible for, and will indemnPFS against and in respect of, all payroll teacas other governmental charges and filings
applicable to such bonus payments. The foregoimyes shall not be deemed PFS wages or compeng&atguch persons. Except for the
foregoing or as PFS may otherwise consent, Daisytttkot pay any other bonuses or other remunenatd any PFS employee in connection
with the Designated Services.

C. Guaranteed Payments Certificate. With respeittddsuaranteed Agreements (as such term is defirtbé Asset Purchase Agreement)
or before each Invoice Due Date, PFS will alsovéelto Daisytek, a certificate executed by a duitharized officer of PFS, certifying that
amounts due by PFS under the Guaranteed Agreeimergsheen paid and that such Guaranteed Agreemrent®t otherwise in default (the
"Guaranteed Payments Certificate").

1.9. STANDARD OF SERVICE. PFS agrees that it wiklts best efforts to perform the Designated $esvin a professional manner and in
the same or similar manner, scope, quality andreats provided during the 12 month period prich®date hereof. Notwithstanding the
foregoing service level standard, with respechtDesignated Services, PFS agrees to comply éthdtice and the requirements related to
the resolution of Level 1 faults specified in ExXhiBLA.

1.10. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE; NOTIFICATION OF RPBLEMS. Daisytek shall provide PFS with all infortima, instructions
and authorizations as PFS may require in ordeetfopm the Designated Services hereunder. All mfation, instructions and authorizations
by Daisytek to PFS shall comply with all applicafdderal, state and local laws, rules and reguiatiand PFS has no responsibility to
confirm or verify the adequacy, accuracy or vajiditereof. In performing the Designated Servicagteder (and except as otherwise set
forth above regarding Service Level Breaches), &8 act in accordance with, and shall be entiiteely upon, all written, facsimile and
electronic information, instructions and authoii@as provided by an Authorized Representative asjiek and received by a PFS
Representative. As used herein, the term Authofzegiesentative means Bill Justus, Bill BergeroikevBishoff or any other Daisytek
representative designated by Jim Powell and s#t,for a written notice to a PFS Representativésydek and PFS acknowledge the
importance of promptly sharing and working togetioeresolve performance issues relating to thedmeged Services. Accordingly, Daisytek
and PFS shall provide written notice to the othatypof any acts or omissions (whether by DaisyRkS or any third party), or any other
events that interfere with, or are likely to inexd with such party's performance of its obligagionder this Agreement. Each party shall use
all commercially reasonable efforts to provide suchten notice when such party first knew or sliblbhve known of such acts, omissions,
failures or other events, but in any case no lden ten (10) days thereafter. Such written natital describe in reasonable detail such acts,
omissions, failures or other events and the maimnehich the foregoing may affect such party's parfance.

1.11. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS. Except to thetent expressly included as part of the FulfillmAsstets being purchased by
Daisytek pursuant to the terms of the Asset PueAageement, and to the extent used in the perfocmaf or related to the Designated
Services, and/or the Fulfillment Services Daisydak PFS will jointly own, and to the extent necegsaach of PFS and Daisytek hereby
assigns to the other an undivided interest infate right, title and interest, including withdirhitation all patent rights (including rights to
apply for and receive patents of any type, patpptieation, and patents), copyrights, trade setgéts, database protection rights, and other
intellectual property and related industrial, ditisand other intellectual property rights of amyd every nature throughout the world, as well
as the benefits of waivers of moral rights andlitkes ("Intellectual Property Rights"), that it ngpossesses or is entitled to possess or receive
in or to the following: source code and object cedesion of any application programs, operatingesyssoftware, computer software
languages, utilities, other computer programs éirg. set of statements or instructions to be ugedtty or indirectly in a computer in order
bring about a certain result), processes, systenesfaces, and documentation and supporting nsdsenélated thereto, in whatever form or
media, used in the performance of or related tdbsignated Services and/or the Fulfillment Sewyigecluding the tangible media upon
which such applications programs, operating syseftware, computer software languages, utilitiestber computer programs,
documentation and supporting materials relatecetbeare recorded or printed,
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together with all corrections, improvements, updated releases thereof (collectively, the "Existifaterials"). However, notwithstanding 1
foregoing, PFS hereby without representation oravdy, assigns to Daisytek, all of its right, tilad interest, if any, in and to any rights or
licenses PFS has in any trademarks, service maakie dress, trade names, domain names or otheiairod origin, addresses or
identifications and all goodwill associated therttwihe "Trademark Rights") in or associated withrelated to [DAISYNET, SOLONET,
VIRTUAL DEMAND, SOLO]. Subject to the last sentenakthis Section, each of Daisytek and PFS, aniil thepective successors and
assigns, will have, with respect to each otherestnicted rights in perpetuity to exploit the EkigtMaterials, including the unlimited and
unrestricted right to copy, modify, enhance, usé, assign, lease, license and commercially exphei Existing Materials without an
obligation to account to or pay the other PartychEaf PFS and Daisytek waive, on behalf of itsaelf #s successors and assigns, all rights of
accounting for profits. Each of PFS and Daisytekfer grant to the other a non-exclusive, fullydoap, irrevocable, non-terminable, royalty-
free, fully transferable, non-exclusive licensalioof the Intellectual Property Rights in or réthat to the Existing Materials that it at anytime
now or in the future owns or transfers to anottatyy or that it does not own but to which it haghts to grant licenses. Except for the
forgoing assignments and grants of license, nefthdy is assigning to or licensing the other pdsfyimplication or otherwise, any
Intellectual Property Rights, including without lation rights in or to any derivatives, changesdifications, enhancement, extensions tc
Existing Material (the "New Material") made aftbetCutover Date. Neither PFS nor Daisytek has &tigation, implied or otherwise, to
share with the other the New Material. Neither PBSDaisytek is making any representation or wayrahany kind regarding the
capabilities or quality of the Existing Materiakiét to the Cutover Date, Daisytek and PFS agré¢mmodify, enhance, or materially alter
the Existing Materials except in accordance withdlgreed upon procedures set forth in Exhibit-Ratd®FS represents and warrants that
there are no proceedings against PFS, or to PESkbewledge, adverse claims made or threatenadsad®FS or Daisytek with respect to
Existing Materials (including any claims that suekisting Materials infringe or misappropriate aratent, trademark, trade secret, copyright
or other proprietary right of any third party); atietre has been no litigation against PFS commeoicttlPFS' knowledge threatened against
PFS or Daisytek with respect to the Existing Maiksr{including any litigation alleging that suchiging Materials infringe or misappropriate
any patent, trademark, trade secret, copyrighttoergoroprietary right of any third party). Daisktepresents and warrants that there are no
proceedings against Daisytek, or to Daisytek's kesivledge, adverse claims made or threatened stgaaisytek or PFS with respect to the
Existing Materials (including any claims that suekisting Materials infringe or misappropriate aratent, trademark, trade secret, copyright
or other proprietary right of any third party); atietre has been no litigation commenced againstyBed or to Daisytek's knowledge
threatened against Daisytek or PFS with respettetdxisting Materials (including any litigatiodeding that such Existing Materials infrin
or misappropriate any patent, trademark, tradeesecopyright or other proprietary right of anyrthparty).

1.12. THIRD-PARTY LICENSES. PFS and Daisytek acktemge that the total list of necessary softwarenges for Daisytek to run their
own data center consists of some third-party safvegplication licenses owned by PFS and somede&snowned by Daisytek as listed on
Schedule 1-Software License Schedule. DaisytekP&&i will cooperate in an effort to minimize thetooisobtaining the necessary access to
or software licenses necessary to run two sepdedtecenters (Daisytek/PFS). Daisytek and PFSmuitially agree upon an allocation for
any pre-paid maintenance and license fees thah@s $aid on third-party software licenses owne®aigytek. PFS will lead the licensing
project with support from Daisytek to maximize leage with the vendors. Bill Bergeron, or his desigrwill call Design Technologies about
MIS Studio for license and support, and if for aagson Design Technologies does not provide adetm Daisytek, then PFS will assist
Daisytek in procuring such a license from Desigohrelogies.

PFS acknowledges and agrees that Daisytek haséiddrom third-party vendors various software aggtions used in connection with the
Designated Services (the "Daisytek Third Party hims"). PFS hereby agrees to indemnify and holdyDel harmless from any use,
modification, termination or cancellation fees bames imposed upon Daisytek in connection with' BE& modification, termination or
cancellation of, or consent or waiver of any of Basytek Third Party Licenses (except as it ralatethe Fulfillment Services or Designated
Services, past, present or future).

1.13. KEY EMPLOYEES. Daisytek shall designate dareanployees of PFS as key employees. For purpmgbs Agreement, Robert
Almond, Haitham Karim, and Steve Veitch are desigdas PFS Key Employees. With respect to the P&SHhployees, Daisytek and PFS
agree that each PFS Key Employee shall give firdtadbsolute priority to providing the Designatedv@es to Daisytek. The priority set forth
in the



preceding sentence is subject to (i) reasonabkopat days, sick days, holidays and vacation taken in accordance with PFS policies and
procedures in effect as of the Effective Date; @dhe number of hours purchased by Daisytek,erpgarticularly described in Exhibit-SOW,
provided, however, that the number of hours puretiasill not restrict or impair PFS' resolution afyalLevel 1 incident as described in
Exhibit-SLA. Although PFS will use its best effottsmake Jeff Murray available to Daisytek hereundeff Murray is an independent
contractor engaged by PFS and not an employee ®faR#f that as an independent contractor his av#itab not within the sole control of
PFS. To the extent PFS is able to control Jeff Biyisravailability after June 25, 2001 (i.e. in cection with the prioritization of PFS projet
assigned to him), PFS will give first and absolutierity to providing the Designated Services. RIR&Il not replace the PFS Key Employees
during the term of the Agreement, unless Daisyteisents to such replacement or such PFS Key Enmloye

(i) voluntarily resigns from PFS, (i) is dismissky PFS for misconduct (e.g., fraud, drug abussft)ih(iii) fails to perform his or her duties
and responsibilities pursuant to this Agreemer{trdies or is unable to work due to his or hegadtiility. Subject to the limitations set forth
above, in the event any PFS Key Employee is rembeéate his or her service under the Agreemendispteted, PFS shall as soon as
practicable assign an appropriate replacement Wwalb thereafter be designated as a PFS Key Empldy@®nnection with its provision of
the Designated Services, PFS shall not provideyaosher customers of PFS priority over Daisytek imanner that interferes with PFS'
performance of the Designated Services. In additiono event shall PFS redeploy or reassign arfy Ré€y Employee to another account i
manner inconsistent with the obligations set famtthis Section 1.13.

1.14. ACCESS TO INFORMATION. To facilitate the pamihance of the Designated Services under this Ageeg each party may provide
the other with information regarding, or limitedcass to, each party's inventory, order managenmehbtner computer systems and
capabilities, including, without limitation, warelige management and automation systems licensedHiatparties as well as computer
programs, formats, screens, protocols, hardwaseftware that are a part of or are used in conoeetith any of the foregoing (collectively
the "System"). Each party acknowledges and aghegsttshall have no right, title, interest or iee of any nature in any part of the other
party's System, except as set forth in Section. Eath party's limited right to have access toother party's System is subject to that party's
compliance with the other's system access andiseoequirements and may be terminated upon ndtycéhe either party if it reasonably
believes the other party is not complying with suefuirements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, eaatty's "Proprietary Data" is, or will be,
and shall remain the property of such party andl beadeemed Confidential Information of such pawithout such party's approval (in its
sole discretion), its Proprietary Data shall ngt(i¢ used by the other party or its agents othan in connection with the Designated Serv
(2) disclosed, sold, assigned, leased or othemizéded to third parties by the other party oraigents or (3) commercially exploited by ol
behalf of the other party or its agents. As usadihe"Proprietary Data" shall mean all data arfdrimation (1) submitted by one party to the
other or obtained, maintained, developed or prodixgeone party for the other or (2) obtained, neimed, developed or produced by one
party or its agents in connection with this Agreamecluding, with respect to (1) and (2) hereoformation relating to such party's
customers, employees, operations, facilities, coesumarkets, products, capacities, proceduresrigepuactices, research, development,
business affairs and finances. Proprietary Data do¢include the Existing Materials described éet®n 1.11 above.

1.15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Without limitatiorof any confidentiality agreement previously exedubg the parties, each party
acknowledges that in implementing and performing figreement, the other party may disclose and nagkédable to it certain confidential
and proprietary information, including without liafion, customer, product and process informati@oifidential Information™). Each
receiving party agrees to utilize such informatsofely for the purpose of this Agreement and topkared maintain all such information as
confidential which shall not be disclosed to anyeotparty. The provisions of this Section shallvasig any termination or non-renewal of this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a pargyrase, disclose or authorize the disclosure offi@ential Information that it receives
that:

A. has been published or is in the public domairthat subsequently comes into the public domaimugh no fault of the receiving party;

B. is lawfully received from a third party havinights to publicly disseminate the Confidential imfmtion without any restriction and withc
notice to the recipient of any restriction agaitsfurther disclosure;



C. is independently developed by the receivingypmtough persons or entities who have not hatieedirectly or indirectly, access to or
knowledge of the Confidential Information;

D. is disclosed to a third party consistent with trms of the written approval of the party oraiy disclosing the information;

E. is required by the receiving party to be prodiueeder order of a court of competent jurisdictiwrother similar requirements of a
governmental agency, and the Confidential Infororatvill otherwise continue to be Confidential Infwation required to be held confidential
for purposes of this agreement; or

F. is required by the receiving party to be disetbby applicable law or a stock exchange or assogian which the receiving party's
securities are listed.

The party making a disclosure under clauses (¢yipmust inform the non-disclosing party as prolyais is reasonably necessary to enable
the non-disclosing party to take action to, andthealisclosing party's reasonable best effortbrit the disclosure and maintain
confidentiality to the extent practicable.

1.16. RECORD RETENTION. PFS shall during the tefrthis Agreement for a period of 48 months follogitihe termination or expiration
of this Agreement, maintain complete and accumtends in connection with this Agreement and alhsactions related thereto, including all
records and supporting documentation appropriateeocessary to document either the Designated ®sraicd the charges (including Mont
Fees) paid or payable by Daisytek under this Agexgmnin addition, on or before June 15, 2001, Rl deliver to Daisytek copies of tape
backups for fiscal years 1993 997. For fiscal years thereafter, PFS will previdpies of tape backups of Daisytek informatioarupgequest

2. TERM

2.1. TERM. This Agreement shall take effect upom Hffective Date and shall continue in full forgedaeffect through [November 25, 2001],
subject to the other provisions set forth herein.

2.2. RENEWAL TERM. Not later than forty-five (45ays prior to the then-scheduled expiration of Agseement, Daisytek may notify PFS
that it desires to extend the term of this Agreeinfi@none or more additional periods of 30 daysniptly after such notice, PFS and Dais)
will negotiate in good faith the terms and conditidor such extension, including but not necegstéiniited to the compensation to be pay:
by Daisytek to PFS for the Designated Servicestprovided by PFS during such extension of the térthe parties reach agreement on
such terms and conditions, then they will amensl Agreement to conform to such agreement; if thitgsahave not reached agreement ol
terms and conditions of such extension prior teéif (15) days before the then-scheduled expiratida of this Agreement, then this
Agreement will expire as scheduled and PFS willheote any obligation to provide Designated Serviod3aisytek hereunder after such
expiration date. Upon termination of this Agreemaiitrights and obligations of the parties shalse and terminate except as otherwise
expressly set forth as surviving herein.

3. GENERAL PROVISIONS

3.1. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement (includingetbxhibits and schedules attached hereto), thet Resehase Agreement (includ|
the exhibits and schedules attached thereto) totesthe entire agreement of the parties with retsjoethe subject matter hereof, and
supersedes and terminates any and all prior agrgeraecontracts, oral or written, entered intoNssn the parties relating to the subject
matter hereof. Each party acknowledges that there@warranties, representations, covenants arstahdings of any kind, manner or
description whatsoever by either party to the othi respect to the premises except as expresshprh herein.

3.2. NO AMENDMENT. This Agreement shall not be amed or otherwise modified except by a written agrest dated subsequent to the
date of this Agreement and signed on behalf of &kBDaisytek by their respective duly authorizqatesentatives. No course of dealing,
course of performance or failure of either party to



strictly enforce any term, right or condition ofglAgreement shall be construed as a waiver or fication of any term, right or condition. I
waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agremt shall be construed to be a waiver of any sjuesdg breach of the same or any other
provision.

3.3. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be govetrm® and construed in accordance with the lawb®fState of Texas.

3.4. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party hereto may assiga fgreement without the prior written consenttwd bther party signed by such other
party's duly authorized representative, which cohsgay be given or withheld in the sole discretdhe applicable party whose consent is
requested.

3.5. NOTICES. Except as otherwise set forth herdimotices in connection with this Agreement shaldeemed given as of the day they
sent by electronic transmission, sent by facsimildeposited with a commercial courier for delivenother party at the following addresses:

PFS:

PFSweb, Inc.
500 North Central Expressway
Plano, TX 75074

Attn: Chief Executive Officer
Daisytek:
Daisytek International Corporation

1025 Central Expressway South Suite 200
Allen, TX 75013

or to such other address and/or facsimile numbéreaparty to receive the notice or request sogth@sés by written notice to the other.

3.6. INVALIDITY. If any provision of this Agreemerghall be held by a court of competent jurisdictiofe illegal, invalid or unenforceable,
the remaining provisions shall remain in full formed effect.

3.7. FURTHER ASSURANCES. Each party agrees to saloh further action and execute, deliver and/erdilch documents or instruments
as are necessary to carry out the terms and puwpbskis Agreement. In addition, Daisytek and R#IEeach have access to and use of the
space at all sites utilized in the performancéhef@esignated Services as appropriate hereunderaguopliance with Daisytek's or PFS'
security and safety policies in effect at suchliiges. Daisytek and PFS each will be responsibteaihd will hold the other Party harmless
from any and all claims, actions, damages, lidbgitcosts and expenses, including reasonableaytsifees and expenses (collectively,
"Losses"), relating to or arising out of the deatthbodily injury of any agent, employee, custonteisiness invitee or business visitor of the
indemnitee or the damage, loss or destruction pftamgible personal or real property (whether owoelkased) of the indemnitee caused by
the negligent act or omission or the willful misdot of the indemnitor. Each Party will indemnifydadefend the other Party and will hold
the other Party harmless from any and all Lossemgrout of, under or in connection with, claines fvhich the indemnitor is responsible
under the preceding sentence.

3.8. NO PARTNERSHIP. This Agreement is intendeelgohs a services agreement, and no partnersiip vinture, employment, agency,
franchise, or other form of agreement or relatigméhintended. Each party agrees to be responfblall of its federal and state taxes,
withholding, social security, insurance, and othenefits, and all salaries, benefits, and othetsanfsits employees, except as otherwise
specifically contemplated by the provisions of thireement.



3.9. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY. This Agreementn®t intended to create any rights in any persoentity who is not a party to this
agreement, and no such rights are created hereunder

3.10. MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement mayebecuted in any number of counterparts, each oflwsiall be an original wi
the same effect as if the signatures thereto aretdhevere upon the same instrument.

3.11. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be resgmador delays or failures in performance resgtirom acts beyond its control,
including acts of war, national or local stategofergency, power outages, earthquakes or otherahdisasters.

3.12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute, controversyclaim of any kind or nature arising under ocamnection with this Agreement
shall be finally and conclusively determined byitdbion conducted pursuant to the commercial eabtidn rules of the American Arbitration
Association in Dallas, Texas. Any decision maddhgyarbitrators shall be final, binding and consle®n each Party and each Party shall be
entitled to be enforce to the fullest extent petditoy law and entered in any court of competenigdgiction. The expenses of each party to
any arbitration, including but not limited to sugéarty's attorneys' fees, if any, and the expensédees of the arbitrators shall be recoverable
or borne as determined by the arbitrators.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by theilydwthorized representatives, have executed thieément as of the Effective Date.

PFSWEB, INC.
By:
Name
Title:
DAISYTEK INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
By:
Name:
Title:
Exhibit-SOW: Statement of Work
Exhibit-SLA: Service Levels
Exhibit-SSP:  System Separation Project
Exhibit-Bonus  Bonus Payments
Exhibit-Protocol Description of applicable protoco Is
Schedule 1: Software License Schedule
Schedule 2: Time and Events Schedule - System Separation Project
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EXHIBIT 10.8
CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the 8th dayafuary, 2001 by and between PFSWEB, INC., a Delawsorporation (the
"Company"), and ("Exeeti

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Company considers the establishmeht@intenance of a sound and vital management és$ential to protecting and
enhancing the best interests of the Company arstiatkholders; and

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that, as is the w@h many publicly held corporations, the pod#ipdf a change in control may arise
and that such possibility may result in the departr distraction of management personnel to thendent of the Company and its
stockholders; and

WHEREAS, the Board (as defined in Section 1) hasrd@ned that it is in the best interests of thenPany and its stockholders to secure
Executive's continued services and to ensure Exetsitontinued and undivided dedication to hiseduin the event of any threat or
occurrence of a Change in Control (as defined tti®e 1) of the Company; and

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized the Company ter émto this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of thenpises and the mutual covenants and agreements lverdiained, the Company a
Executive hereby agree as follows:

1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, thedaling terms shall have the respective meaningfosit below:
"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company

"Bonus Amount" means the Per Share Price multigsie¢he Bonus Number set forth below the Executim@me on the signature page
hereto.

"Change in Control" means the occurrence of anyafriee following events:

(a) individuals who, on the date of this Agreemenfstitute the Board (the "Incumbent Director€ase for any reason to constitute at le:
majority of the Board, provided that any persondmeing a director subsequent to the date of thisAgrent, whose election or nomination
for election was approved by a vote of at leasttiials of the Incumbent Directors then on the Baaither by a specific vote or by appro
of the proxy statement of the Company in which spetson is named as a nominee for director, withwiiten objection to such nomination)
shall be an Incumbent Director; provided, howetheat



no individual initially elected or nominated asieedtor of the Company as a result of an actush@atened election contest with respect to
directors or as a result of any other actual azatened solicitation of proxies (or consents) bgrobehalf of any person other than the Board
shall be deemed to be an Incumbent Director;

(b) any "Person" (as such term is defined in Saci@)(9) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 (Exchange Act") and as used in
Sections 13(d)(3) and 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Acty becomes a "beneficial owner" (as defineRuhe 13d-3 under the Exchange Act),
directly or indirectly, of securities of the Compyarepresenting more than 50% of the combined vatimger of the Company's then
outstanding securities eligible to vote for thectten of the Board (the "Company Voting Securit}egtovided, however, that the event
described in this paragraph shall not be deemée 8 Change in Control by virtue of any of thedaling acquisitions: (i) by the Company or
any Subsidiary, (ii) by any employee benefit planrglated trust) sponsored or maintained by thea@my or any Subsidiary, (iii) by any
underwriter temporarily holding securities pursuanan offering of such securities, (iv) pursuanatNon-Qualifying Transaction (as defined
herein), or (v) pursuant to any acquisition by Ex&@ or any group of persons including Executi@egny entity controlled by Executive or
any group of persons including Executive);

(c) the consummation of a merger, consolidaticrtusdry share exchange or similar form of corpotatesaction involving the Company or
any of its Subsidiaries that requires the appro¥ghe Company's stockholders, whether for suahstration or the issuance of securities ir
transaction (a "Business Combination”), unless igtiately following such Business Combination:

(i) more than 50% of the total voting power of {§ corporation resulting from such Business Coumafam (the "Surviving Corporation”), or
(y) if applicable, the ultimate parent corporattbat directly or indirectly has beneficial ownerslof 100% of the voting securities eligible to
elect directors of the Surviving Corporation (tfRafent Corporation®), is represented by Companyngdbecurities that were outstanding
immediately prior to such Business Combination ifaapplicable, is represented by shares into wkisth Company Voting Securities were
converted pursuant to such Business Combinatiawl) sach voting power among the holders thereaf sibstantially the same proportion as
the voting power of such Company Voting Securitiesong the holders thereof immediately prior toBisiness Combination, (ii) no person
(other than any employee benefit plan (or relatast} sponsored or maintained by the Surviving Grafion or the Parent Corporation), is or
becomes the beneficial owner, directly or indingotif more than 50% of the total voting power ¢ tiutstanding voting securities eligible to
elect directors of the Parent Corporation (orhére is no Parent Corporation, the Surviving Capion) and (iii) at least a majority of the
members of the board of directors of the Parenp@tion (or, if there is no Parent Corporatior, Surviving Corporation) following the
consummation of the Business Combination were Il@nmhDirectors at the time of the Board's approfdhe execution of the initial
agreement providing for such Business Combinatimy Business Combination which satisfies all ofdahteria specified in (i), (ii) and (iii)
above shall be deemed to be a "Non-Qualifying Taatisn"); or



(d) the stockholders of the Company approve a plamomplete liquidation or dissolution of the Compar a sale of all or substantially all
the Company's assets.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Contfdche Company shall not be deemed to occur (§lgdlecause any person acqui
beneficial ownership of more than 50% of the Comypédating Securities as a result of the acquisittdtCompany Voting Securities by the
Company which reduces the number of Company V@iecurities outstanding; provided, that if afterrsacquisition by the Company such
person becomes the beneficial owner of additiomsh@any Voting Securities that increases the peagenof outstanding Company Voting
Securities beneficially owned by such person, angban Control of the Company shall then occuriipif(prior to the occurrence of the
Change in Control, and not as the result of anyagcproposed or threatened Change in Control exérgted by any third party, all of the
Incumbent Directors then serving on the Board, gnimous action, authorize the Company to enterant effect the Change in Control.

"Per Share Price" means the per share amount @sqaén U.S. Dollars) paid or payable to holderthefCompany Voting Securities in
respect thereof in connection with, or as paraiaf; Change in Control, including without limitaticemy tender offer price or merger price,
provided, that (i) to the extent such amount iglpaipayable in securities or property other thash¢ such securities or property shall be
valued at its fair market value on the date ofdblesummation of the Change in Control (such fairkeavalue being deemed the closing
price of any securities which are publicly tradadyl

(i) if no amounts are paid or payable to holddr€ompany Voting Securities in connection with asrpart of, the Change in Control, the '
Share Price" shall be equal to the closing prictnefCompany Voting Securities on the effectiveedstthe Change in Control.

"Subsidiary" means any corporation or other entitwhich the Company has a direct or indirect owh@gy interest of 50% or more of the
total combined voting power of the then outstandiagurities or interests of such corporation oeo#ntity entitled to vote generally in the
election of directors or in which the Company Hesright to receive 50% or more of the distributadmprofits or 50% of the assets upon
liquidation or dissolution.

2. Obligation of Executive. The Executive agreeatthfully render such services to the CompanthasExecutive and the Company shall
mutually agree from time to time. This Agreemeng¢sioot constitute an employment agreement or pemafismployment and shall not
restrict the ability of the Company to terminate #mployment of the Executive, with or without aa et any time (except as may be set f
in any separate written agreement now or hereeftered into between the Company and the Executiveyided, however, that any
termination of employment shall not terminate thigeement except as set forth in Section 3 below.

3. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall be ¢ffecn the date hereof and shall continue in ¢ffietil June 30, 2002, at which time this
Agreement shall automatically terminate and exaird be of no further force or effect. Notwithstamgdthe foregoing, (i) this Agreement rr
be terminated at any time by the Company, uportevrihotice to the
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Executive, provided that such termination shalekpressly authorized by the unanimous vote of icerhbent Directors then serving on the
Board (excluding the Executive, if the Executivéhisn serving as an Incumbent Director) and
(i) this Agreement shall automatically terminafgon the voluntary termination of employment by Ehecutive.

4. Bonus Amount. If a Change in Control shall ooduring the term of this Agreement, the Companyl sivéthin three business days
thereafter, without setoff or counterclaim of angds pay to the Executive the Bonus Amount.

5. Certain Additional Payments by the Company.

(a) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary nibtwtanding, in the event it shall be determinext iny payment, award, benefit or
distribution (or any acceleration of any paymemtagd, benefit or distribution) by the Company (ay @f its affiliated entities) or any entity
which effectuates a Change in Control (or anyoaiffiliated entities) to or for the benefit of Exgive (whether pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement or otherwise, but determined without réga any additional payments required under tieistiSn

5) (the "Payments") would be subject to the extagemposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revebode of 1986, as amended (the
"Code"), or any interest or penalties are incutrgdExecutive with respect to such excise tax (sudise tax, together with any such interest
and penalties, are hereinafter collectively refétreas the "Excise Tax"), then the Company shalltp Executive an additional payment (a
"Gross-Up Payment") in an amount such that aftgneat by Executive of all taxes (including any Becifax) imposed upon the Gross-Up
Payment, Executive retains an amount of the Gegs&ayment equal to the sum of (x) the Excise Tgpased upon the Payments and (y)
product of any deductions disallowed because ofrttleision of the Gross-Up Payment in Executivejsisted gross income and the highest
applicable marginal rate of federal income taxafamthe calendar year in which the Gross-Up Paynseto be made. For purposes of
determining the amount of the Gross-Up PaymentEttecutive shall be deemed to (i) pay federal inedaxes at the highest marginal rates
of federal income taxation for the calendar yeawlrich the Gross-Up Payment is to be made, (ii) gaylicable state and local income taxes
at the highest marginal rate of taxation for thierdar year in which the Gross-Up Payment is tmbde, net of the maximum reduction in
federal income taxes which could be obtained fremudtion of such state and local taxes and

(iii) have otherwise allowable deductions for fealéncome tax purposes at least equal to thosehaddald be disallowed because of the
inclusion of the Gross-Up Payment in the Execusiagljusted gross income.

(b) Subject to the provisions of Section 5(a)dallerminations required to be made under this &e&j including whether and when a Gross-
Up Payment is required, the amount of such Gros&&jpnent and the assumptions to be utilized iniagiat such determinations, shall be
made by the public accounting firm that is retaibgdhe Company as of the date immediately pridghéoChange in Control (the "Accounti
Firm") which shall provide detailed supporting adétions both to the Company and Executive witifieén (15) business days of the receipt
of notice from the Company or the Executive that¢hhas been a Payment, or such earlier timeraguested by the Company (collectively,
the



"Determination”). In the event that the Accountligm is serving as accountant or auditor for thaivildual, entity or group effecting the
Change in Control, Executive may appoint anothépnally recognized public accounting firm to make determinations required hereur
(which accounting firm shall then be referred tdtas Accounting Firm hereunder). All fees and exgasnof the Accounting Firm shall be
borne solely by the Company and the Company shsdkénto any agreement requested by the Accouiing in connection with the
performance of the services hereunder. The GrosBdyment under this Section 5 with respect to aayntents shall be made no later than
thirty (30) days following such Payment. If the Acmting Firm determines that no Excise Tax is p&yalg Executive, it shall furnish
Executive with a written opinion to such effectddn the effect that failure to report the ExciseTif any, on Executive's applicable federal
income tax return will not result in the impositioha negligence or similar penalty. The Determagraby the Accounting Firm shall be
binding upon the Company and Executive. The paaidsiowledge that as a result of the uncertainthénapplication of Section 4999 of the
Code at the time of the Determination, it is poestbat Grossdp Payments which will not have been made by the@my should have be
made ("Underpayment”) or Grotlp Payments are made by the Company which shouldave been made ("Overpayment"), consistent
the calculations required to be made hereundehdmvent that the Executive thereafter is requinatake payment of any Excise Tax or
additional Excise Tax, the Accounting Firm shalledmine the amount of the Underpayment that hasroed and any such Underpayment
(together with interest at the rate provided intBac1274(b)(2)(B) of the Code) shall be prompthicdbby the Company to or for the benefi
Executive. In the event the amount of the GrosPdpment exceeds the amount necessary to reimigrg&xecutive for his Excise Tax, the
Accounting Firm shall determine the amount of theefpayment that has been made and any such Oveepaytogether with interest at the
rate provided in Section 1274(b)(2) of the Codallidhe promptly paid by Executive (to the extentas received a refund if the applicable
Excise Tax has been paid to the Internal Revennacgg to or for the benefit of the Company. Exéaeishall cooperate, to the extent the
Company reimburses his expenses, with any reasonadpliests by the Company in connection with amyests or disputes with the Internal
Revenue Service in connection with the Excise Tax.

6. Withholding Taxes. The Company may withhold fralinppayments due to Executive (or his benefic@rgstate) hereunder all taxes wh
by applicable federal, state, local or other lave, Company is required to withhold therefrom.

7. Reimbursement of Expenses. If any contest qudsshall arise under this Agreement involvingftikire or refusal of the Company to
perform fully in accordance with the terms her¢log Company shall reimburse Executive, on a cubvanis, for all reasonable legal fees and
expenses, if any, incurred by Executive in conwectiith such contest or dispute (regardless ofdlsalt thereof), together with interest in an
amount equal to the Chase Bank prime rate from tonigne in effect, but in no event higher than theximum legal rate permissible under
applicable law, such interest to accrue from thte ttee Company receives Executive's statemenufdr fees and expenses through the de¢
payment thereof, regardless of whether or not Bxeza claim is upheld by a court of competentgdittion; provided, however, Executive
shall be required to repay any such



amounts to the Company to the extent that a cesuieis a final order from which no appeal can bertaér with respect to which the time
period to appeal has expired, setting forth themeination that the position taken by Executive Wwa®lous or advanced by Executive in t
faith.

8. Successors; Binding Agreement.

(a) This Agreement shall not be terminated by angiBess Combination. In the event of any Businessliination, the provisions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon the Surviving Caaion, and such Surviving Corporation shall batied as the Company hereunder.

(b) The Company agrees that in connection withBinginess Combination, it will cause any successtityeto the Company to
unconditionally assume (and for any Parent Corjpmrah such Business Combination to guaranteejytigen instrument delivered to
Executive (or his beneficiary or estate), all af thbligations of the Company hereunder. FailurtnefCompany to obtain such assumption
and guarantee prior to the effectiveness of anf Business Combination that constitutes a Chan@oirtrol, shall be a breach of this
Agreement.

(c) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of &e enforceable by Executive's personal or legaiesentatives, executors, administrators,
successors, heirs, distributees, devisees ancekegydf Executive shall die while any amounts wdgdpayable to Executive hereunder had
Executive continued to live, all such amounts, ssletherwise provided herein, shall be paid in atzce with the terms of this Agreement
to such person or persons appointed in writing kgcitive to receive such amounts or, if no pers@oiappointed, to Executive's estate.

9. Notice. For purposes of this Agreement, allcegiand other communications required or permitezdunder shall be in writing and shall
be deemed to have been duly given when deliveréigen(5) days after deposit in the United Statesl ncertified and return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

If to the Executive to the most recent addresaioh£xecutive on the books and records of the Comnd if to the Company:
PFSweb, Inc., 500 North Central Expressway, Plaezas 75074, Attention: Chief Executive Officer;jtorsuch other address as either party
may have furnished to the other in writing in aclzorce herewith, except that notices of change drfemd shall be effective only upon rece

10. No Setoff. The Company's obligations hereustiail not be affected by any set-off, counterclaieepupment, defense or other claim,
right or action that the Company may have againsthHtive or others.

11. Employment with Subsidiaries. Employment witea Company for purposes of this Agreement shallideeemployment with any
Subsidiary.



12. Survival. The respective obligations and beseififorded to the Company and Executive and ayiduring the term of this Agreement
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

13. GOVERNING LAW; VALIDITY. THE INTERPRETATION, COI\STRUCTION AND PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED AND ENFORCED INCCORDANCE WITH THE INTERNAL LAWS OF THE
STATE OF DELAWARE WITHOUT REGARD TO THE PRINCIPLESF CONFLICTS OF LAWS THEREOF, OF SUCH PRINCIPLES
OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION WHICH COULD CAUSE THE ARRCATION OF THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION OTHER
THAN THE STATE OF DELAWARE. THE INVALIDITY OR UNENFORCEABILITY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT
SHALL NOT AFFECT THE VALIDITY OR ENFORCEABILITY OFANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHICH
OTHER PROVISIONS SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND ERECT.

14. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executedunterparts, each of which shall be deemed tnberiginal and all of which together
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

15. Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreemeiatyrbe modified or waived unless such modificatiomaiver is agreed to in writing and
signed by Executive and by a duly authorized offifethe Company. No waiver by either party hergtany time of any breach by the other
party hereto of, or compliance with, any condit@rprovision of this Agreement to be performed bgtsother party shall be deemed a we

of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditionsthe same or at any prior or subsequent timeufeally Executive or the Company to insist
upon strict compliance with any provision of thigrAement or to assert any right Executive or then@my may have hereunder shall not be
deemed to be a waiver of such provision or righdror other provision or right of this AgreementcEgt as otherwise specifically provided
herein, the rights of, and benefits payable to,ddkige, his estate or his beneficiaries pursuathigbAgreement are in addition to any rights
of, or benefits payable to, Executive, his estatei® beneficiaries under any other employee bepkfn or compensation program of the
Company.
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CHANGE IN CONTROL SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thiségrent to be executed by a duly authorized offi€&ihe Company and Executi
has executed this Agreement as of the day andfiysaabove written.

PFSWEB, INC.

By:
Title:

[Print Name of Executive]

[Bonus Number]

[Signature of Executive]



EXHIBIT 21

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

JURISDICTION OF

NAME INCORPORATION
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. Delaware
Priority Fulfillment Services of Canada, Inc Canada

Priority Fulfillment Services Europe BV Netherlands



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of PEGWe.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrdlggstration statements (Nos. 333-40020, 333-42186333-46096) on Form S-8 of
PFSweb, Inc. of our report dated May 3, 2001, exfredNotes 7 and 11, to which the date is as a8, 2001, relating to the consolidated
balance sheet of PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiarietMarmh 31, 2001 and the related consolidated istetes of operations, stockholders' eq
and cash flows and the related financial statersemtdule for the year then ended, which reportaysga the March 31, 2001 annual report
on Form 10-K of PFSweb, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dal | as, Texas
June 28, 2001



EXHIBIT 23.2

As independent public accountants, we hereby cansehe incorporation of our report included istRorm 10-K, into the Company's
previously filed registration statements on For@ @Registration Statement File No. 333-40020, N8®-32186 and No. 333-46096).

Dal | as, Texas, /'s/ ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

June 28, 2001

End of Filing
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